
 

 

 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth, FL 33460 

561.586.1600 

  
AGENDA 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
SPECIAL CITY COMMISSION MEETING #2 - DOKA APPEAL CONTINUATION 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
TUESDAY, MAY 25, 2021 - 6:00 PM 

ROLL CALL: 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  led by Vice Mayor Herman Robinson 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Appeal by Alfred Malefatto, Esq. on behalf of Marlin Industrial Park Owners 
Association of PZB Project # 20-01400035 commonly referred to as “Umdasch/Doka,” 
which included site plan, sustainable bonus and conditional use approvals to allow for 
the construction of a +/-47,000 square foot distribution facility and repair and 
maintenance uses within the Industrial Park of Commerce (I-POC) zoning district 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The City Commission has adopted Rules of Decorum for Citizen Participation (See Resolution No. 25-
2021). The Rules of Decorum are posted within the City Hall Chambers, City Hall Conference Room, posted 
online at:  https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/government/virtual-meetings/, and available through the City Clerk’s 
office. Compliance with the Rules of Decorum is expected and appreciated. 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with respect to any 
matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, 
for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which 
record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  (F.S. 286.0105) 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
SPECIAL MEETING 

 
AGENDA DATE: May 25, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

 

TITLE: 

Appeal by Alfred Malefatto, Esq. on behalf of Marlin Industrial Park Owners Association of PZB 
Project # 20-01400035 commonly referred to as “Umdasch/Doka,” which included site plan, 
sustainable bonus and conditional use approvals to allow for the construction of a +/-47,000 
square foot distribution facility and repair and maintenance uses within the Industrial Park of 
Commerce (I-POC) zoning district 

  
SUMMARY: 

Alfred Malefatto, Esq. on behalf of Marlin Industrial Park Owners Association, is appealing a final 
order of the Planning and Zoning Board (PZB) to allow the construction of a +/-47,000 square 
foot distribution facility and repair and maintenance uses at 2209 7th Avenue North.  The subject 
project was approved unanimously with conditions at the January 6, 2021 Planning and Zoning 
Board meeting for a major site plan with sustainable bonus and conditional use permit.  The 
appeal was heard on May 11, 2021 at a special meeting of the City Commission, where the 
City Commission voted to continue the matter to May 25, 2021 so that the applicant and 
appellant could potentially negotiate a settlement prior to a final decision by the City 
Commission.   

 

PROJECT REVIEW HISTORY: 

The subject property is currently vacant. The site was vacant and undeveloped until the 1950s 
when land was cleared on the southern end of the parcel and used as a landfill.  The filling 
operations appeared to have ceased in the late 1970s and the property became overgrown and 
remained undeveloped until 2011.  At that time, there was an expansion of the pond at the north 
end of the parcel.  Since then, the property has remained undeveloped.  The applicant, Lisa 
Reves of Saul, Ewing, Arnstein and Lehr, applied on behalf of Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. 
for entitlement approval to develop the subject site with a +/-47,000 square foot distribution facility 
and repair and maintenance uses.   

The application included the following: 

1.) Major Site Plan for the development of an industrial building in excess of 7,500 square feet.  

2.) Sustainable Bonus Program Incentive to gain an increase in increase in building height to 
31 ft.  

3.) Conditional Use Permit to establish “distribution facility” and “repair and maintenance – 
major” uses greater than 7,500 square feet. 

At the January 9, 2021 Planning and Zoning Board meeting, staff presented a summary of the 
attached staff report, which contained the review of the proposed plans, documentation and 
materials provided by the applicant for consistency with the applicable standards found in the 



 
City of Lake Worth Beach’s Land Development Regulations (LDRs), Comprehensive Plan and 
Strategic Plan. The PZB approved the project with a vote of 7-0 for approval with conditions. 

 

 

QUASI-JUDICIAL PROCESS: 

Section 23.2-17(b) of the City’s code outlines the process for appealing decisions of the Planning 
and Zoning Board and Historic Resources Preservation Board to the City Commission. It requires 
the appealing party to submit a basis of appeal, which the appealing party has done (it is 
attached).  At the hearing, each party will be given 10 minutes to present its argument.  
Thereafter, the commission members may make comments, ask questions, request clarification 
and discuss the information presented at the PZB meeting.  The Commission’s decision 
upholding or overturning the decision should be based on competent, substantial evidence.   

The courts have defined substantial evidence as that which will establish a substantial basis of 
fact from which the fact at issue can be reasonably inferred. It is such relevant evidence as a 
reasonable mind would accept as adequate to support a conclusion. Competent means that the 
evidence relied upon to sustain the ultimate finding should be sufficiently relevant and material 
that a reasonable mind would accept it as adequate to support the conclusion reached. See e.g., 
Village of Palmetto Bay v. Palmer Trinity Private School, Inc. 128 So. 3d 19 (Fla. 3d DCA 2012). 

 

POTENTIAL MOTIONS: 

1. I find that the evidence presented in the application materials, presentations, testimony 
and the staff report was competent and substantial, and therefore move to uphold the 
decision of the Planning and Zoning Board approving major site plan, sustainable bonus 
incentive and conditional use approvals at 2209 7th Avenue North with conditions of 
approval as set forth in the development order.  

2. I find that the evidence presented was not competent and substantial [based upon 
specified reasons], and therefore, move to overturn and reverse the decision of the 
Planning and Zoning Board approving major site plan, sustainable bonus incentive and 
conditional use approvals at 2209 7th Avenue North as set forth in the development order.  

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
PZB #20-01400035 Development Order 
January 6, 2021 PZB Meeting Minutes  
Appellant’s Basis of Appeal  
Staff’s Presentation on January 6, 2021 
Applicant’s Presentation on January 6, 2021 
PZB #20-01400035 PZB Staff Report  
PZB Staff Report Attachment Site Plan Package 

PZB Staff Report Attachment Supporting Documents 

 
 



/
C;t9 of
Lake Worth
Beach
FLORIDA

ORDER OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD
OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

PROJECT NAME: Umdasch/Doka, 2209 7th Avenue North, PZB 20-01400035

APPLICANT/OWNER: Lisa Reves of Saul, Ewing. Arnstein and Lehr/Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd.

APPLICANT’S ADDRESS: 515 North Flagler Drive, West Palm Beach, FL 33401

DATE OF HEARING:

APPROVAL SOUGHT:

January 6,2021

Major Site Plan with Sustainable Bonus and Conditional Use to construct a
47,000 square foot distribution facility and repair and maintenance uses at 2209
7th Avenue North.

PROPERTY LOCATION: 2209 7th Avenue North

PCN 38-43-44-20-01-066-0010

X THIS MATTER came to be heard before the Planning and Zoning Board of the City of Lake Worth
Beach, Florida, on the date of hearing stated above. The Board, having considered the application by
the Applicant, the materials submitted by the Applicant, and the staff reports, and having heard
testimony from the Applicant, members of the Lake Worth Beach administrative staff, affected parties,
and the public, finds as follows:

1. Application for a Major Site Plan with Sustainable Bonus and Conditional Use was made by the
Applicant in a manner consistent with the requirements of the Lake Worth Beach Land Development
Regulations.

2. The Applicant
X HAS

HAS NOT

established by substantial competent evidence a basis for the approval requested

3. The conditions for the Major Site Plan with Sustainable Bonus and Conditional Use, as presented by
administrative staff, are set forth in the CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL, attached.

4. The Applicant’s application for a Major Site PLan with Sustainable Bonus and Conditional Use is
hereby

X GRANTED, subject to the conditions referenced in paragraph 3 hereof.
DENIED

e’rCCOMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY
‘-riähnhng Zoning Historic Preservation Division

1900 2N0 Avenue North
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461

561-586-1687



PZB No. 20-0 1400035

5. This Order shall take effect on the date signed by the chairperson.

6. All further development on the property shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions
of this Order.

CHAIRPERSON-On behalf of the BOARD

Anthony Marotta, Vice Chairperson

BOARD SECRETARY

%c1
Sherie Coale, City of L1e Worth Beach

(. 5;c.1 5).b\ctr\ çxc\cx

Datec \ ‘cJct



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

PZB CASE No. 20-01400035

Electric:
1. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy:

a. The 10-ft-wide electric easement will be needed and recorded prior to the issuance ofa
Certificate of Occupancy.

b. The customer will be responsible for installing Lake Worth Beach’s two 4” schedule-4O gray
electric conduits at a minimum of42” deep.

2. Prior to the issuance ofa building permit:
a. The electrical riser diagram and the load calculations will be needed.

Planning:
1. Prior to the issuance ofa building permit, all fencing on-site shall meet the applicable requirements

of Sections 23.4-4 and Section 23.4-19.
2. The project is prohibited from generating noise levels that exceed regulations found in Section

15.24.

The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code and
all other applicable standards including hut not limited to the Florida Department of Transportation
(FDOT), Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), and City of Lake Worth Public Works
Construction Standards and Policy and Procedure Manual.

2. Prior to the issuance ofa building permit:
a. the applicant shall contact the Lake Worth Drainage (LWDD) Districts Engineering

Department and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary, and furnish to the City. Prior to
the issuance ofa building permit, the applicant shall contact the South Florida Water
Management Districts (SFWMD) Engineering Department and obtain any required
permit(s), if necessary.

b. the Applicant shall contact and meet with a representative from the Public Works Solid
Waste and Recycling Division to confirm dumpster enclosure location, accessibility and
demand on property and that it is compatible with the requirements of the Department of
Public Works. Solid Waste and Recycling Division contact number is 561-533-7344.

c. the applicant shall provide architectural details [or the dumpster enclosure to confirm the
enclosure meets the standards of the Public Works Dept.

3. Prior to performing work in the right of way, the applicant shall apply for and receive issuance ofa
‘Right of Way/Utility Permit” application

4. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy:
a. All conditions of approval must be satisfied under jurisdiction of the Department of Public

Works
b. The Applicant shall ensure the entire surrounding off-site infrastructure inclusive of the

roadway, sidewalk, curbing, stormwater system piping and structures, valve boxes,
manholes, landscaping, striping, signage, and other improvements are in the same condition
as prior to construction

c. The applicant shall fine grade and sod all disturbed areas with bahia sod
d. The applicant shall broom sweep all areas of the affected right of way and remove of all silt

and debris collected as a result of construction activity
e. The applicant shall restore the right of way to a like or better condition. Any damages to

pavement, curbing, striping, sidewalks or other areas shall be restored in kind

PZB No. 20-0 1400035
Page 3

Public Works:
1.



E The trench patch for the utility crossing on 7th Ave North shall be restored in accordance
with the construction standards of the Public Works Dept.

Water & Sewer:
1. Water & Sewer Utility Plan:
2. Prior to the issuance of a building permit:

a. Center the 15-foot-wide easement over the water main.
b. Add or move the in-line valve at the edge of the easement for the fire line. This will delineate

the private/utility ownership.
c. Provide a valve at the southern watermain connection.
d. Note to engineer: The proposed watermain has been installed in 7th Ave N, the utility

department will have the as-built plan shortly. If practical, the actual utility location should
be referenced.

e. Move the water service parallel to the fire line or propose a location that minimize the
easement extension and path under asphalt. Near the entrance or tapping the main off of 7th
Ave N is an option since the meter can be set close to the property line.

f. Adjust the water main and/or slope of bank at the lake to provide a minimum of 10 feet fiat
space for maintenance access. Consider vehicles and equipment having to navigate around
the lake bank at the southeast corner.

g. Capacity fees for water and sewer must be paid in full in accordance with the current City
Ordinance.

h. The site shall permit through LWDD and/or SFWMD for the stormwater management and
provide a copy to Water Utilities.

i. The following shall be provided:
i. At time of engineering submittal, provide a full drawing set including any updated

drainage calculations, and any permits or permitting information from SFWMD and
LWDD.

ii. Add all structure and utility conflict information on the plans.
iii. Complete water, sewer and drainage plans showing proposed pipe sizes, materials,

structure sizes, utility crossing elevations, hydrants, manholes, as well as all
pertinent site elevations.

iv. Permits from the PBC Health Department for the Watermain extension and the
private lift station connection

v. Ifapplicable, show irrigation service line/s up the meter and backflow RPZ device/s.
vi. Show water & sewer services, drainage structures, and storm mains on landscape

plan. Confirm minimum spacing between landscape and services per Public Services
Detail 23, Typical Tree with Root Barrier.

vii. Fireflow calculations based on a recent hydrant test. Contact Pedro Segovia with
Palm Beach County at psegovia@pbcgov.com

viii. Signed and sealed Drainage CaLcuLations including a drainage statement from the
engineer regarding floodplain management provisions for water quality and quantity
shall be provided to the City.

ix. Provide geotechnical information for the determination of the hydraulic conductivity
of the soil, and groundwater elevation.

x. An Erosion Control plan and with the BMPs and NPDES compliance practices shall be
provided for the project site.

xi. Engineering plans shall include cross-sections along each property line and with
grading showing the design storm (3 yr. 1 hour (2.6”)) runoff being maintained on

PZB No. 20-01400035
Page 4

site.



xiv. All applicable City of Lake Worth details.

Lake Worth Drainage District:
1. This project will require a drainage outlall connection permit from this District if they will be

draining to the E-4 Canal.

xii. Provide existing and proposed site grades.
xiii. Indicate vertical datum on all plan drawings with grades.

PZB No, 20-0 1400035



 

 
MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD REGULAR MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 06, 2021 -- 6:00 PM 

 

ROLL CALL and RECORDING OF ABSENCES: Board members present in City 
Commission Chambers: Anthony Marotta, Vice-Chair; Mark Humm; Juan Contin; Daniel 
Tanner; Laura Starr. Virtual Board member attendance: Greg Rice, Chairman; Robert Lepa. 
Also present were: Andrew Meyer, Senior Community Planner; Erin Sita, Assistant Director for 
Community Sustainability; William Waters, Director for Community Sustainability; Pamala 
Ryan, Board Attorney; Sherie Coale, Board Secretary. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Led by M. Humm 

ADDITIONS / DELETIONS / RECORDERING AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA None 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

A. October 7, 2020 Meeting Minutes 

Motion: M. Humm moved to accept the October 7, 2020 minutes as presented; J. Contin 2nd.   

Vote: Ayes all, unanimous. 

CASES: 

SWEARING IN OF STAFF AND APPLICANTS Christa Simmons, Notary-State of Florida, 
administered oath to those wishing to give testimony. 

PROOF OF PUBLICATION Provided in meeting packet. 

1) PZB 20-01400035 

PZB/HRPB 20-03100008 

WITHDRAWLS / POSTPONEMENTS None 

CONSENT None 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

BOARD DISCLOSURE: M. Humm, J. Contin, A. Marotta and L. Starr all received calls and/or 
emails from attorney for applicant but did not return calls or speak with anyone. D. Tanner 
received calls from persons representing the applicant; R. Lepa did receive calls but referred the 
caller to city staff.    G. Rice did not speak to anyone nor receive any calls. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None 

NEW BUSINESS: 

Planning Zoning Historic Preservation Division 

1900 2nd Avenue North 

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 

561.586.1687 

 



Presiding Vice-Chair Anthony Marotta briefly read the following description of the proposed 
project, then mentioned the need to address, as a preliminary matter, the request of one of three 
(3) affected parties for a continuance to allow time to prepare his case. 

Board Attorney Pamala Ryan states the Board is in possession of the written requests from 
Mr. Daniel Hiatt requesting an additional continuance. It was granted @ December 2, 2020.  As 
the first continuance was granted, and according to the City Ordinance, any further requests 
would be at the discretion of the Board. 

Affected Party: Mr. Daniel Hiatt  

• Believes questionable notice was given in December 2020. Specifically he is unhappy 
with the notice period, that the USPS was not making deliveries in the four-day weekend 
holiday period including Thanksgiving Thursday, Friday, Saturday or Sunday; he 
discussed getting the meeting continued but heard rumor the Board could not reach 
quorum.  

• Does not recall receiving notice of the continuance being granted. Sent the request for 
the continuance. Every affected party gets one continuance, this is exactly why the 
Ordinance is in place. 

• The reason for this request being his attorney, Thomas Baird, on December 30 advised 
Mr. Hiatt he was not available for the January meeting and recused himself from the 
case. Mr. Hiatt was then referred to another attorney, who he was not able to “get up to 
speed” with him.  

• In a December 5 email, the attorney for Doka, asked his position on the project. After 
responding to him, he never heard any community outreach until yesterday.  

• Made it perfectly clear to PZ Board members of a new owner for the GSG Investments 
properties (Eastern Metal-tenant) in addition to contacting the attorney for the new owner, 
who was not interested in a continuance at that time and now suddenly is present in the 
zoom room for this meeting.  

• Mr. Hiatt states that even if his continuance request is denied, due to inadvertently using 
up his continuance last month, Board cannot produce any authorization of that, perhaps 
either Mr. George Garamy or Seth Malamut (Stag Industrial) could be granted a 
continuance.  

Assistant Director for Community Sustainability Erin Sita had a request from Mr. Malamut 
to speak on the issue. As of this afternoon he had not requested a continuance. 

Seth Malamut- In-house counsel for Stag Industrial based in Boston- Acknowledges they are not 
filed as an affected party. Having recently acquired the properties, he would only request a 
continuance because he does not have enough information on the project to determine if the 
new owner should or should not be concerned with the project. He has received some 
information provided by staff but is still unclear as to what is going to happen on the property. 
He has not spoken with his tenant (Eastern Metal Supply), Stag Industrial is a professional 
landlord. It is unknown if Eastern Metal Supply, which does not have a fee interest in the 
property, would have concerns about the use of the property in question. 

Attorney Lisa Reves of Saul Ewing, Arnstein & Lehr, Co-Council for the applicant: - Mr. 
Hiatt received a continuance in December. Mr. Malamut should take up the issue with the 
seller. Umdasch-Doka property owners are ready to proceed and opposes the continuance 
request. 

Board Attorney:  



• Regarding Mr. Malamut’s request for a continuance: Project applications must be moved 
along under State law; stacked multiple individual requests to continually, indefinitely, 
postpone projects were not the intention of the Ordinance. 

• Regarding Mr. Hiatt’s allegation that he never received correspondence: Mr. Hiatt 
requested and received a continuance prior to the question of a quorum. As the 
continuance was granted, staff did not continue to push for another member to be 
physically present at the meeting.  

• On December 2 Mr. Hiatt spoke with E. Sita informing her he needed the continuance to 
get an attorney. Now, coincidentally, this time his chosen attorney, Mr. Thomas Baird, 
informed Mr. Hiatt he could not represent him in January so this is the reason for this 
continuance request. 

The purpose of the Ordinance was to allow affected parties time to retain representation not to 
run the clock out on a project. It is within the Board’s discretion to grant another continuance if 
they see fit. 

Board: A. Marotta- Please address Mr. Hiatt’s statement of questionable notice.  

Assistant Director for Community Sustainability - The noticing referred to by Mr. Hiatt as 
being questionable, met and exceeded all legal time requirements for courtesy notices. It was 
consistent with regulations. Notices were sent in November and Mr. Hiatt expressed concern the 
notice was sent over the Thanksgiving holiday period, that the USPS did not make deliveries 
until the following Monday. The courtesy notices, which are in fact courtesy notices not required 
notices, were postmarked 13 days prior to the meeting, exceeding the minimum required by 3 
days. Site signs were simultaneously posted on the site and the project was noticed in the 
newspaper. 

As the December meeting was not opened to vest (preserve) that notice, courtesy notices were 
again sent on December 10, 2020 (for this meeting), along with the placement of new site 
signage placed and re-noticing in the newspaper. 

Seth Malamut requests proof the previous property owner, GSG investments, received notice.  

Staff can confirm, with the certificate of mailing, that the notice was sent to the previous property 
owner. 

Board: J. Contin -The due diligence period prior to the acquisition of the GSG Investments 
property would have revealed this action was in progress. Finds it to be surprising this 
information  wouldn’t have been found during that time period.  He is familiar with and does quite 
a bit of due diligence work in the course of his own profession. 

Seth Malamut states one can only get the benefit of the disclosure provided by the seller. The 
seller would be obligated to forward the notice if it were in their possession. It will not go 
unnoticed. 

Presiding Vice-Chair queries Board members as to additional questions of the affected party, 
Mr. Daniel Hiatt. 

L. Starr questions if Mr. Hiatt is objecting to the project or asking for the continuance? 

Staff: The question of an additional continuance is being addressed at this time. Should that 
be denied, Mr. Hiatt will make a presentation. 



Board: D. Tanner asks if the Board is obligated to continue the item or are they able to move 
forward? 

Board Attorney: The Board is within its right to move forward if they so choose and are not 
obligated to continue the case. A motion to deny or grant a continuance should be made. 

Board: J. Contin – questions for purposes of clarity, that December was considered a 
continuance. 

Affected Party: Mr. Hiatt – does not consider it a continuance, states staff does not have any 
documentation of his commitment. 

Board Attorney:  

• No documentation of a commitment is required. Mr. Hiatt never responded to the Board 
Attorney’s emails. The fact that he did not respond does not mean the emails were not 
sent.  

• The email to Mr. Hiatt stated December 16 or January 6 were dates being considered 
for the subsequent meeting giving him time to hire legal counsel. A formal response is 
not required. Once the continuance was granted, staff did not pursue getting a live 
quorum for the meeting. 

Affected Party: Mr. Hiatt, in questioning the email, asks if the email mentions failing to get a 
quorum? Believes it is time to quit talking. If the Board is not in favor of granting a continuance 
at this time, how can it be explained that  Mr. George Garamy requested and was denied a 
continuance? Let’s close this out and give everyone some time. You can’t kick everyone out. 
This is why the Ordinance was put in place, so this kind of nonsense would not happen. Who 
said what, what did they say. I am not responsible for making everybody happy. 

Board Attorney: Staff did not pursue getting a live quorum after Mr. Hiatt requested the 
continuance. Prior to that staff was trying to get a live quorum.  

Board: A. Marotta- please clarify the granting of the continuance was through that email. 

Board Attorney: Yes, it was. 

Board: L. Starr - When? 

Board Attorney: On the day of the meeting December 2, 2020 @ 4:47 pm, she was 
forwarded the email from staff which questioned how Mr. Hiatt did not have notice when clearly  
the notice was sent. Around 4:54 pm when the Board Secretary, in place, was having difficulty 
getting a quorum, instead of having her continue to call and pursue getting a live quorum (all 
Board members have been witness to the practice before), and as the continuance request 
was in hand, the continuance was granted over the applicant’s request to continue. The 
applicant still wanted to move forward. 

Affected Party: Mr. Hiatt- States the email sent involved not having a quorum. 

Board Attorney: The email stated you were granted a continuance. 

Affected Party: Mr. Hiatt- Let’s just say I’m disqualified, George Garamy, who never asked for 
a continuance in December, has also been denied a continuance at this time. The reason he 
(Mr. Hiatt) asked for the continuance was in November the notices are purposefully mailed by 
the applicant before a major holiday knowing the Post Office is not open in the days after a 
holiday. Since everyone has complained about that, the courtesy notice deadline has been 



changed by the Ordinance too. Let’s move on to George Garamy, stop wasting time on who 
said what. 

Staff:  E. Sita offers to shares the email on the screen. 

Presiding Vice-Chair: Questions if Mr. Garamy’s requested continuance was for the 
December meeting, or this meeting? 

Assistant Director for Community Sustainability- spoke with Mr. Garamy and advised there 
is only one affected party ordinance for all affected parties. Otherwise it would cause indefinite 
postponements. This possibility and implications were discussed at City Commission. 

Seth Malamut: Asks how Ms. Sita can advise the Board of the intent of the Ordinance? 

Assistant Director for Community Sustainability states she was a co-author of the 
Ordinance and present during the City Commission discussion. 

Staff: There is one 30-day continuance for all affected parties. 

Board Attorney: The continuances do not stack allowing any issue to go on indefinitely. There 
is a State Statute on how long a project can be held up, this is belaboring the issue at hand.  

Affected Party: Mr. Hiatt indicates in the email that Christina Morrison is solely a real estate 
agent with whom he is associated and managing a different portion of the Marlin Industrial 
Park when on November 25 she requested the staff report.  

Board: D. Tanner - All told there was an additional 30 days to do the due diligence and build 
the case. D. Tanner motions to move forward with hearing the case. A. Marotta suggests 
denying the request for continuance. 

Motion: D. Tanner moves to deny the request for a continuance; J. Contin 2nd. 

Vote: L. Starr-Nay Greg Rice-Nay Bob Lepa – Nay Ayes- J. Contin, M. Humm, A. Marotta, D. 
Tanner.     Motion passes 4-3. 

A. PZB Project Number 20-01400035: Consideration of a Major Site Plan with Sustainable 
Bonus and Conditional Use Permit to construct a +/-47,000 square foot distribution facility 
and repair and maintenance uses within the Industrial Park of Commerce (I-POC) zoning 
district commonly referred to as “Umdasch/Doka” and located at 2209 7th Avenue North, 
PCN # 38-43-44-20-01-066-0010. 

Staff Presentation: A. Meyer provides an overview of the proposed request. The property is 
zoned Industrial Park of Commerce. From the 1950’s-1970 there was a landfill near the southern 
boundary of the property. Currently it is a vacant lot and undeveloped. The City designated the 
area a brownfield on March 3, 2009 with the adoption of Resolution 03-2009. The applicant has 
begun remediation through Florida Dept. of Environmental Protection.  Structures on the 
property would be comprised of three (3) buildings: an office of approximately 10,150 sq. feet, 
warehouse and maintenance shop of 26,617sq feet and an 11,160 sq. foot canopy totaling 
approximately 47,927 square feet. The nature of business would be a distribution facility with  
repair and maintenance for safety and protection systems, sale and rental  of concrete form work 
and miscellaneous parts and materials to contractors throughout Florida. Inspection of returning 
rental equipment will occur under the canopy, while repair will occur inside the maintenance 
building. The storage of equipment will be stored east of the building. Employee parking would 
be to the west, truck circulation will be to the east of the buildings. The entrance would be 
secured with gates and not open to the public. A lake is proposed on the southern end for 



buffering, as well as a six (6) foot concrete fence on the southern and western boundaries. The 
200-foot canal to the west provides buffering in addition to a six (6) foot concrete wall. 

The Sustainable Bonus request for one additional foot will be to screen the rooftop equipment in 
the office portion of the building. The project was found to be in compliance with the City 
Comprehensive Plan, Strategic Plan and Land Development Regulations. Conditions of 
Approval are reviewed including those from Lake Worth Drainage District requiring bank 
stabilization. 

Applicant: Louis Goldberg-Senior Facilities Manager for Umdasch USA dba as DOKA USA. It 
is crucial to have a good relationship with the neighbors. Similar to Lake Worth Beach, the 
Chicago site also borders residential neighborhoods. They provide concrete form systems, 
safety and protection systems both leased and sold. They would be relocating from Broward 
County. The project would bring approximately 50 jobs to just over 9.79 acres. A video of the 
Chicago facility is shown.  

Attorney Lisa Reves of Saul Ewing, Arnstein & Lehr, Co-Council for the applicant: 
Approval is recommended by staff. Will provide @ 50 well paying jobs on 9.79 acres. The north 
extent of the site will house the office, warehouse and maintenance shop; to the south side of 
the building an open canopy for returning equipment inspections. More intense uses are oriented 
toward the rear of the building. There will be three (3) access points from 7th Avenue North. The 
westernmost entrance is for passenger vehicles only. The architecture is generally Modern and 
faces 7th Avenue North. Buffering tools include a precast six (6) foot concrete wall to the south 
and west. The eastern boundary will have a chain link fence. Hedging is also included along the 
western edge of the property 

In response, rebuttal to Mr. Hiatt’s comments, she offers the following information as shown on 
an email: 

• On October 19, 2020-When asked to meet, Mr. Hiatt mentioned there would be no point 
in meeting with the applicant as he would never approve. His interest would be in having 
a larger project that would increase the value of his property. 

• December 4 – when questioned what the objections were; 

• December 5 – she was informed that they don’t want our type of mess on the western 
boundary. 

• December 30- from Thomas Baird asking applicant to postpone this meeting. Ms. Reves 
has offered to meet with everyone up until the time of this meeting and has been rejected 
on each occasion. 

• Displays a photo taken@ December 30 through the fence from Mr. Hiatt’s southern 
property 3694 23rd Ave S toward the Eastern Metal property depicting the exact use he is 
complaining about. Mentions there is an upcoming magistrate hearing with Mr. Hiatt’s 
property on the docket. 

• Displays a copy of the certificate of mailing showing both of Mr. Hiatt’s properties received 
notification. 

Presiding Vice Chair: Affected parties presentations shall now be heard. 

Affected Party Mr. Hiatt: Having owned the property for 30 years, states the proposed use is 
not fitting in this Light Industrial area. It is a recycling center with dirty trucks in a small area. 
Pressure cleaning,  sand and cement. Investigated the Pompano Beach site. Asked staff if they 
had driven down and investigated the Pompano site The presentation does not accurately reflect 
the activity  west of I-95 in Pompano Beach, it is a mud pit. This property needs someone to 



come in de-muck and clean up the soil contaminates and build some industrial buildings to 
generate tax base. They will most likely erect a lean-to, never generate any tax base, not 
planning on de-mucking just building over the dumpsite not going to properly develop. It all boils 
down to a truck stop and a garage. Small buildings, nothing but a nuisance. Going to need all 
the space 254 feet between his building and to the west to store all their junk. A six (6) foot fence 
cannot obscure a thirty (30) foot building. Did staff look at the site in Pompano or google the site 
in New Jersey which looks like a cesspool? They will do what they want. Believes the 50 jobs it 
is bringing is proportionally too small, in comparison to the 50 jobs in his buildings on less 
acreage. It is the last piece of prime industrial land and will become a nuisance. Mentions the 
Boutwell Road improvements and general improvement of the area. States they are buying at a 
discount because de-mucking is costly. The lake allows them to build what they want. Cleaning 
steel forms is messy and usually done with petrol based cleaning agents which will happen 
outside. Regarding his magistrate hearing, the city has suspended all code inspections on the 
interior and haven’t gotten their annual thing. How will the pallets be secured prior to a hurricane? 
It would be better placed in the western communities of Palm Beach County or St. Lucie or Indian 
River counties. 

Mr. George Garamy - States the aerial view of other sites do not correlate to the video. Does not 
show how the forms are cleaned. The traffic impacts will be enormous in addition to the cement 
dust and discharge into the canal. Eastern Metal takes everything inside during a hurricane, has 
concerns this might be difficult for the applicant to do, will it be taken in, strapped down or 
become flying missiles? It is incumbent upon the City to get the most bang for the buck for tax 
purposes, this development proposal seems to be less than half the potential. Is the discharge 
stormwater or treated water? Mentions to the northeast of the property, along Boutwell Road, 
new apartments are approved and anticipated to be built. 

Christina Morrison – Manages the Marlin Commerce Center Condominiums to the east of the 
site. How can an accessory use (outside storage) be bigger than the structure, twice the size of 
the  building? She and her tenants work very hard to keep their building clean and neat. Outdoor 
storage of that size in proximity to their building is concerning. It has not been disclosed what is 
being stored there.  Outdoor storage typically involves run-off and trash. What are the activities? 
Regarding the cleaning of construction equipment, the applicants stated only water will be used 
but other sites use chemicals to clean the concrete off the equipment so why is this site different 
in that it will not use chemicals? How can damage be precluded or avoided? Joins the other 
affected parties in their concerns regarding dirt, dust and noise. This project limits the ability of 
the city to generate substantial taxes with an underdeveloped site. Does not meet the criteria for 
a conditional use approval in the City since these issues have not be addressed. The 
surrounding businesses are all clean, quiet businesses. Please deny the application. 

Public Comment: Comments were received from the following and read into the record. 

Carolyn Zara- 626 Koogle Road Mansfield Ohio, (no property owned in that name in Palm Beach 
County) – Expresses concerns against the proposal. 

One Real Estate Investment LLC – 888 Brickell Ave. Miami, FL -Owners of Oakwood Apartments 
to the south of the proposed project – against the proposal. 

Elise Crohn -402 Elizabeth Road – west of the proposed project – unincorporated Palm Beach 
County – against the proposal. 

Speaking on their own behalf: 



Robert Pouncey - President of Marlin Commerce Center Condominium the proposed height at 
31 feet is not conducive to maintaining property values. The six (6) foot chain link fence will not 
help with the unsightly view from their second-floor windows when they have clients present. 
The video is impressionable but it doesn’t reflect the businesses around these areas. Has 
concerns about the waterways. Not conducive for the businesses in his building. Please deny 
the site plan at this time, there are far more lucrative projects that could go at this location. 

Seth Malumut – Does not know that he would object to the project but is in need of additional 
information. The Board should consider asking for additional materials/information such as traffic 
studies and to address the concerns that have been raised. 

Attorney Neil Schiller of Saul Ewing, Arnstein & Lehr- Co-Council for the applicant: 

Questions to A. Meyer: 

• Is the parcel zoned Industrial?  

A. Meyer confirms the zoning is Industrial Park of Commerce and the future land use is Industrial. 

• Did staff find, after reviewing the staff reports and studies, that the proposal meets or 
exceeds all city requirements? 

 A. Meyer confirms that it is consistent with the City Land Development Regulations. 

Questions to Louis Goldberg:  

• Please explain how the forms are cleaned. Mr. Goldberg defers to Jared Wright, 
Southeast Operations Director.   

Jared Wright – Oversees the owned facility in Atlanta and leased property in Pompano Beach. 
At the Pompano site, adjacent (unpaved) properties cause dust and/or mud runoff onto the 
asphalt resulting in a constant battle. In the DOKA owned facilities, the forms are cleaned indoors 
with the water captured in the recyclinator or discharged per local code.  

• What is the difference between Pompano Beach and this facility? 

Night and day, everything is exposed in Pompano, unlike the enclosed Atlanta facility which is 
how they like to operate. 

• Talk about the New Jersey facility. 

It is not a DOKA owned facility, that is also a leased facility. It is difficult to find land to purchase 
and develop in that area. 

• Speak to the hurricane plan for this site.  

Several days prior, everything lightweight is moved inside, heavier items are stacked on top of 
things that aren’t moved inside keeping in mind that most items are well in excess of 100 lbs.. 
With the four (4) hurricanes that have come through, there have been no problems or issues 
with things flying around. 

Questions to George Balaban P.E. of Kimley-Horn 

• Give your expert opinion about the drainage. 

The facility will have over 2,000 linear feet of exfiltration trench all over the property prior to 
discharge into the canal. It is more than sufficient drainage. South Florida Water Management 
and Lake Worth Drainage District both require permits. 

Questions to Jared Wright-  



• Discuss the traffic in Pompano Beach and Atlanta and what will happen at this site.  

It takes nearly 45 minutes to unload a truck, at 10 trucks per day, that equates to a full day. On 
average they process about 10 trucks per day (5-6 departing and 4 arriving), it could be as 
high as 15 but that would be extreme. That would be an entire full working day with two (2) 
crews. 

• Since we’ve heard about serving as the hub for the entire state of Florida, is it still the 
same 15 trucks? 

The site will serve primarily the areas from the Tampa/Orlando and south. The panhandle is 
served by Atlanta due to proximity, so the entire state will not be served by this site. 

• How long have you been with DOKA? 

Eighteen years. 

Attorney Neil Schiller advised the Presiding Vice Chair that Jared Wright should be identified 
as an expert witness in the operations of DOKA. 

Questions to Adam Kerr – Traffic Engineer of Kimley-Horn 

Adam Kerr – Traffic study was prepared, utilizing the approved rates by Palm Beach County 
and City of Lake Worth it will not be a significant increase or impact. As the site is in the 
Industrial Park of Commerce, it is also a (TCEA)Traffic Concurrency Exception Area meaning 
impacts have already been taken into account. 

For the record all the evidence presented tonight has been through competent substantial 
evidence, which is the standard in quasi-judicial hearings, expressed through the testimony of 
the witnesses and the staff report. 

Questions to Mr. Hiatt- 

• Is it not true we spoke on Monday? Response: Yes 

• In the conversation to address your objections and concerns, is it not true we, along 
with the client, agreed to meet  and speak before or after this meeting? 

Mr. Hiatt: Don’t lead me, here’s what happened. I suggested a postponement. 

Attorney Neil Schiller: Again, is it not true we agreed to meet and speak? Response: No 

Attorney Neil Schiller: Respectfully, that’s not true. I did offer to meet with you. 

Cross examination is leading. You will have your opportunity for the same. 

Is it not true you also previously objected to projects on this site?  Response: Yes 

Affected Parties Questions for applicant and staff: 

Questions from Mr. Hiatt - Did anyone from City staff from William Waters all the way down, 
visit the Pompano Beach site? 

Response: Staff did not travel to Pompano Beach, review was based on the submittal 
documents. 

Did anyone do a Google earth search to view an aerial of the site? 

Response: The application and materials including a traffic study, site plan, landscape plan 
and other technical requirements were the basis for the recommendation. It was based upon 
the technical analysis.  



Does anyone know when the site was annexed into the City? 

Director for Community Sustainability: It was annexed into the City about 2004-2006. 

Mr. Hiatt: County zoning granted it light industrial park, original owners were told nothing would 
change and they would be protected from these types of uses. In looking at the Plat that was 
approved back in the late 80’s, he understands now that it is annexed it may be different, but 
thought it would remain light industrial. Has carpet layers, electricians, antique restoration, 
service people who live and work in the city. States the Board members were present for the 
recycling center proposal and doesn’t even know why they are considering approving this 
project. 

Board: The Board hasn’t taken any action yet.  

Mr. Hiatt states he is referring to staff. 

Director for Community Sustainability: Prior to 2013 the zoning was low traffic industrial with 
much more intrusive, and intense uses than what is now allowed.  Following three (3) years of 
review, initiated in 2010, it was rezoned in August of 2013. 

Mr. Hiatt to Attorney Lisa Reves of Saul Ewing, Arnstein & Lehr, Co-Council for the 
applicant- 

• Regarding his code violations, states the city is not coming out for inspections. 

Lisa Reves: asks if there is a question for her? It is credible to say she was merely bringing it 
to the Board’s attention. 

Mr. Hiatt questions the relevancy. L. Reves states it does have relevancy. 

Mr. Hiatt to Attorney N. Schiller- 

Received a call about Monday noon from Mr. Schiller.   

Attorney N. Schiller in returning his call at @ 4:14 pm, apologizes if it was not as expedient as 
Mr. Hiatt had hoped. Everyone swore under oath, he’ll take his word regarding who called who 
first and did not return calls.  He did speak to the applicant (client) who stated they could not 
afford another thirty (30) day delay further informing Mr. Hiatt he would make himself and his 
clients available on Tuesday, Wednesday morning as well as after this January 6 meeting.   

Mr. Hiatt acknowledges refusing the offer. The notice mailings and ordinance cause these 
problems. The Affected Party Ordinance took months to pass. 

Attorney N. Schiller states the notice issue is an important issue however Mr. Hiatt was just 
shown he had knowledge in September and October when L. Reves reached out to him. She 
reached out twice before the hearing. 

Director for Community Sustainability clarifies the process with regard to Compassionate 
Code – Use and Occupancy inspections have continued as usual, only the interior inspections 
are carried over to the next cycle. Exterior inspections remain the same. 

Mr. Garamy questions to Jared Wright: 

How large is the Lawrenceville Georgia site? Response:  It is a six (6) acre lot with a similar 
size building without the canopy. 

In observing the Georgia site, it does not have the amount of forms, but the New Jersey site 
has a lot of forms and framework.  How can there be that many trucks with less forms? 



Response: The Lawrenceville site stores overflow from the Atlanta site, the Pompano Beach 
site mirrors it in size and volume. 

Are the procedures the same from facility to facility? Response: the procedures are the same, 
the environment is different. 

Christina Morrison questions to applicant or staff-  

• Will the Pompano Beach site be closing? Respons: Yes.  

• Will the dust and dirt will be left in Pompano? Response: Yes, the difference being the 
buildings will not be open-air, they will be owning a fully enclosed property.  

• Why is it not being proposed as outdoor storage when the building is less than a third of 
the size? 

Attorney L. Reves- It is not the size of the outdoor storage that determines the primary use. 
The storage is secondary to the office, engineering, design, sales and management activities. 

Ms. Morrison renews her concerns about the proximity to clean uses. 

Mr. Pouncey would like to add/emphasize the unsightliness of the fence as well as traffic 
issues. All existing and additional traffic will be going to 7th Avenue North (without the benefit of 
a stoplight). The best would be to stay small, light industrial. 

Board members questions to applicants, affected parties and staff. 

J. Contin- With regard to the repeated issue of water quality, have there been any reports 
submitted?  

Staff: LWDD is a reviewer as well as SFWMD both requiring permits for discharge into the 
local waterways. City staff/ engineers have reviewed the plans for drainage. The exfiltration 
trench, in funneling into the lake will act as a secondary treatment which will then discharge to 
the waterway. Regarding PPM (parts per million) those entities are under the jurisdiction of the 
Florida Dept of Environmental Protection.  

J. Contin- Is there anything other than water utilized for concrete removal (in general) Jared 
Wright confirms only pressurized water is utilized. 

Staff: Staff has been notified by the State the applicant has agreed to remediate the existing 
brownfield site. The previous landfill will be remediated. 

J. Contin – Is pleased the applicant is willing. Neil Schiller- Some of the cleanup has begun. 

D. Tanner- how is the primary use determined? Is it based upon square footage? 

W. Waters- There isn’t a principal use of outdoor storage. Any outdoor storage regardless of 
size would be accessory to the principal use. For example, the parking of vehicles, whether 
employee cars or service trucks, would support and discharge the activities of the business 
thus making it an accessory use. Outdoor storage, in and of itself, does not occur on its own 
without a principal use. 

Attorney Lisa Reves clarifies any misunderstanding regarding the primary use which is: 
engineered formworks kept on-site and then shipped to the job.  The forms themselves are of 
no use without the engineering and design and office support. 

D. Tanner – The engineering and office work could be done offsite. There is no direct 
connection between the office and the storage. 

Attorney Lisa Reves -There is a direct connection. The engineering is performed here, the 
formwork is accessory to the main use of design and engineering work. 



D. Tanner-Regarding the clarification of using the chemicals to clean the forms. Mr. Wright 
states only water is used, all materials are galvanized or steel. 

D. Tanner – would the applicant be averse to increasing the barrier to minimalize the dust, 
noise or visual screening? A big concern is seeing what’s taking place, not an opaque barrier 
but  noticeably more buffer. 

Neil Schiller inquires of Louis Goldberg, the applicant/client, if he would be willing to go above 
the minimum requirements?  

Attorney Lisa Reves- The applicant has already gone above code with the six (6) foot 
concrete cast wall and landscaping in excess of code. 

Staff- The Condition of Approval will require the chain link fence, as depicted on the site plan, 
be an opaque fence or wall 6-8 feet in height.  

Staff- full shielding is not required per code.  

D. Tanner-asks if the height of the stored materials will be six feet or less? 

Mr. Wright states the allowed height is governed by the Fire Marshall. The height in Pompano 
is fifteen (15) feet and it is variable by county. 

D. Tanner – What are the specific imposed requirements by LWDD and SFWMD? 

George Balaban, P.E.- the total suspended solids and nutrients should be treated prior to 
discharge. Those activities occur throughout  the exfiltration trench and lake.  

D. Tanner – for concrete? George Balaban there is no specific mitigation for the concrete. 

D. Tanner- is it similar to marble/granite cutting? Mr. Wright – It’s captured in the inside trench i 
falls, dries and then is thrown away via roll off dumpsters. 

L. Starr - Does the E-4 connect to LW Lagoon (Intracoastal)? – Response: Yes, they are 
interconnected. 

George Balaban, P.E. – The trench is an 8x6 foot percolation trench, which also provides 
filtration prior to reaching the canal. There is triple the amount of filtration required. 

L. Starr– Is it monitored? George Balaban: Yes, in addition to renewing permits every five 5 
years, a report must be filed 

L. Starr – would the applicant be willing to do it more often? George Balaban- This is standard 
practice. 

L. Starr – What type of repair work is conducted?  Mr. Wright- Forms are metal with wood face,  
dents are pulled/ removed as well as repair to any damaged forms. 

L. Starr- Client is already remediating the site without owning? Response: Yes, with 
permissions of property owner 

L. Starr- what is the projected time frame for the project? 

Mr. Louis Goldberg - Environmental remediation- The plan is filed and proposed to the FDEP, 
realistically within 16-24 months. A lot of site work is required prior to construction, the property 
must be de-mucked, fill will be brought in and the canal banks will be stabilized with rip rap. 

L. Starr – Has there been a lot of environmental analysis on the property? 

Applicant Louis Goldberg- has spent a lot of money with testing and accessments. 

George Balaban, P.E. – Groundwater modeling will be required to ensure compliance. 



William Waters – Has received preliminary funding for Brownfield remediation.  Was contacted 
by Chris Burroughs to set up an advisory committee including Ms. Christina Morrison and Mr. 
Daniel Hiatt. In which case they would have been advised as early as September of last year 
that the property was about to undergo changes. 

Louis Goldberg wants to rehabilitate the site and for it to be as clean a  site as possible and will 
take the steps to be in compliance. Based on what is found when clearing, that will determine 
how it is handled. 

Board: L. Starr – Mr. Pouncey stated he had two (2) story units,  

Mr. Pouncey - Marlin Commerce Center is condo type construction. In his unit the north 
building next to the property. Although the site is overgrown right now. Ms. Reves showed a six 
(6) foot concrete wall that did not come to the adjacent property line. With the windows in the 
second floor, the view could be impactful. 

Neil Schiller states the Condition was already stated for an opaque fence of 6-8 feet per code 
with landscaping. 

Mr. Pouncey- It does not cover even with 6-8 feet in height; does not want to look at the big 
open field, from his northside of the building it would be at most 12 feet of landscape and 
Marlin Commerce Center fence.  

Lisa Reves states Laurel Live Oak Wax Myrtle and Cocoplum Hedge will compose the 
plantings in that area. There is a good bit of distance between that building and the storage. 

Staff: Mr. Pouncey’s building is situated roughly 100 foot east and 40 feet south of the property 
lines. 

Board: A. Marotta – For the city attorney – should the Board factor in the claims for not being 
the best tax use? Response: No 

The Sustainable Bonus is for just 1 foot in height to disguise the rooftop equipment. 

Confirmed that this the same site seen by Board @ year ago. 

Board: A. Marotta  to the Applicant -Mr. Hiatt stated in testimony this is nothing but a recycling 
facility, please address the concern. 

Neil Schiller-It is not a recycling facility, as he is attorney for Solid Waste Authority for PBC, he 
knows recycling. The dust and dirt are germane to the Pompano site due to the unique nature 
of the neighbors. It is a distortion of the truth to state it is a recycling center and an attempt to 
reflect negatively on the applicant and business. 

Louis Goldberg- Heard it referred to as a trash dump/recycling center. They are an 
international organization. It is imperative to know where everything is, to have it neat and 
orderly, it becomes difficult to be a successful operation. To say otherwise is a fabrication of 
the truth. 

Jonathan Haigh Landscape Architect for applicant- On the southeast property buffer there 
will be a hedge and smaller trees due to planting adjacent to power lines. Twelve feet in height 
at time of planting of Silver Buttonwood and Wax Myrtles. Please note the north wall of the 
building to the south is windowless and the sight cannot be seen from the building. 

Board: A. Marotta asks about the noise. Mr. Wright  responds- Forklift noise outside, the 
pressure washing and saw noise will be inside. The doors facing the storage yard will be open 
during hours. Louis Goldberg indicates the decibel levels will be well within City ordinance 
levels. Hours of operation will be 7-4:30 Monday to Friday occasionally on Saturday. 



Presiding Vice-Chair:  In 30 seconds or less from each of the affected parties, what type 
project on the site would they not object to? 
D. Hiatt- supported Goodwill building; nice buildings everywhere up and down Boutwell;          

G. Garamy – High-tech light industrial similar to what is in the Marlin Industrial Park. Increases 
tax base and protects his investment. 

C. Morrison – more light industrial, small bay users. The highest demand at this time. 

R. Pouncey – light industrial. This one takes up a lot of property and don’t want to look at it. 

Board: L. Starr -How many forklifts will be operating on the property? where will they be 
stored? Discuss the window view from Mr. Pouncey’s building. 

Mr. Wright- There will be eight to nine LP (not diesel) forklifts stored inside at night. 

Jonathan Haigh, Landscape Architect – The adjacent building does not have windows on 
the north or west side of the building. 

Board: L. Starr– Is that in reference to Mr. Pouncey’s building? She thought she heard him 
say he could see from the second floor. 

Mr. Pouncey – States he does not have a window in his unit. Other units face east and south. 
Cannot recall if there are windows on the northside. Perhaps Christina Morrison, Property 
Manager, can answer that question. 

Board: G. Rice – Wishes the coconut telegraph would work better; although people are very 
passionate, there can be misinformation.  The property does not belong to Lake Worth Beach, 
these are two (2) private entities. There is no CRA involvement so the tax dollars go to the city 
coffers. If the owner could get more money for he property he would certainly have done so. In 
the long run it will be for the betterment of Lake Worth Beach. They will certainly take care of 
their investment. Is confident the City will guard the wellbeing of the water as well as the 
Blueway Trail running the length of the county. 

Board: R. Lepa – Regarding environmental follow up every five years. From the drainage 
standpoint it is 5 years. Environmental monitoring occurs every quarter for a minimum of one 
year after which as required by Palm Beach County thereafter. How many jobs will be created 
or will those jobs be moving north? The concrete that is washed off, is it recycled or trashed? 

Mr. Wright- It will be trashed. They pay for removal (in roll off’s) Warehouse and Office jobs will 
be locally sourced.  

What will the tax base be once all is complete? 

Lisa Reves – Total capital investment 16 million. 

Board discussion: J. Contin -It is a positive move all things considered. Someone else would 
have already taken advantage of the site if there was interest. The brownfield cleanup is major 
plus as many do not have the means to do so. 

M. Humm- A bird in the hand is worth a couple in the bush. It is not as dirty of an operation as 
it was originally seemed. 

D. Tanner, L. Starr, G. Rice, B. Lepa ready to vote. 

A. Marotta – To get a brownfield off the books is great. It is not within Board purview to dictate  
what goes there. As previously stated, someone else would have already taken advantage. It’s 
not a skyscraper and might come down in 10-15 years and become something else. 



Motion: D. Tanner moves to approve PZB 20-01400035 with staff recommended Conditions, 
with the project meeting the applicable criteria based upon the data and analysis in the staff 
report; G. Rice 2nd. 

Vote: Ayes all, unanimous. 

5 minute break 10:09 pm to reconvene. 

 

B. PZHP 20-03100008 (Ordinance 2020-20): Consideration of an ordinance to Chapter 23 
“Land Development Regulations” regarding changes to temporary uses, home occupations 
and several minor modifications related to development standards for parking and 
accessory dwelling units, and maintenance easements on zero lot line properties. 

Staff: E. Sita presents an overview of the proposed changes to the Land Development 
Regulations. They include: 
Access easements for zero lot lines, review standards and permit processes for Temporary 
Uses, modifications to the Use Table, Clarification of Standards, Home Occupations in 
Mixed Use zoning districts, and off-street parking for accessory dwellings and in lieu of 
fees. 

Access easement for zero lot line lots allowing for a three (3) foot (Exhibit A & G) 

Temporary Use is a new section (Exhibit B) permits and administration. (Exhibit B) 

Use tables has been modified to include that section. (Exhibit C) 

Clarification of size and construction standards for accessory dwelling units. (Exhibit D) 

Home Occupations in Mixed Use districts only- additional flexibility; Type11 (Exhibit E) 

Clarifies the parking requirements for accessory dwelling units and the parking in lieu of fee is 
available for the City core ((only downtown (Exhibit F)). 

Board: J. Contin-asks for specifics on changes to Home Occupations? W. Waters states it 
was propelled by Covid-19 in finding more creative ways to accommodate working from 
home. The norm is no clients in the home. This would allow more flexibility within the 
Mixed-Use zoning district only at this time with possible future changes to other districts but 
not likely for Single-Family zoned districts. It would come with restrictions and limitations 
including the maximum percentage (square footage, no more than 50 % of the space) that 
could be utilized, would involve inspections. Examples: Accountant, Architect, Attorney, 
Media, Public Relations. Professional offices only, it is reflective of the current direction of 
the economy with regard to entrepreneurships who cannot afford a leased office. E. Sita 
adds that HOA’s and property management companies would continue to 
approve/disapprove the business types. 

 L. Starr – Restrictions on signage for business vehicles? Staff: Although silent in this 
section, it is governed in other areas of the code. 

 A. Marotta – regarding exhibit D- size of accessory dwelling unit and parking standards. 

W. Waters - The smallest size for a studio dwelling is 400 square feet. Housing code 
continues to prescribe minimum area size for sleeping and living areas. Accessory dwelling 
units are allowed everywhere except Single-Family zoning districts.  



Street parking is currently allowed to be counted towards parcel parking and would be 
allowed to count for the home occupations as well. William – it is in mixed use districts is 
due to already existing parking. The changes are not intended to supercede a HOA 

Motion: D. Tanner moves to recommend adoption of PZB 20-03000008 to City Commission; 
J. Contin 2nd. 

Vote: Ayes all, unanimously. 

 

PLANNING ISSUES: None 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (3 minute limit) None 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS: None 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: None 

ADJOURNMENT: Motion to adjourn J. Contin; D. Tanner 2nd.  10:36 pm 



 Attorneys at Law 
 llw-law.com 

 

 
JACKSONVILLE 
245 Riverside Ave., Suite 510 
Jacksonville, Florida 32202 
T: 904.353.6410 
F: 904.353.7619 

 

ST. PETERSBURG 
100 Second Ave., South 
Suite 501-S 
St. Petersburg, Florida 33701 
T: 727.245.0820 
F: 727.290.4057 

 
TALLAHASSEE 
315 South Calhoun St., Suite 830 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
T: 850.222.5702  
F: 850.224.9242 

 

TAMPA 
301 West Platt St. 
Suite 364 
Tampa, Florida 33606 
T: 813.775.2331 

 

 
WEST PALM BEACH 
515 North Flagler Dr., Suite 1500 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
T: 561.640.0820 
F: 561.640.8202 

  

See Things Differently® 

 

 
 

 
Reply To:   West Palm Beach 

 
 
February 14, 2021 
 
William Waters, Director of the Community Sustainability Department 
City of Lake Worth Beach 
7 North Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 
 
RE:  APPEAL BY AFFECTED PARTY MARLIN INDUSTRIAL PARK OWNERS’ ASSOCIATION INC. 
 PZB Project Number 20-01400035: Major Site Plan Approval, Bonus & Conditional Use Permit   
 
Dear Mr. Waters: 
 
We have been retained to represent the Marlin Industrical Park Owners Association and its 
representatives, George Garamy, President and Daniel Hiatt, Vice President  (“Petitioner” and 
“Petitioners”). Mr. Garamy has filed for this appeal on behalf of  Marlin Industiral Park, which is located 
at 2209 7th Avenue North in the City of Lake Worth Beach.  Marlin Industrial Park is adjacent to the east 
side of the mixed-use project that is the subject of PZB Project Number 20-01400035 (“Project”).   
 
The Project was initially scheduled for a hearing on  December 2, 2020 before the decision-making body, 
the City’s Planning and Zoning Board (“Board”).  Since the Board did not satisfy the quorum 
requirements for its December meeting, City staff postponed all items on the meeting agenda to the 
Board’s next regularily scheduled meeting on January 6, 2021.  The Petitioners were recognized by the 
City as  affected parties and presented evidence at the January 6th  hearing. The Board issued its written 
decision approving the Project on January 15, 2021.   The Petitioner filed a Notice of Appeal within 14 
days as required by the City’s Code. This letter is the basis for the appeal, which is required 30 days after 
the Board issues its written decision.     
 
As an initial matter, it must be noted that Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. (“Applicant”) has not met the 
requirements to do business in the State of Florida.  Applicant is a foregin corporation based out of New 
Jersey. Section 607.1501(1), Florida Statutes requires all foreign corporations transacting business in 
Florida to obtain a certificate of authority from the state.  There is no evidence in the record that the 
Applicant has received the required certificate of authority. It is a matter of public record that the 
Applicant is not listed as an active business on the Florida Division of Corporations website (Sunbiz.org). 
The Applicant submitted its application to the City on August 12, 2020.  Therefore, the Applicant’s 
communications with the City with respect to this application have exceeded 30 days and constitute the 



 
 
February 14, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 

01252875-1   

transaction of business within the meaning of the statute. Any further communciations between the City 
and Applicant must cease until Applicant obtains a certificate of authority from the State of Florida.  For 
this reason alone, this application should be remanded to the Planning & Zoning Board for a new 
hearing, but only unless and until Applicant has registered to do business in Florida, as required by the 
F.S. § 607.1501(1).  
 
A summary of the basis of the Petitioner’s appeal is as follows. 
 

1. The Planning and Zoning Board’s decision to deny the Petitioner’s request for a continuance 
does not follow the essential requirements of the City’s Code   
 

The Board did not follow the required procedures for continuing a hearing as provided in section 23.2-
16 “Quasi-judicial procedures” (as amended by Ordinance 2020-14).  This section provides that the 
Board has the authority to continue a hearing and that hearings shall be continued by motion of the 
Board to a fixed time and place:   
 

g) Continuance. The decision-making body may, on its own motion, continue the 
hearing to a fixed date, time and place. Also, the applicant or affected party shall have 
the right to one (1) continuance provided the request is to address neighborhood 
concerns or new evidence, or to hire legal counsel  or a professional services consultant, 
or the applicant of affected party is unable to be represented at the hearing.  The 
decision-making body will continue hearing to a fixed date, time and place. However, 
all subsequent continuances shall be granted at the sole discretion of the decision-
making body. …  

 
On December 2, the Petitioner sent an email requesting a continuance of the hearing on this Project 
that was scheduled for the Board’s December meeting.  Petitioner is entitled to this continuance by 
right.  Nevertheless, the City’s Code requires the Board to continue hearings by motion.  There is good 
reason for this requirement.  When a board continues a hearing by motion, it creates a record of the 
requested continuance and provides notice to the public of the new hearing date.    
 
Here, the hearing that was scheduled for December 2, 2020 did not take place because the Board did 
not meet the quorum requirements for its meeting.   In response to its request for a continuance, the 
Petitioner received an email from the City Attorney advising the Petitioner that she consulted with 
Board members on their availability and that the hearing would be continued to the Board’s regular 
January 6, 2020.  (See e-mail attached as Exhibit A.) The City Attorney’s e-mail does not meet the 
requirements for granting the Petitioner, an affected party, a continuance as required by the City’s code 
as noted above. Furthermore, the letter does not include a fixed time and place as required by the City’s 
code. The City Attorney’s e-mail was merely an administrative rescheduling of the December 2 Board 
meeting which was cancelled for lack of a quorum.  The fact that the hearing was postponed for lack of a 
quorum does not substitute for or satisfy Petitioners’ right to a continuance under the City’s Code.  
 
However, despite the fact that the Petitioner was entitled to a continuance by right at the January 6th  
Board meeting, the Board made a motion to deny the Petitioner’s request for a continuance. Thus, it did 
not follow the essential requirements of the City’s code.  In addition, the Board’s failure to grant 



 
 
February 14, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 

01252875-1   

Petitioner a continuance as provided by the City’s Code was a violation of the Petitioner’s due process 
rights.  For this reason, the Project approval must be rescinded, and the Project application must be 
remanded to the Board for a new hearing, where Petitioner will be properly represented by Counsel.   
 

2. Site circulation and building placement will result in significant adverse impacts to the 
Petitioners’ property which will reduce its value  

 
The Applicant failed to meet its burden to show by competent substantial evidence that it meets all site 
design qualitative standards as required by Section 23.2-31 of the Lake Worth Beach Code.  Specifically, 
it failed to provide sufficient evidence that the site design met the development standards that loading 
and vehicular circulation areas be located, designed and screened to minimize the impact of noise, glare 
and odor on the Petitioner’s adjacent property as required by Section 23.2-31(c)(11). It also failed to 
provide sufficient evidence that the site design would not have a negative impact on the value of 
Petitioner’s property as required by Section 23.2-31(c)(13).   
 
Daniel Hiatt testified that the site design, which directed all large truck traffic to the interior roadway on 
the eastern edge of the Project, would result in significant adverse impacts to the Marlin Industrial Park 
which is directly adjacent to this interior roadway.  He also testified that the proposed screening 
material on the eastern property line of the Project was not a sufficient buffer to minimize the noise and 
odors emitted by the large trucks anticipated to be circulating on the site.  In fact, the Applicant’s 
operations manager, Jared Wright, testified that the number of trucks entering the site would be up to 
10 a day, which means that trucks would be passing behind the tenants who are renting out bays on 
Petitioner’s property on an hourly basis.     

 
The Applicant provided no evidence as to how it intended to mitigate the noise and odor from the great 
number of trucks anticipated to be used in their operations.  The Applicant’s representative Lisa Reves 
testified that a buffer was not required on the eastern property line since the noise would not be an 
issue for the Petitioner’s tenants. Ms. Reves statement was based on an engineer’s report attached to 
the Applicant’s December 18th letter to the City. (See attached as Exhibit B.) However, the engineer’s 
report is limited to the sound of forklifts only.  It does not address noise from the truck traffic.  In fact, 
the noise thermometer attached to the engineer’s report indicates that the noise resulting from a diesel 
truck accelerating is 114 dB, which is categorized as “extremely loud”.  Therefore, the Applicant’s own 
evidence supports a finding that the site plan design does not provide sufficient buffer from the noise 
and odor anticipated from the truck traffic.  
 
In addition, City staff did not provide sufficient evidence that the design of the site plan would help 
minimize the negative impacts to the Petitioner’s property.  City staff’s analysis of the Project’s impacts 
of noise, glare, odors, and property values was limited to the single-family and multi-family residences 
to the west and south of the Project. (See Staff report, Page 7.)    City staff testified that a condition was 
added to the Project to require the Applicant to install fencing 6 to 8 feet in height made of opaque 
material on the eastern property line to screen the view of the outdoor storage area. However, City staff 
did not impose any conditions that would help buffer the noise and odor from the truck traffic, such as 
additional landscaping or a concrete wall consistent with screening materials added to the Project’s 
western or southern property lines. The noise and odor from the constant procession of large trucks so 
close to the Marlin Industrial Park will significantly reduce the value of Petitioner’s property.   



 
 
February 14, 2021 
Page 4 
 
 

01252875-1   

3. Conditions imposed on the Conditional Use Permit are not sufficient to not mitigate the 
significant adverse impacts of the Project   

 
The Applicant failed to meet its burden to show by competent substantial evidence that it meets all the 
required findings for approval of a conditional use permit as required by Section 23.2.-29 of the City’s 
Code. The City’s Code states that conditional uses are deemed to carry the potential for adverse impacts 
and can only be approved if all the required specific findings set forth in Section 23.2-29(e) have been 
met. Specifically, the Applicant failed to meet its burden to prove it met the required findings regarding 
the adverse impacts of noise and air pollution.  
 
Code section 23.2-29(e)(3) requires that the conditional use will not produce significant air pollution 
emissions. Staff relied on the Applicant’s statement that no fabrication or manufacturing would occur on 
site to conclude that the Project was not anticipated to produce significant air pollution emissions. (See 
Staff report, Page 11.)  However, Petitioner George Garamy provided competent substantial evidence 
that the Applicant’s operations are anticipated to produce air pollution in the form of excessive dust.  
Mr. Garamy  testified that he had viewed satellite images of Applicant’s similar operations in North 
America, including Pompano Beach, New Jersey, and Atlanta, and that these images showed that the 
pavement of the storage yards is covered with dust and that the dust is carried out to the surrounding 
roadways when the trucks leave the facilities.  The fact that the dust was visible on a satellite image 
indicates that the amount of dust created by the Project operations is substantial.  Neither City staff nor 
the Applicant refuted Mr. Garamy’s testimony. In fact, the Applicant’s operation manager, Jared 
Wright, admitted that its facility in Pompano Beach is “a mess”.  Instead of taking appropriate action 
to clean up the Pompano Beach facility, the Applicant simply stated that the proposed facility will be 
better.  But in light of their poor performance in Pompano Beach, what assurance does the City have 
that operations in Lake Worth Beach will be any better?  Absolutely none. Based on the testimony of 
Mr. Garamy and Mr. Wright, the Board could not have made a finding that the proposed use will not 
produce significant air pollution emissions.     
 
Secondly, Code Section 23.2-29(e)(7) requires that the conditional use will not generate significant noise 
or will include conditions to mitigate the anticipated noise and meet all the requirements of the City 
Code related to unreasonable noise in Section 15.24.  This section defines unreasonable noise as 
between 65 dba and 85 dba depending on the time and requires noise to be measured from the curb or 
property line closest to the source of noise with a 30-second reading using an  A-weighted filter or a 
C-weighted filter, constructed in accordance with the specifications of the American National 
Standards Institute.  The engineer’s report provided by the Applicant regarding the noise impacts (see 
above) is limited to forklift operations only and does not state whether the study conforms to the City 
requirements. In its analysis, City staff concluded that the Project was appropriately conditioned to 
prohibit generating noise levels that exceeded the levels required for unreasonable noise. (See City 
staff report, Page 12.) Yet, without an appropriate measurement as to the general level of noise to be 
generating from all of the Project’s operations, not just forklift use, it would be impossible for staff to 
define conditions adequate to mitigate the anticipated noise.  
 
 
 
 



 
 
February 14, 2021 
Page 5 
 
 

01252875-1   

4. The Project is not consistent with the goals of the City’s comprehensive plan or strategic plan    
 

The Applicant failed to meet its burden to show by competent substantial evidence that the Project was 
consistent with the goals of the City’s comprehensive plan to create a quality industrial park in the area 
or with the goals of the City’s strategic plan to create jobs and a stable tax base.   
 
Mr. Hiatt testified that in his opinion as a commercial landowner in Lake Worth Beach, the Project site 
was underdeveloped and ultimately deprived the City of potential tax revenue.  In support of his 
opinion, Mr. Hiatt stated that he owns multi-unit buildings that are between 15,000 and 20,000 square 
feet each.  Each one of these buildings has 10 to 15 small businesses which contribute to the City’s tax 
base.  He also testified that he owns several one-acre sites that contain buildings approximately 15,000 
square feet in size.  There are approximately 50 to 60 people working in each of these buildings.  Based 
on Mr. Hiatt’s testimony, ten acres of industrially zoned land in the City can create up to 600 jobs when 
developed to its full potential.  In contrast, the Applicant testified that the Project, which consists of a 
ten-acre site, would create only 50 jobs.  This is much less than the site’s potential.  Therefore, the 
Project is not consistent with the City’s goals to create jobs and a stable tax base.    
 
For the reasons noted herein, the City Council should 1) rescind the Board’s denial of the Petitioner’s 
request for a continuance, 2) rescind the Board’s Development Order for the Project, and 3) remand the 
Project application to a new hearing before the Planning and Zoning Board, at which Petitioners may be 
represented by the undersigned legal counsel and retain experts to further support the basis to deny the 
subject application. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Alfred Malefatto, Esq. and Janice Rustin, Esq.  
Counsel for Petitioner 



 

01448808-1   

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
From: Pamala Ryan 
Sent: Friday, December 4, 2020 1:54 PM 
To: Erin Sita; Daniel Hiatt 
Cc: Sherie Coale 
Subject: RE: PBZ PROJECT #20-01400035  
 

Good afternoon. I have consulted with staff who has consulted with board members on 
availability and the hearing will be continued to the regular January 6, 2020 meeting.  Please 
feel free to advise staff (or me through your attorney, if appropriate) if you have any questions 
regarding your status as an affected party.   
 
Have a good weekend. 
 
Pamala H. Ryan 

Board Certified in City County & Local Govt. Law 

 

TORCIVIA, DONLON & 

GODDEAU, P.A. 

Northpoint Corporate Center 

701 Northpoint Parkway, Suite 209 

West Palm Beach, FL 33407 

(561) 686-8700 

(561) 686-8764 fax 
pryan@torcivialaw.com 

www.torcivialaw.com 

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS TRANSMISSION IS ATTORNEY PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL.  IT IS INTENDED ONLY 

FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY NAMED ABOVE.  IF THE READER OF THIS MESSAGE IS NOT THE INTENDED 

RECIPIENT, YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION OR COPYING OF THIS COMMUNICATION IS 

STRICTLY PROHIBITED.  IF YOU HAVE RECEIVED THIS COMMUNICATION IN ERROR, PLEASE NOTIFY US IMMEDIATELY BY 

TELEPHONE COLLECT AND RETURN THE ORIGINAL MESSAGE TO US AT THE ABOVE ADDRESS VIA THE U.S. POSTAL 

SERVICE.  WE WILL REIMBURSE YOU FOR YOUR EXPENSES. THANK YOU. 

 
 
 
From: Pamala Ryan  
Sent: Wednesday, December 02, 2020 6:05 PM 
To: Erin Sita <esita@LakeWorthBeachfl.gov>; Daniel Hiatt <danielhiatt@bellsouth.net> 
Cc: William Waters <wwaters@lakeworthbeachfl.gov>; Sherie Coale <scoale@lakeworthbeachfl.gov> 
Subject: RE: PBZ PROJECT #20-01400035  
 

mailto:pryan@torcivialaw.com
mailto:esita@LakeWorthBeachfl.gov
mailto:danielhiatt@bellsouth.net
mailto:scoale@lakeworthbeachfl.gov
mailto:pryan@torcivialaw.com
http://www.torcivialaw.com/
mailto:esita@LakeWorthBeachfl.gov
mailto:danielhiatt@bellsouth.net
mailto:wwaters@lakeworthbeachfl.gov
mailto:scoale@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


 

01448808-1   

Mr. Hiatt, so that there is no confusion, the city is looking at advertising the hearing for either 
December 16, 2020 or January 6, 2020.  We will advise you tomorrow but that gives you time to 
hire legal counsel. Thank you. 
 
Pamala H. Ryan 

Board Certified in City County & Local Govt. Law 

 

TORCIVIA, DONLON & 

GODDEAU, P.A. 

Northpoint Corporate Center 

701 Northpoint Parkway, Suite 209 

West Palm Beach, FL 33407 

(561) 686-8700 

(561) 686-8764 fax 
pryan@torcivialaw.com 

www.torcivialaw.com 

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS TRANSMISSION IS ATTORNEY PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL.  IT IS INTENDED ONLY 

FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY NAMED ABOVE.  IF THE READER OF THIS MESSAGE IS NOT THE INTENDED 

RECIPIENT, YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION OR COPYING OF THIS COMMUNICATION IS 

STRICTLY PROHIBITED.  IF YOU HAVE RECEIVED THIS COMMUNICATION IN ERROR, PLEASE NOTIFY US IMMEDIATELY BY 

TELEPHONE COLLECT AND RETURN THE ORIGINAL MESSAGE TO US AT THE ABOVE ADDRESS VIA THE U.S. POSTAL 

SERVICE.  WE WILL REIMBURSE YOU FOR YOUR EXPENSES. THANK YOU. 

 
 
 
From: Pamala Ryan  
Sent: Wednesday, December 02, 2020 5:54 PM 
To: Erin Sita <esita@LakeWorthBeachfl.gov>; Daniel Hiatt <danielhiatt@bellsouth.net> 
Cc: William Waters <wwaters@lakeworthbeachfl.gov>; Sherie Coale <scoale@lakeworthbeachfl.gov> 
Subject: RE: PBZ PROJECT #20-01400035  
 

Mr. Hiatt,  
 
The city is in receipt of your request.  Are you stating that you did not get notice via US mail 
although courtesy notice was delivered in accordance with the city’s code?  It is my 
understanding that your property manager, Christina Morrison, was aware no later than 
November 25, 2020 when she sent an email to city staff requesting the staff report. Under the 
code, an affected party must give five days’ notice.   
 
Having said that the city will continue this case to no later than January 6, 2020.  A date is being 
determined now and you will be notified expeditiously via email, mail and legal notice.  The city 
will send you an affected party status form for either you or your attorney to fill out.  
 
Thank you.  

mailto:pryan@torcivialaw.com
http://www.torcivialaw.com/
mailto:esita@LakeWorthBeachfl.gov
mailto:danielhiatt@bellsouth.net
mailto:wwaters@lakeworthbeachfl.gov
mailto:scoale@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


 

01448808-1   

 
Pamala H. Ryan 

Board Certified in City County & Local Govt. Law 

 

TORCIVIA, DONLON & 

GODDEAU, P.A. 

Northpoint Corporate Center 

701 Northpoint Parkway, Suite 209 

West Palm Beach, FL 33407 

(561) 686-8700 

(561) 686-8764 fax 
pryan@torcivialaw.com 

www.torcivialaw.com 

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS TRANSMISSION IS ATTORNEY PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL.  IT IS INTENDED ONLY 

FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY NAMED ABOVE.  IF THE READER OF THIS MESSAGE IS NOT THE INTENDED 

RECIPIENT, YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION OR COPYING OF THIS COMMUNICATION IS 

STRICTLY PROHIBITED.  IF YOU HAVE RECEIVED THIS COMMUNICATION IN ERROR, PLEASE NOTIFY US IMMEDIATELY BY 

TELEPHONE COLLECT AND RETURN THE ORIGINAL MESSAGE TO US AT THE ABOVE ADDRESS VIA THE U.S. POSTAL 

SERVICE.  WE WILL REIMBURSE YOU FOR YOUR EXPENSES. THANK YOU. 

 
 
From: Erin Sita [mailto:esita@LakeWorthBeachfl.gov]  
Sent: Wednesday, December 02, 2020 4:51 PM 
To: Daniel Hiatt <danielhiatt@bellsouth.net> 
Cc: Pamala Ryan <pryan@torcivialaw.com>; William Waters <wwaters@lakeworthbeachfl.gov> 
Subject: RE: PBZ PROJECT #20-01400035  
 
Thank you Mr. Hiatt, I received your request and have forwarded it onto our board attorney. 
 
 
Erin F. Sita, AICP 
Assistant Director | Community Sustainability Department 

 
City of Lake Worth Beach 
1900 Second Avenue North 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 
V: 561-586-1617 
esita@lakeworthbeachfl.gov 

www.lakeworthbeachfl.gov 
 
Departmental Operating Hours 

mailto:pryan@torcivialaw.com
http://www.torcivialaw.com/
mailto:esita@LakeWorthBeachfl.gov
mailto:danielhiatt@bellsouth.net
mailto:pryan@torcivialaw.com
mailto:wwaters@lakeworthbeachfl.gov
mailto:esita@lakeworthbeachfl.gov
http://www.lakeworthbeachfl.gov/


 

01448808-1   

Monday – Friday 8:00 am – 4:00 pm 
 
“We are LAKE WORTH BEACH. A hometown City that is committed to delivering 
the highest level of customer service through a commitment to integrity, hard 
work and a friendly attitude. We strive to exceed the expectations of our 
citizens, our businesses, our elected officials and our fellow employees.” 
 
 
 
From: Daniel Hiatt <danielhiatt@bellsouth.net>  
Sent: Wednesday, December 2, 2020 4:47 PM 
To: Erin Sita <esita@LakeWorthBeachfl.gov> 
Subject: PBZ PROJECT #20-01400035  
 
Caution: This is an external email. Do not click links or open attachments from unknown or unverified 
sources.  

 
 

 
Dear Ms  Sita 
 
I would like to apply for affected party status on the above named project ( PZB # 20-01400035) 
 
I also would like to request a minimum of a 30 day postponement on this matter. 
 
My property is directly east of the subject property. Located @ 3599 23rd Ave South, Lake Worth Fl. 
 
LOT # 7 MARLIN INDUSTRIAL PARK. 
 
Thank You Daniel W. Hiatt.  561-389-1989 
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 10 
 
 
 

mailto:danielhiatt@bellsouth.net
mailto:esita@LakeWorthBeachfl.gov
https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


 
 

 
 

 
EXHIBIT B 



 

Lisa Reves 
Phone: 561.833.9800 

         Lisa.reves@saul.com 
www.saul.com 

 

 

515  N.  F lag le r  Dr ive    Su i te  1400    Wes t  Pa lm Beach ,  FL 33401  

Phone :  (561)  833-9800    Fax :  (561)  655-5551 

D E L A W A R E   F L O R ID A   I L L I N O IS   M A R Y L A N D   M A S S A C H U S E T T S   N E W  J E R S E Y   N E W  Y O R K   P E N N S Y L V A N I A   W A S H I N G T O N ,  D C  

A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP 
37878515.2.doc 

December 18, 2020 

William Waters, Director 
Community Sustainability 
1900 Second Avenue North 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 
 
Mr. Waters, 
 
Thank you for forwarding the comments and concerns received from business owners and 
residents regarding Umdasch/Doka’s development application. Upon review of those comments 
and concerns, it is apparent that there is a misconception about the proposed use of the site and I 
appreciate the opportunity to clarify the issues. 
 

USE OF SITE 
 

Doka USA Ltd., is an international leader in developing, manufacturing and distributing 
formwork technology for use in all fields of construction. While the activities at our property 
have been outlined in our application, we appreciate the opportunity to elaborate on the activities 
proposed for the Lake Worth Beach facility. The proposed site utilization has three main 
components: office operations, yard operations and maintenance facilities.   
 
The office operations houses our engineers, sales, operations, logistics and management staff.  It 
is here that Doka engineers design formwork to accomplish our clients construction goals.  
 
Once our engineers complete a design, yard operations utilize a forklift to gather and load the 
necessary equipment, from our storage yard onto trucks for transportation to construction sites.  
Trucks access the site from 7th Avenue North approximately 850 feet from the Oakwood 
Apartments to the south of the site and in excess of 510 feet to the properties to the west of the 
E-3 Canal.  The loading and unloading of equipment can take up to an hour to complete. 
Therefore, truck engines are required to be turned off during the loading and unloading process.  
It is anticipated that this facility will load ten to fifteen trucks daily.   
 
 Once the construction is complete the equipment is received and inspected by yard operations.  
Items returning from a jobsite, are unloaded in a designated area near the warehouse where they 
are timely inspected and any maintenance, repair and/or cleaning of the formwork is performed 
within the warehouse before being returned to the storage yard.  
 



December 18, 2020 
Page 2 
 
 

37878515.2.doc 

This facility is not proposing a retail business, so there will be minimal foot traffic and vehicles 
accessing the site will be limited to employees and trucks transporting the formwork to and from 
jobsites.  
 

POLLUTANTS 
 

A number of comments and concerns received, included the concern that the chemicals used for 
cleaning the formwork will runoff into the pond and drain into the E -3 Canal.  Cleaning of the 
formwork does not include the use of chemicals only water and a pressure washer.  Moreover, 
formwork cleaning, runoff, and drainage of any water will be done in strict accordance with the 
rules and regulations of the City of Lake Worth Beach, the Lake Worth Drainage District, Palm 
Beach County and the State of Florida.  Doka’s operation does not use or generate any hazardous 
substances.   
 
Doka takes pride in its operations and that pride includes the cleanliness of our sites.  Our 
facilities  generate very little debris or refuse and all refuse is collected in trash receptacles (as 
noted on site plan) and collected per local trash collection regulations.  Contrary to some of the 
comments and concerns received by the city, Doka has not become the international leader in 
formwork by running a “junkyard”.  To the contrary, it is imperative for  Doka to run its 
operation and storage yard in a clean and orderly fashion, so material can be readily identified 
and loaded  onto trucks.  
 
The storage yard has a paved surface which allows the forklifts to operate efficiently and will 
keep dust levels to a minimum.  Additionally, the inventory stored outside is neatly stacked in 
rows so that it is easily accessible for future jobs. 
 
The following photographs are aerial of Doka’s Baltimore and Houston facilities, respectively 
and demonstrate the standard by which Doka maintains its sites. 
 

 



December 18, 2020 
Page 3 
 
 

37878515.2.doc 

 
 

 
 

NOISE 

There should be very little noise intrusion from our operations.  Forklifts will operate within 
required sound parameters set forth by the City of Lake Worth Beach. All maintenance is 
performed within the warehouse and will not impact surrounding properties.  Further, attached 
hereto, is a memorandum from Jesse Cokeley, a licensed engineer, outlining his research 
regarding forklift operation and the noise created on site, all of which fall within the acceptable 
noise level range for the City of Lake Worth Beach.   
 

SITE LIGHTING 
 
Doka is proposing business hours from 7:30 a.m. until 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and if 
needed Saturdays 7:30 a.m. until noon.  Since the hours of operation are daylight hours there is 
not a need for a large amount of site lighting but, Doka is working with both an engineer and the 
city to design a lighting plan that will not be disruptive to the surrounding properties and will be 
acceptable to the City of Lake Worth Beach.   
 

CANOPY 
 

The outdoor canopy area will be used for storage of items that require protection from inclement 
weather such as plywood and small parts. There will be some inspection of equipment that 
occurs in this area but, there will be very little work performed in the canopy area. 
 
 
 



December 18, 2020 
Page 4 
 
 

37878515.2.doc 

 
SUMMARY 

 
As stated in the staff report, the Doka facility/use will be a relatively low level of intensity.  We 
are not operating at all hours of the day, our projected traffic amount is a fraction of what is 
permitted, there are no heavy industrial or manufacturing uses being employed, there is little 
noise, no chemicals and, we are going to install a beautiful buffer with trees and shrubs 
surrounding the property.  We have several existing facilities in the United States which border 
residential neighborhoods and Doka maintains excellent relationships with all of those 
communities.  We consider our relationships with our neighbors and the towns we work in 
extremely important, since we are a family-owned business which emphasizes involvement in 
the communities.  In fact, it is our experience that residents in the surrounding communities are 
often our future employees.  Therefore, maintaining a good relationship with the surrounding 
community is of paramount importance to the success of our business. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
/s/ Lisa A. Reves 
 
Lisa Reves, Esq. 
sb 
Enclosures 

 



 

Engineers 

Planners 

Surveyors 

Landscape Architects 

Environmental Scientists 

 

 

Maser Consulting will be known as Colliers Engineering & Design in 2021 

50 Chestnut Ridge Road, Suite 101 

Montvale, NJ 07645 

T: 845.352.0411 

F: 845.231.6321 

www.maserconsulting.com 

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M  

 

 

To:  Louis Goldberg 

 

From:  Jesse B. Cokeley, P.E. 

 

Date:  November 30, 2020 

 

Re:  Noise Attenuation Memo 

  MC Project No. 16002631A 

 

 
Noise is typically measured in decibels. The noise level perceived by listener is related to the distance from 

the source of the noise. This is known as the inverse square law which simply means, for every doubling of 

the distance from a noise source the sound pressure will diminish by 6 dB. 

 

The formula for Sound Attenuation is as follows: 

SPL� =  SPL� − 	20log�� �R�
R�

�� 

 

Where: 

SPL1 = Known sound pressure level (dB) at the first location (typically measured data or equipment vendor 

data) 

SPL2 = Unknown sound pressure level (dB) at the second location 

R1 = Distance (ft.) from the noise source to location of known sound pressure level 

R2 = Distance (ft.) from noise source to the second location 

 

The average noise level for a forklift is 87 dB at the source. Therefore, SPL1 = 87 dB. 

 

We assume the source point is at the center of a standard forklift. Therefore, R1 = 2 ft. 

 

 

Distance from Source (R2) dB Level (SPL2) Comparable Sound* 

50 ft. 59 dB Microwave Oven, Dishwasher 

100 ft. 53 dB Background Music or Rainfall 

250 ft. 45 dB Refrigerator 

400 ft. 41 dB Quiet Library/Office 

500 ft. 39 dB Quiet Library/Office 

 

*Comparable sounds and forklift sound level were taken from Honeywell Noise Thermometer Poster. 

 

 
\\maserconsulting.com\qmv\Projects\2016\16002631A\Project Information\Noise Study\201130_Noise Attenuation Memo.docx 



 

Non-Occupational 
Noise

Occupational Noise

Immediate
Physical Damage

160 dB

Immediate
Physical Damage

160 dB

Maximum 
Allowable
Exposure, 
Even with

Hearing Protection
140 dBC

Maximum 
Allowable
Exposure, 
Even with

Hearing Protection
140 dBC

Immediate
Pain Threshold

130 dB

Immediate
Pain Threshold

130 dB

Ex
tre

m
e N

oi
se

 L
ev

el
s M

ay
 R

eq
ui

re
 D

ua
l H

ea
rin

g 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n,

 an
d 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

or
 A

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e C

on
tro

ls

Short Exposures at
This Level May 

Cause
Hearing Damage

and Ringing in 
Ears

120 dB

Short Exposures 
at This Level May 

Cause
Hearing Damage

and Ringing in 
Ears

120 dB

Hearing Protection
Recommended for
8-Hour Exposures
Above This Level

80 dB

Hearing Protection
Recommended for
8-Hour Exposures
Above This Level

80 dB

Hearing Protection
Required for

8-Hour Exposures
Above This Level

85 dB

Hearing Protection
Required for

8-Hour Exposures
Above This Level

85 dB

Non-Hazardous
75 dB

Non-Hazardous
75 dB

Comfortable
50 dB

Comfortable
50 dB

Threshold
of Audibility

20 dB

Threshold
of Audibility

20 dB

0 dB 0 dB

Permissible Exposure Limits
(EU Hearing Directive 

2003/10/EC)

Normal
Breathing

10 dB

▾

Flowing
Stream
50 dB

Paper
Rustling

50 dB
Transformer

50 dB

Quiet
Library
40 dB

Quiet
Office
40 dB

Quiet
Residential

Area
40 dB

Refrigerator
43 dB

Audible
Whisper

30 dB

▾ ▾

▾

▾

▾

▾ ▾

Sewing
Machine

60 dB

Microwave
Oven
58 dB

Dishwasher
60 dB

Background
Music
50 dB

Rainfall
50 dB

Normal
Conversation

60 dB

Large 
Office
50 dB

▾

▾

8 
Ho

ur
s

Smoke
Alarm
85 dB

Blender
85 dB

Lift
85 dB

Hair 
Dryer
80 dB

Handsaw
85 dB

Ringing
Telephone

82 dB

Vacuum
Cleaner
74 dB

Alarm
Clock
75 dB

Waste
Disposal

80 dB
Lathe
81 dB

▾

▾

▾ ▾

▾

▾

▾

▾

Power
Lawnmower

94 dB

Underground
Railway
90 dB

Table 
Saw

93 dB

Cockpit 
of

Propeller
Airplane

88 dB

Forklift
87 dB

▾

▾

▾ ▾

▾

4 
Ho

ur
s

1 
Ho

ur
15

 M
in

30
 M

in
2 

Ho
ur

s

Bulldozer
100 dB

Industrial
Fire Alarm

95 dB
▾

▾

Extremely Loud 
100 dB

Extremely Loud 
100 dB

Crying
Baby

110 dB

Motorcycle
105 dB

I Phone 
I Pod

105 dB

Impact
Spanner
102 dB

Diesel Truck
Accelerating

114 dB

▾ ▾▾

▾

▾

Stadium
117 dB

Compactor
116 dB

▾

▾

Firecracker 
162 dB

Handgun 
166 dB

Apollo
Lift-Off 
188 dB

Shotgun 
170 dB

Artillery
Fire 

162 dB

Balloon
Pop

157 dB

Jet Engine
Take-Off 
150 dB

Engine
Backfire 
140 dB

Bicycle
Horn 

143 dB

Dynamite
Blast 

140 dB

Noisy
Squeeze

Toys
135 dB

Pig
Squeal
130 dB

Pneumatic
Drill

130 dB

Rifle 
161 dB

▾▾

▾

▾

▾

▾

▾

▾

Car
Racing
130 dB

Thunder
120 dB

Rock
Concert
120 dB

Chainsaw
118 dB

Jet Plane
at Ramp
120 dB

▾

▾

Oxygen
Torch

121 dB

Generator
116 dB

▾

▾

Hammer
on Nail
120 dB ▾

▾

▾

▾

DO
C2

66
9 

GB

www.honeywellsafety.com

Ambulance
Siren

112 dB
▾

Noise Thermometer
Sound Energy Doubles Every 3 dB 
(Example: if a 90 dB noise is doubled, it measures 93 dB)

HEAR. FOREVER.





New Business, Item A

• PZB 20-01400035: Consideration of a: 
• Major Site Plan with Sustainable Bonus and

• Conditional Use

to construct a +/-47,000 square foot distribution facility and 
repair and maintenance uses within the Industrial Park of 
Commerce (I-POC) zoning district commonly referred to as 
“Umdasch/Doka” and located at 2209 7th Avenue North.



Site Location



Background/Proposal

Applicant
Lisa Reves of Saul, Ewing, Arnstein and Lehr on behalf of Umdasch

Real Estate USA, Ltd.

Owner LW Industrial LLC

General Location South of the western terminus of 7th Ave N, east of the E-4 Canal

Existing PCN 

Numbers
38-43-44-20-01-066-0010



Background/Proposal

• Request to the Planning & Zoning Board
- Major Site Plan for the development of an industrial building in excess 

of 7,500 square feet.

- Sustainable Bonus Program Incentive to gain an increase in 
increase in building height to 31 ft.

- Conditional Use Permit to establish “distribution facility” and “repair 
and maintenance – major” uses greater than 7,500 square feet.



Existing Conditions



Surrounding Properties

• North and East of the Project Location:
• Mixture of office and warehouse uses

• The proposed development is in harmony with these existing uses.

• South of the Project Location:
• Multi-Family Residential

• The site plan provides for a lake as well as a 6’ precast wall and landscaping to buffer the site from the 
multi-family residential uses.

• East of the Project Location:
• Single-Family Residential

• The site plan provides for a 6’ precast concrete wall and landscaping to buffer the site from the single-
family residential uses.  

• A 200 foot canal right-of-way separates the subject site from the single-family residential.

• Staff finds that the proposed development is in harmony with the existing 
warehouse and office uses, and provides buffering from the nearby residential 
uses which complies with the City’s Land Development Regulations.



Site 
Plan

OUTDOOR

STORAGE

LAKE

CANAL



Renderings



Analysis

• Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan

• Consistent with the Strategic Plan 

• Generally consistent with the City's LDRs
• Consistent with the Qualitative Development Standards (LDR Section 23.2-

31(c))

• Consistent with the Community Appearance Criteria (LDR Section 23.2-31(l))

• Consistent with the review/decision criteria for all SBIPs (LDR Section 23.2-
33(c)(2))

• Consistent with the specific standards for all conditional uses (LDR Section 
23.2-29(e))

• Consistent with specific criteria for outdoor storage (LDR Section 23.4-19)



Analysis
• Consistency with the City’s 

LDRs

• Minimum required 
setbacks

• Maximum impermeable 
surface coverage

• Walls/Fences

• Lighting and security

Development Standard
Base Zoning 

District
Provided

Lot Size (min) In square feet (sf) 13,000 sf 455,500 sf

Lot Width (min) 100’ 400’

Setbacks

Front (min) 20’ 25’

Rear (min) 10’ 318’

Interior Side (min) 0’
West: 82.5’ / 

East: 192’

Impermeable Surface Coverage 
(maximum)

65% 55%

Structure Coverage (max) 55% 10.3%

Parking
63 (25 office, 38 

industrial)

70

Building Height (max)
45’ under 

sustainable bonus
31’

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) (max) 1.1 .10



Staff Recommendation

• As the application meets the City’s Land Development 
Regulations, staff is recommending that the Board approve the 
Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and Sustainable 
Bonus Incentive Program as conditioned.

• Conditions of Approval are located on pages 14-15 of the staff 
report.



Conditions of Approval

Electric: 
• Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy:

• The 10-ft-wide electric easement will be needed and recorded prior to the 
issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.

• The customer will be responsible for installing Lake Worth Beach’s two 4” 
schedule-40 gray electric conduits at a minimum of 42” deep.

• Prior to the issuance of a building permit:
• The electrical riser diagram and the load calculations will be needed.

Planning:
• Prior to the issuance of a building permit, all fencing on-site shall meet the 

applicable requirements of Sections 23.4-4 and Section 23.4-19.
• The project is prohibited from generating noise levels that exceed regulations 

found in Section 15.24.

Public Works:
• The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth 

Municipal Code and all other applicable standards including but not limited to 
the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), Manual on Uniform Traffic 
Control Devices (MUTCD), and City of Lake Worth Public Works Construction 
Standards and Policy and Procedure Manual. 

• Prior to the issuance of a building permit:
• the applicant shall contact the Lake Worth Drainage (LWDD) District’s 

Engineering Department and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary, and 
furnish to the City.  Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant 

shall contact the South Florida Water Management District’s (SFWMD) 
Engineering Department and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary.

• the Applicant shall contact and meet with a representative from the Public 
Works Solid Waste and Recycling Division to confirm dumpster enclosure 
location, accessibility and demand on property and that it is compatible with 
the requirements of the Department of Public Works.  Solid Waste and 
Recycling Division contact number is 561-533-7344.

• the applicant shall provide architectural details for the dumpster enclosure to 
confirm the enclosure meets the standards of the Public Works Dept.

• Prior to performing work in the right of way, the applicant shall apply for and 
receive issuance of a “Right of Way/Utility Permit” application 

• Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy:
• All conditions of approval must be satisfied under jurisdiction of the 

Department of Public Works 
• The Applicant shall ensure the entire surrounding off-site infrastructure 

inclusive of the roadway, sidewalk, curbing, stormwater system piping and 
structures, valve boxes, manholes, landscaping, striping, signage, and other 
improvements are in the same condition as prior to construction

• The applicant shall fine grade and sod all disturbed areas with bahia sod 
• The applicant shall broom sweep all areas of the affected right of way and 

remove of all silt and debris collected as a result of construction activity
• The applicant shall restore the right of way to a like or better condition.  Any 

damages to pavement, curbing, striping, sidewalks or other areas shall be 
restored in kind

• The trench patch for the utility crossing on 7th Ave North shall be restored in 
accordance with the construction standards of the Public Works Dept. 



Conditions of Approval

Water & Sewer:
• Water & Sewer Utility Plan:
• Prior to the issuance of a building permit:

• Center the 15-foot-wide easement over the water main.
• Add or move the in-line valve at the edge of the easement for the fire line.  This 

will delineate the private/utility ownership. 
• Provide a valve at the southern watermain connection.  
• Note to engineer:  The proposed watermain has been installed in 7th Ave N, the 

utility department will have the as-built plan shortly.  If practical, the actual utility 
location should be referenced.  

• Move the water service parallel to the fire line or propose a location that minimize 
the easement extension and path under asphalt.  Near the entrance or tapping the 
main off of 7th Ave N is an option since the meter can be set close to the property 
line.

• Adjust the water main and/or slope of bank at the lake to provide a minimum of 
10 feet flat space for maintenance access.  Consider vehicles and equipment 
having to navigate around the lake bank at the southeast corner.

• Capacity fees for water and sewer must be paid in full in accordance with the 
current City Ordinance.

• The site shall permit through LWDD and/or SFWMD for the stormwater 
management and provide a copy to Water Utilities.

• The following shall be provided:
• At time of engineering submittal, provide a full drawing set including any 

updated drainage calculations, and any permits or permitting information 
from SFWMD and LWDD.

• Add all structure and utility conflict information on the plans.
• Complete water, sewer and drainage plans showing proposed pipe sizes, 

materials, structure sizes, utility crossing elevations, hydrants, manholes, as 
well as all pertinent site elevations.

• Permits from the PBC Health Department for the Watermain extension and 
the private lift station connection 

• If applicable, show irrigation service line/s up the meter and backflow RPZ 
device/s.

• Show water & sewer services, drainage structures, and storm mains on 
landscape plan. Confirm minimum spacing between landscape and services 
per Public Services Detail 23, Typical Tree with Root Barrier. 

• Fireflow calculations based on a recent hydrant test.  Contact Pedro Segovia 
with Palm Beach County at psegovia@pbcgov.com

• Signed and sealed Drainage Calculations including a drainage statement from 
the engineer regarding floodplain management provisions for water quality 
and quantity shall be provided to the City.

• Provide geotechnical information for the determination of the hydraulic 
conductivity of the soil, and groundwater elevation.

• An Erosion Control plan and with the BMPs and NPDES compliance practices 
shall be provided for the project site.

• Engineering plans shall include cross-sections along each property line and 
with grading showing the design storm (3 yr, 1 hour (2.6”)) runoff being 
maintained on site.

• Provide existing and proposed site grades.
• Indicate vertical datum on all plan drawings with grades.
• All applicable City of Lake Worth details.

Lake Worth Drainage District:
• This project will require a drainage outfall connection permit from this District if they 

will be draining to the E-4 Canal.





The Formwork Experts.

Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd.
2209 7th Avenue North
Lake Worth Beach, Florida

Louis Goldberg, Senior Facilities and Property Project Manager

Jared Wright, Southeast Regional Manager

George Balaban, P.E.

Adam Kerr, Traffic Engineer

Johnathan Haigh, PLA, ASLA Landscape Architect

Jaime Mayo, Architect

Manuel Rodriquez, Project Manager

Lisa Reves, Esq.



2

Site

Boutwell Industrial Park of Commerce

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



3

9.79 Acre Site 

Zoned I-POC with Industrial Future Land Use

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



4

Site Plan

10,150 SF 

Office

26,617 SF 

Warehouse/Maintenance 

11,160 SF

Canopy 

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



Main Entrance

5 January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



Location, Date6

West Elevation

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



7

South Elevation

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



8

Access/Buffers
Passenger 

Vehicle Access
Truck

Access 

6’ Pre-cast Concrete 

Wall with Landscape 

6’ Chain Link Fence 

with Landscape

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



9

Laurel & Live Oak, Wax 

Myrtle, Silver & Green 

Buttonwood Trees with a 

Cocoplum Hedge 

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



Request

▪Major Site Plan Approval for Industrial Building. 

▪Conditional Use Approval to Construct:

▪ 26, 617 SF Warehouse/Maintenance Shop 

▪ 10,150 SF Two (2) Story Office 

▪ 11,160 SF Outdoor Open Canopy

▪ 104,342 SF Outdoor Storage Area

▪Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program to Increase Building Height 

from 30’ to 31’ in Height for the Office Space (5,565 SF). 

10 January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



Required Findings - Section 23.2-29(e) Conditional Use Criteria Items 1-8 

1. The proposed conditional use will not generate traffic volumes or movements which will

result in a significant adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any street to a

level lower than would result from a development permitted by right.

Palm Beach County TPS letter indicates

exemption from Traffic Performance

Standards.

Meets 

Criterion.
2. The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through

traffic on local streets than would result from a development permitted by right and is

appropriately located with respect to collector and arterial streets.

The traffic generated from the proposed

mixed-use development will not be

significantly greater than that of adjacent

uses and other anticipated uses in this area.

Meets 

Criterion.
3. The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions, or will

appropriately mitigate anticipated emissions to a level compatible with that which would result

from a development permitted by right.

The distribution facility, repair and

maintenance do not pose a pollution hazard

to the nearby properties.

Meets 

Criterion.
4. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to the thoroughfare system that

neither extension nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a manner

resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from

development permitted by right.

The project is not anticipated to cause a

higher net public cost or earlier incursion of

public cost than what would result from a

development permitted by right.

Meets 

Criterion.

11 January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



Requried Findings - Section 23.2-29(e) Conditional Use Criteria Items 1-8

12

5. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to water lines, sanitary sewers,

storm sewers, surface drainage systems and other utility systems that neither extension nor

enlargement nor any other alteration of such systems in a manner resulting in higher net

public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from development permitted by

right.

No adverse impact to infrastructure or public

utilities is anticipated to occur as a result of

this request.

Meets 

Criterion.

6. The proposed conditional use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire protection

service beyond the capacity of those services, except that the proposed facility may place a

demand on municipal police or fire protection services which does not exceed that likely to

result from a development permitted by right.

The proposed development is not anticipated

to place a demand on municipal police or fire

protection service beyond the capacity of

those services.

Meets 

Criterion.
7. The proposed conditional use will not generate significant noise, or will appropriately

mitigate anticipated noise to a level compatible with that which would result from a

development permitted by right. Any proposed use must meet all the requirements and

stipulations set forth in Section 15.24, Noise control.

The proposed development is not anticipated

to generate noise in excess of the noise

control ordinance.

Meets 

Criterion.

8. The proposed conditional use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any

residential property in excess of that allowed in Section 23.4-10, Exterior lighting.

Photometric plan shows compliance with

Section 23.4-3. Meets 

Criterion.

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



Required Findings - Section 23.2-29(d) General Findings Relating to Harmony 

with LDRs and Protection of Public Interest Items 1-4 

1. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the

location where proposed will be in harmony with the uses

which, under these LDRs and the future land use

element, are most likely to occur in the immediate area

where located.

The site contains a base zoning designation of I-POC and is adjacent to I-POC zoned

property to the north and east, Mixed-Use West (MU-W) zoned property to the south,

and residential land use to the west on the opposite side of the E-4 canal. Based on

the intent of the I-POC zoning district, the types of uses most likely to occur in this

district are the establishment and enlargement of office, manufacturing and light

industrial uses. The subject proposal is consistent with the types of uses anticipated to

occur within the I-POC district. In addition, the site is designed with features to help

buffer the site from nearby incompatible uses; these are described in the below

criterion. Therefore, the proposed project is compatible and harmonious with the

existing and anticipated surrounding uses.

Meets 

Criterion.

2. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the

location where proposed will be in harmony with existing

uses in the immediate area where located.

The subject site is surrounded by a mixture of warehouse, single-family, multi-family,

and office uses. The property locates the warehouse building to the north of the site

and away from the multi-family uses to the south of the site, reducing its impact on

those properties.

Meets 

Criterion.
3. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result

in substantially less public benefit or greater harm than

would result from use of the property for some use

permitted by right or some other conditional use

permitted on the property.

The approval of this conditional use will provide urban infill development that is

consistent with the intent of the I-POC zoning district and I future land use category and

is not anticipated to result in less public benefit than other permitted or conditional uses.

Meets 

Criterion.

4. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result

in more intensive development in advance of when such

development is approved by the future land use element

of the Comprehensive Plan.

The proposed project is utilizing the City’s SBIP bonuses for an additional one (1) foot

of building height. The increase in building height will allow for the screening of rooftop

equipment located above the office portion of the proposed building. Staff’s analysis of

the SBIP can be found on page 8. The project is consistent with the goals, objectives,

and polices of the City of Lake Worth Beach’s Comprehensive Plan and will not result in

a more intensive development than what the Plan anticipates.

Meets 

Criterion.

13



Required Findings - Section 23.2-31 (c) Qualitative Development Standards Items 1-15

1. Harmonious and efficient organization. All elements of the site plan shall be harmoniously and

efficiently organized in relation to topography, the size and type of plot, the character of adjoining

property and the type and size of buildings. The site shall be developed so as to not impede the

normal and orderly development or improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in these

LDRs.

The site is organized so the most instense

uses are oriented toward the industrial

uses.

Meets Criterion.

2. Preservation of natural conditions. The natural (refer to landscape code, Article 6 of these LDRs)

landscape shall be preserved in its natural state, insofar as practical, by minimizing tree and soil

removal and by such other site planning approaches as are appropriate. Terrain and vegetation shall

not be disturbed in a manner likely to significantly increase either wind or water erosion within or

adjacent to a development site. Natural detention areas and other means of natural vegetative

filtration of stormwater runoff shall be used to minimize ground and surface water pollution,

particularly adjacent to major waterbodies as specified in Part II, Chapter 12, Health and Sanitation,

Article VIII, Fertilizer Friendly Use Regulations. Fertilizer/pesticide conditions may be attached to

development adjacent to waterbodies. Marinas shall be permitted only in water with a mean low tide

depth of four (4) feet or more.

The site is a designated Brownfield area

which Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd

intends to rehabilitate.

Meets Criterion.

3. Screening and buffering. Fences, walls or vegetative screening shall be provided where needed

and practical to protect residents and users from undesirable views, lighting, noise, odors or other

adverse off-site effects, and to protect residents and users of off-site development from on-site

adverse effects. This section may be interpreted to require screening and buffering in addition to that

specifically required by other sections of these LDRs, but not less.

The project proposes landscaping and

permiter wall along the western and

southern property line. Chain link with

landscaping is proposed for the remainng

property lines.

Meets Criterion.

4. Enhancement of residential privacy. The site plan shall provide reasonable, visual and acoustical

privacy for all dwelling units located therein and adjacent thereto. Fences, walks, barriers and

vegetation shall be arranged for the protection and enhancement of property and to enhance the

privacy of the occupants.

The site provides a 6’ wall with vegetation

to buffer the site’s impacts and provide

additional residential privacy.

Meets Criterion.

5. Emergency access. Structures and other site features shall be so arranged as to permit

emergency vehicle access by some practical means to all sides of all buildings.

The building is oriented adjacent to the

right-of-way for easy access by

emergency vehicles.

Meets Criterion.
14

https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART6ENRE
https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH12HESA


Location, DateDepartment | Title of presentation | Author15

6. Access to public ways. All buildings, dwelling units and other facilities shall have safe and

convenient access to a public street, walkway or other area dedicated to common use; curb

cuts close to railroad crossings shall be avoided.

The building fronts 7th Avenue North and the site

has three (3) access points from the right-of-way. Meets 

Criterion.

7. Pedestrian circulation. There shall be provided a pedestrian circulation system which is

insulated as completely as reasonably possible from the vehicular circulation system.

The pedestrian circulation from the right-of-way to

the office entrance avoids as much conflict with

vehicular circulation as possible, with the

pedestrian crossings located at the point where

vehicles stop to turn on/off of 7th Avenue North.

The pedestrian circulation does not cross through

any vehicular circulation areas within the site and

provides direct access to the building.

Meets 

Criterion.

8. Design of ingress and egress drives. The location, size and numbers of ingress and egress

drives to the site will be arranged to minimize the negative impacts on public and private ways

and on adjacent private property. Merging and turnout lanes traffic dividers shall be provided

where they would significantly improve safety for vehicles and pedestrians.

The project proposes accerss from 7th Avenue

North and no negative impacts on adjacent

properties are anticipated.

Meets 

Criterion.

9. Coordination of on-site circulation with off-site circulation. The arrangement of public or

common ways for vehicular and pedestrian circulation shall be coordinated with the pattern of

existing or planned streets and pedestrian or bicycle pathways in the area. Minor streets shall

not be connected to major streets in such a way as to facilitate improper utilization.

All common ways off the project site will circulate

traffic internally on the site and will not connect

with any other right-of-way as no such other

rights-of-ways exist adjacent to the property.

Meets 

Criterion.

10. Design of on-site public right-of-way. On-site public street and rights-of-way shall be

designed for maximum efficiency. They shall occupy no more land than is required to provide

access, nor shall they unnecessarily fragment development into small blocks. Large

developments containing extensive public rights-of-way shall have said rights-of-way

arranged in a hierarchy with local streets providing direct access to parcels and other streets

providing no or limited direct access to parcels.

Right-of-way dedication for 7th Avenue North is

depicted on the site plan along the property’s

northern boundary to the E-4 Canal. Based on the

nature of use and proposed traffic circulation on

the site, no other on-site right-of-way is being

dedicated. Therefore, this criterion does not apply.

Meets 

Criterion.



Location, DateDepartment | Title of presentation | Author16

11. Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas. Off-

street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas shall be

located, designed and screened to minimize the impact of noise,

glare and odor on adjacent property.

The site proposes three (3) points of ingress/egress. The western most

ingress/egress point is for personal and regular-sized vehicles. The two (2)

easterly points of ingress/egress will be for larger truck traffic. These have been

located away from the single-family and multi-family residences to the west and

south to minimize the impact of noise, glare and odor to these properties.

Meets 

Criterion.

12. Refuse and service areas. Refuse and service areas shall be

located, designed and screened to minimize the impact of noise,

glare and odor on adjacent property.

The site plan shows the refuse area is located toward the middle of the site and

away from any existing property lines. The dumpster enclosure is also screened

and opens toward the building and away from any adjacent properties,

minimizing the impact of noise, glare and odor on adjacent property.

Meets 

Criterion.

13. Protection of property values. The elements of the site plan

shall be arranged so as to have minimum negative impact on the

property values of adjoining property.

The elements of the site plan are arranged insofar as feasible to minimize

negative impacts to property values of adjoining properties. The site provides

landscaping and buffering from adjacent properties, orients building and site

activities and circulation away from adjacent properties.

Meets 

Criterion.

14. Transitional development. Where the property being

developed is located on the edge of the zoning district, the site

plan shall be designed to provide for a harmonious transition

between districts. Building exteriors shall complement other

buildings in the vicinity in size, scale, mass, bulk, rhythm of

openings and character. Consideration shall be given to a

harmonious transition in height and design style so that the

change in zoning districts is not accentuated. Additional

consideration shall be given to complementary setbacks between

the existing and proposed development.

The project is located on the western edge of the Industrial Park of Commerce

zoning district and along the city’s western boundary following the E-4 Keller

Canal. The project provides for a 6’ pre-cast concrete wall and landscaping on

the edge of the zoning district’s boundaries with adjacent mixed-use and

residential zoning districts. Yard operations and circulations are located away

from these properties and setbacks are provided to minimize the impact.

Meets 

Criterion.

15. Consideration of future development. In finding whether or not

the above standards are met, the review authority shall consider

likely future development as well as existing development.

The project as proposed does not anticipate any future development at the site.

Any future proposed development not included as part of this application must go

through the applicable land development process for full review. Overall, the

project meets the intent of the Land Development Regulations and

Comprehensive Plan.

Meets 

Criterion.



Required Findings - Section 23.2-31 (l) Community Appearance Criteria Items 1-4

1. The plan for the proposed structure or project is in conformity with good taste,

good design, and in general contributes to the image of the city as a place of

beauty, spaciousness, harmony, taste, fitness, broad vistas and high quality.

The design of the project reflects modern architectural

styles generally associated with good taste and design.

The office portion has large windows that face the right-of-

way and allow natural light into the space, with more

intense uses oriented toward the rear of the site, away from

the right-of-way. The project provides architectural

embellishments that are colored to match the business

branding, however these are kept to a minimum and are in

good taste and design.

Meets 

Criterion.

2. The proposed structure or project is not, in its exterior design and appearance,

of inferior quality such as to cause the nature of the local environment or evolving

environment to materially depreciate in appearance and value.

The project utilizes industry standard materials that are

neutral and generally compatible with the local

environment.

Meets 

Criterion.

3. The proposed structure or project is in harmony with the proposed developments

in the general area, with code requirements pertaining to site plan, signage and

landscaping, and the comprehensive plan for the city, and with the criteria set forth

herein.

The project uses a modern design aesthetic which is

similar to and appropriate with other existing buildings and

proposed projects which have been approved in the

surrounding area.

Meets 

Criterion.

4. The proposed structure or project is in compliance with this Section and 23.2-29,

as applicable.

The project’s compliance with the community appearance

and conditional use criteria is detailed above. Meets 

Criterion.

17

https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART2AD_DIV3PE_S23.2-29COUSPE


Required Findings - Section 23.2-33 (c)(2) Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program Items a-d

(a) Is the award calculated correctly, consistent with the square footage and

height requested and the value of the features and improvements included in the

development proposal?

The development proposal is consistent with the

increase in height requested. The Applicant is asking for

a bonus height of one (1) foot, for a total building height

of thirty one (31) feet. The total square footage of bonus

area is 5,565 square feet. Therefore, the total value of

required improvements is $8,347.50. The Applicant will

be providing improvements above the code required

minimums equivalent to $97,500, which exceeds the

requirements of the Sustainable Bonus and Planned

Development Program.

Meets Criterion.

(b) Do the proposed on-site features or improvements adequately provide

sustainable project enhancements beyond those otherwise required by these

LDRs for the development proposal that are attainable and reasonable in the

context of the proposed project?

The proposed on-site features and improvements

provide enhancements that exceed the base

requirements of the LDRs. The project will provide a

wall on the west and south side of the property, which is

above and beyond the minimum requirements of the

code, and the difference in value between the fence and

the wall meets the required valuation of the SBIP.

Meets Criterion.

(c) Do the proposed off-site improvements meet the priorities of the City for

community sustainability?

The project is not including off-site improvements toward

the SBIP credit.
Meets Criterion.

(d) Do the proposed features, improvements or fees-in-lieu meet the intent of the

SBIP?

The proposed features and improvements are beyond

the base requirements of the LDRs and provide

additional amenities and an aesthetic improvement.

Thus, the proposed development meets the intent of the

SBIP.

Meets Criterion.

18



Required Findings - Section 23.4-19 Outdoor Storage Items 1-5

1. Outdoor storage in residential districts. Outdoor storage in residential districts for

residential purposes shall be limited to domestic equipment and normal supplies necessary

for residents. Storage shall not be permitted in any front yard.

This project is not located in a residential district,

therefore this criterion does not apply.
Not Applicable.

2. Outdoor storage industrial. Outdoor storage in the I-POC industrial district shall be permitted

only as accessory to an approved principal use. All such storage shall be completely screened

from all public rights-of-way and any adjacent property that is zoned for residential or mixed use.

Outdoor storage of equipment, vehicles, boats, parts, materials, or chemicals are required to be

stored on an impervious paved surface to reduce pollutants in storm water runoff.

The outdoor storage is accessory to the

distribution facility, repair and maintenance uses.

The outdoor storage areas are screened from

the residential areas to the south and west.

Meets Criterion.

3. Outdoor storage in planned development and mixed use districts. Outdoor storage facilities

shall be limited to the following:

a. Outdoor storage of merchandise for sale within the establishment located on the site

shall be limited to the area located between the front façade and the public right-of-way

and shall only be outside of the building during hours of operation. However, this does

not apply to the outdoor display of vehicles for sale or rent.

b. In any commercial planned development, all outdoor storage shall be expressly approved

by the City Commission as part of the ordinance adopting the commercial planned

development.

c. Approval of outdoor storage in a commercial planned development or mixed use district

shall include mitigation measures to protect adjacent properties from the impacts of the

outdoor storage.

The proposed project is not located within a

planned development or mixed-use district,

therefore this criterion does not apply.

Not Applicable.

4. The outdoor storage of all licensed vehicles that are being repaired must be screened from

all public rights-of-way or stored completely within an enclosed structure. There shall be no

storage of junk or unlicensed vehicles within the public right-of way at any time.

There are no vehicle repair uses associated with

the operations of the site, therefore this criterion

does not apply.

Not Applicable.

5. The outdoor storage of unlicensed vehicles and/or junked vehicles, boats, machinery,

trucks, trailers, mobile homes and heavy equipment vehicles is prohibited, except in approved

junk yards or the temporary storage of such vehicles on a lot or parcel approved and

containing an active business license for vehicle towing.

There will be no unlicensed and/or junked

vehicles stored on-site, therefore this criterion

does not apply.

Not Applicable.

19



Meet the Required Findings and Request Approval

20

✓Section 23.2-29(e) Conditional Use Criteria  

✓Section 23.2-29 (d) General Findings Relating to Harmony with LDRs and Protection of     

Public Interest 

✓Section 23.2-31 (c) Qualitative Development Standards 

✓Section 23.2-31 (l) Community Appearance Criteria 

✓Section 23.2-33 (c)(2)Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program 

✓Section 23.4-19(b) Outdoor Storage Industrial

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



The Formwork Experts.

Development Team
Louis Goldberg, Senior Facilities and Property Project Manager

Jared Wright, Southeast Regional Manager

George Balaban, P.E.

Adam Kerr, Traffic Engineer

Johnathan Haigh, PLA, ASLA Landscape Architect

Jaime Mayo, Architect

Manuel Rodriquez, Project Manager

Lisa Reves, Esq.



The Formwork Experts.

Seminole Hardrock Guitar Hotel



23

October 19, 2020 Conversation with Mr. Hiatt

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



24

December 4, 2020 E-mail to Mr. Hiatt

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



25

December 5, 2020 E-mail from Mr. Hiatt

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



26

December 30, 2020 E-mail from Mr. Baird

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



27

Hiatt 3599 23rd Avenue South 

▪ Limited Site Access

▪ Orgainic Material Onsite

▪ Pay More for Site

▪ Larger Building 

o Similar to 7th & Boutwell

▪ Increase Boutwell Tax Base 

▪ Increase His Property Value
+/- 254

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



28

Hiatt 3694 23rd Avenue South

+/- 774’

EASTERN

METAL 

SUPPLY

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



29 December 2, 2020  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves

Notice of Special Magistrate Hearing



30

Officer Hicks’ Confirmation Outstanding Violations

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



31

Request for Affected Party Status

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



32

3694 23rd Avenue South        3599 23rd Avenue South
STAMPED CERTIFICATION OF MAILING

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



33

Garamy 3550 23rd Avenue South

• Traffic – Approximately 10-15 trucks a day; PBC TPS New Peak Hour Trips 40 

AM     23 PM

• Under Utilization of Parcel – More onsite development, will incur more taxes and  

keep his taxes down

• Cement Dust –Dirt on the 

Ground 

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



Elise Crohn 402 Elizabeth Road

34

▪ Hours of Operation – M-F 7:30 a.m. until 4:00 p.m. Saturday until 12:00 p.m. if necessary.

▪ Location of Similar Facility – 3665 Benson Ave., Baltimore, MD 21227.

▪ Site Plan/Building Height Warehouse 27’ HT. 

▪ Landscaping 6’ pre-cast concrete wall screened with a combination of Laurel Oaks, Silver 

Buttonwood, Wax Myrtle, and Green Buttonwood trees accented by a cocoplum hedge.

+/- 510’

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



Location, Date35 January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



7th Avenue Frontage

36 January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



37 January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



38 January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves

Boutwell

Business 

Center

Marlin 

Industrial

Park

Marlin

Commerce 

Center

Eastern 

Metal 

Supply

Intermed

Green 

Street 

Industrial
Doka

Site



39

Boutwell Business Center

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



40

Eastern Metal Supply

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



41

Green Street Industrial 

January 6, 2021  | Lake Worth Beach, FL | Lisa A. Reves



 
  

  

 

 

 

 

DATE:   December 30, 2020 
 
TO:   Members of the Planning and Zoning Board 
 
FROM:   Andrew Meyer, Senior Community Planner 
 
THRU:  William Waters, AIA, NCARB, LEED, AP BD+C, ID, SEED, Director for Community Sustainability  
 
MEETING:  January 6, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: PZB Project Number 20-01400035: Consideration of a Major Site Plan with Sustainable Bonus and 
Conditional Use Permit to construct a +/-47,000 square foot distribution facility and repair and maintenance uses within 
the Industrial Park of Commerce (I-POC) zoning district commonly referred to as “Umdasch/Doka” and located at 2209 
7th Avenue North, PCN # 38-43-44-20-01-066-0010. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  
The Applicant, Lisa Reves of Saul, Ewing, Arnstein and Lehr on behalf of Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd., is requesting 

approval of Umdasch/Doka, a project located at 2209 7th Avenue North and consisting of the following: 

 

1.) Major Site Plan for the development of an industrial building in excess of 7,500 square feet.   (page 4) 

2.) Sustainable Bonus Program Incentive to gain an increase in increase in building height to 31 ft. (page 8) 

3.) Conditional Use Permit to establish “distribution facility” and “repair and maintenance – major” uses greater than 

7,500 square feet (page 9) 

 

Umdasch/Doka consists of an industrial building totaling 47,927 gross square feet in floor area.  The building is composed 

of 3 sections; a 10,150 gsf office, a 26,617 gsf enclosed warehouse/maintenance shop, and 11,160 gsf canopy structure.  

In addition, a 104,342 outdoor storage area is located east of the building.  The facility will store formwork and conduct 

repair operations on construction equipment.  According to the application, the facility will operate between 7:30 AM and 

4:00 PM, Monday through Friday, and between 7:30 AM and 12:00 PM on Saturdays as needed. 

 

Staff Recommendation:  

Staff has reviewed the documentation and materials provided, applying the applicable guidelines and standards found in 

the City of Lake Worth Zoning Code, Comprehensive Plan, and Strategic Plan. The proposed development meets the 

criteria of the Comprehensive Plan and LDRs. Staff recommends the Board approve the Major Site Plan, Conditional Use 

Permit, and Sustainable Bonus Program Incentive as conditioned on pages 14-15. 

 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:  
 

Applicant Lisa Reves of Saul, Ewing, Arnstein and Lehr on behalf of Umdasch Real 
Estate USA, Ltd. 

Owner LW Industrial LLC 

General Location South of the western terminus of 7th Ave N, east of the E-4 Canal  

Existing PCN Number 38-43-44-20-01-066-0010 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 
Planning Zoning Historic Preservation Division 

1900 2ND Avenue North 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 

561-586-1687 



PZB No. 20-01400035 

P a g e  | 2 
 

Existing Land Use Vacant Lot 

Zoning Industrial Park of Commerce (I-POC) 

Future Land Use Designation Industrial (I) 

 

ZONING MAP:  

 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The subject property is currently vacant. The site has been vacant and undeveloped until the 1950s when land was cleared 
on the southern end and used as a landfill.  The filling operations appeared to cease in the late 1970s and the property 
became overgrown and remained undeveloped until 2011, when there was an expansion of the pond at the north end of 
the lot.  Since that time, the property has remained undeveloped.  
  



PZB No. 20-01400035 

P a g e  | 3 
 

 
ANALYSIS:  

 
Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan 
The project has a future land use of Industrial (I). Per Policy 1.1.1.10, the Industrial (I) FLU is established to provide for the 
establishment and enlargement of office, manufacturing and light to moderate industrial uses that would be incompatible 
in other areas of the city due to increased traffic generation. The implementing zoning district is I-POC.  The proposed 
development will contain distribution facility and repair and maintenance uses which are moderate industrial uses and 
therefore is consistent with the intent of the I FLU.  Furthermore, Policy 1.7.1.4 states that “the City shall encourage new 
development proposals within the LWPOC, with emphasis on those at the north and south entrance of the Park of 
Commerce along Boutwell Road, to be consistent with the goal to create a quality office/industrial park, as established in 
the LWPOC Conceptual Plan.” This project is a new development proposal within the LWPOC with proposed use consistent 
with the future land use designation and strategic plan. 
 
The City’s Strategic Plan focuses on fostering safer neighborhoods, encouraging community pride, building a vibrant and 
diverse economy, planning for the future, and enhancing the natural, historic, and cultural environment of the City. Pillar 
I.A of the Strategic Plan states that the City shall ensure effective economic development incentive zones.  Further, Pillars 
IV.A, IV.C, and IV.D of the Strategic Plan state that the City shall achieve economic and financial sustainability through a 
versatile and stable tax base, facilitate environmental sustainability through regional partnership and planning, and 
influence the supply and expansion of jobs.  The proposed warehouse, maintenance, and distribution center is an 
economic development project that will increase local jobs within the City and contribute towards the City’s tax base by 
developing a vacant 9.7-acre parcel.  In addition, Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. intends to enter into an agreement with 
the Florida Department of Environmental Protection for rehabilitation and redevelopment of the property, which is 
currently designated as a brownfield.  As such, the use is consistent with Pillars I.A, Pillar IV.A, IV.C, and Pillar IV.D.  The 
remaining Pillars in the Strategic Plan are not applicable to this application. 
 
Based on the analysis above, the proposed development is consistent with the goals, objectives, and polices of the City of 
Lake Worth Beach’s Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan. 
 
 
Consistency with the City’s Land Development Regulations 
The Department of Community Sustainability is tasked in the Code to review planned development applications in 
accordance with the City’s LDRs (see analysis below) and to provide a recommendation for whether the application should 
be approved, approved with conditions, or denied. 
 
Industrial Park of Commerce (I-POC) Per LDR Section 23.3-24(a), the I-POC zoning district is intended to provide for the 
establishment and enlargement of office, manufacturing and light industrial uses without restriction on traffic generating 
characteristics. The I-POC district is also intended to permit the establishment of certain other uses which are compatible 
with industrial operations.  The proposed industrial development provides light industrial uses. As such, the proposal is 
consistent with the intent of the I-POC district.  
 
  



PZB No. 20-01400035 

P a g e  | 4 
 

The table below shows the proposed site features and its compliance with the Code, factoring in the Sustainable Bonus 
incentives:  
 

Development Standard Base Zoning District Provided 

Lot Size (min) In square feet (sf) 13,000 sf 455,500 sf 

Lot Width (min) 100’ 400’ 

Setbacks 

Front (min) 20’ 25’ 

Rear (min) 10’ 318’ 

Interior Side (min) 0’ West: 82.5’ / East: 192’ 

Impermeable Surface Coverage 
(maximum) 

65% 55% 

Structure Coverage (max) 55% 10.3% 

Parking 63 (25 office, 38 industrial) 70 

Building Height (max) 45’ under sustainable bonus 31’ 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) (max) 1.1 .10 

 
Building Height: The maximum building height by right for projects in the I-POC zoning district is 30 feet, with the potential 
to go to 45 feet by satisfying the requirements of the sustainable bonus incentive program.  The proposed building height 
for this project is 31 feet, or 1 foot taller than the maximum building height by right.  The extra building height is being 
sought in order to provide a parapet in order to screen rooftop equipment from adjacent properties.  Staff reviewed the 
sustainable bonus incentive program applied for the extra building height, and found it to be consistent with the city’s 
LDRs.  Staff’s analysis of the sustainable bonus can be found on page 8. 
 
Landscaping: Overall, the development proposal complies with the City’s landscape regulations. The project proposes 

Compact Firebush, Pigeon Plum, Dwarf Fakahatchee Grass, and Verawood along the entrance at 7th Avenue North.  The 

project also proposes buffering the wall and site from the single-family to the west with Laurel Oak, Wax Myrtle, Silver 

Buttonwood, Green Buttonwood, and Southern Live Oak. 

 
Walls/Fences: The site plan proposes a 6’ high precast concrete wall along the southern and eastern boundaries of the 
site to provide buffering from the single-family and multi-family uses near the site.  The wall will also be landscaped to 
provide extra buffering to these residential uses.  In addition, the project also proposes an 8’ high chain link fence along 
the eastern edge of the property.  This chain link fence will be screened with landscape material for screening of the 
outdoor area.  The material of the chain link fence has been proposed as galvanized.  Section 24.4-4 of the City’s LDRs 
require that chain link fencing be either black or dark green vinyl coated.  Further, the fencing 10’ from the northern 
property line along 7th Avenue will need to be an opaque fencing type or be setback a minimum of 20’. A condition has 
been added to the conditions of approval requiring all fencing on site to be in conformance with Sections 23.4-4 and 23.4-
19; fencing adhering to this condition will be in conformance with the City’s LDRs. Fencing material modifications will be 
reviewed at building permit for consistency with these code sections. 
 

 

Master Development Plan (Major Site Plan): 
A master site plan is required in conjunction with a mixed use urban planned development. The review criteria below are 
intended to promote safety and minimize negative impacts of development on its neighbors by establishing qualitative 
requirements for the arrangements of buildings, structures, parking areas, landscaping and other site improvements.  
 
  



PZB No. 20-01400035 

P a g e  | 5 
 

Section 23.2-31(c): Qualitative Development Standards 
 
1. Harmonious and efficient organization. All elements of the site plan shall be harmoniously and efficiently organized in 
relation to topography, the size and type of plot, the character of adjoining property and the type and size of buildings. 
The site shall be developed so as to not impede the normal and orderly development or improvement of surrounding 
property for uses permitted in these LDRs. 
 
Staff Analysis: The project site is organized so that the most intense uses are oriented toward the north end of the site, 
closer to like industrial uses and away from the single-family and multi-family residential uses west and south of the site.   
The office portion of the building is oriented toward 7th Avenue North and contains large windows which positively 
contributes to the aesthetic of 7th Avenue North in this location.  The building on the site contains overhead doors.  The 
applicant has stated that the doors which face the residential area to the west will remain closed for most of the day and 
will be opened and closed 5-8 times per week total.  In addition, these doors will be screened with native trees and a 6’ 
high pre-cast wall.  The overhead doors located on the east side of the building will be opened and closed more frequently, 
and these have been oriented towards adjacent industrial zoned properties to minimize impacts.  Meets Criterion. 
 
2. Preservation of natural conditions. The natural (refer to landscape code, Article 6 of these LDRs) landscape shall be 
preserved in its natural state, insofar as practical, by minimizing tree and soil removal and by such other site planning 
approaches as are appropriate. Terrain and vegetation shall not be disturbed in a manner likely to significantly increase 
either wind or water erosion within or adjacent to a development site. Natural detention areas and other means of natural 
vegetative filtration of stormwater runoff shall be used to minimize ground and surface water pollution, particularly 
adjacent to major waterbodies as specified in Part II, Chapter 12, Health and Sanitation, Article VIII, Fertilizer Friendly Use 
Regulations. Fertilizer/pesticide conditions may be attached to development adjacent to waterbodies. Marinas shall be 
permitted only in water with a mean low tide depth of four (4) feet or more. 
 
Staff Analysis: The lot as it exists today are completely vacant, and contain a mixture of Royal Poinciana, Ficus, Cabbage 
Palm, Southern Live Oak, Tropical Almond, and Mango Trees.  The property is located in the Greater Lake Worth Park of 
Commerce Area, which the City designated as a brownfield area through Resolution Number 03-2009, approved on March 
3, 2009.  The city has been advised by Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. That it intends to enter into a brownfield site 
rehabilitation agreement with the Florida Department of Environmental Protection for rehabilitation and redevelopment 
of the property.  The proposed landscape plan depicts native tree species, such as Laurel Oak, Wax Myrtle, Silver 
Buttonwood, Green Buttonwood, and Southern Live Oak along all property lines.  Staff has reviewed the landscape plan 
and finds the proposed landscaping meets the landscape code and sufficiently replaces the existing landscaping proposed 
to be removed from the site.  Meets Criterion.  
 
3. Screening and buffering. Fences, walls or vegetative screening shall be provided where needed and practical to protect 
residents and users from undesirable views, lighting, noise, odors or other adverse off-site effects, and to protect residents 
and users of off-site development from on-site adverse effects. This section may be interpreted to require screening and 
buffering in addition to that specifically required by other sections of these LDRs, but not less. 
 
Staff Analysis:  The project proposes landscaping along the perimeter of the property.  Additional tree landscaping, along 
with a 6’ high pre-cast wall is also proposed along the western property line to provide buffering of the site from the 
existing single-family residences to the west.  The trees comprising of this buffer include Laurel Oak, Wax Myrtle, Silver 
Buttonwood, Green Buttonwood, and Southern Live Oak.  The precast concrete wall also continues along the southern 
edge of the site and buffers the site from the multi-family residences to the south.  In addition, 71 bald cypress trees have 
been proposed between the lake and the precast wall along the southern property line adjacent to the multi-residential 
development.  Meets Criterion  
 

https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART6ENRE
https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH12HESA


PZB No. 20-01400035 

P a g e  | 6 
 

4. Enhancement of residential privacy. The site plan shall provide reasonable, visual and acoustical privacy for all dwelling 
units located therein and adjacent thereto. Fences, walks, barriers and vegetation shall be arranged for the protection and 
enhancement of property and to enhance the privacy of the occupants. 
 
Staff Analysis: While the proposed industrial project does not contain any dwelling units, there are existing residential 
dwelling units to the west and south of the project site.  The site provides a 6’ wall with vegetation to buffer the site’s 
impacts and provide additional residential privacy.  Meets Criterion. 
 
5. Emergency access. Structures and other site features shall be so arranged as to permit emergency vehicle access by 
some practical means to all sides of all buildings. 
 
Staff Analysis: The building has been oriented on the lot to be closest to 7th Avenue North.  This building is directly adjacent 
to the right-of-way to allow for ease of access by emergency vehicles.  Meets Criterion. 
 
6. Access to public ways. All buildings, dwelling units and other facilities shall have safe and convenient access to a public 
street, walkway or other area dedicated to common use; curb cuts close to railroad crossings shall be avoided. 
 
Staff Analysis: The building fronts 7th Avenue North and the site has 3 access points from the right-of-way.  The project is 
not nearby any railroad crossings.  Meets Criterion. 
 
7. Pedestrian circulation. There shall be provided a pedestrian circulation system which is insulated as completely as 
reasonably possible from the vehicular circulation system. 
 
Staff Analysis: The pedestrian circulation from the right-of-way to the office entrance avoids as much conflict with 
vehicular circulation as possible, with the pedestrian crossings located at the point where vehicles stop to turn on/off of 
7th Avenue North.  The pedestrian circulation does not cross through any vehicular circulation areas within the site and 
provides direct access to the building.  Meets Criterion. 
 
8. Design of ingress and egress drives. The location, size and numbers of ingress and egress drives to the site will be 
arranged to minimize the negative impacts on public and private ways and on adjacent private property. Merging and 
turnout lanes traffic dividers shall be provided where they would significantly improve safety for vehicles and pedestrians. 
 
Staff Analysis: As stated earlier, the site has 3 access points from 7th Avenue North.  This portion of 7th Avenue North is 
currently not paved and will be improved as part of the construction of this project.  No other properties obtain access 
from this portion of 7th Avenue North adjacent to the project site, and as such there is no anticipated negative impact on 
adjacent properties.  Meets Criterion. 
 
9. Coordination of on-site circulation with off-site circulation. The arrangement of public or common ways for vehicular 
and pedestrian circulation shall be coordinated with the pattern of existing or planned streets and pedestrian or bicycle 
pathways in the area. Minor streets shall not be connected to major streets in such a way as to facilitate improper 
utilization. 
 
Staff Analysis: All common ways off the project site will circulate traffic internally on the site and will not connect with 
any other right-of-way as no such other rights-of-ways exist adjacent to the property.  Meets Criterion.  
 
10. Design of on-site public right-of-way. On-site public street and rights-of-way shall be designed for maximum efficiency. 
They shall occupy no more land than is required to provide access, nor shall they unnecessarily fragment development 
into small blocks. Large developments containing extensive public rights-of-way shall have said rights-of-way arranged in 
a hierarchy with local streets providing direct access to parcels and other streets providing no or limited direct access to 
parcels. 



PZB No. 20-01400035 

P a g e  | 7 
 

 
Staff Analysis:  An additional right-of-way dedication for 7th Avenue North is depicted on the site plan along the property’s 
northern boundary to the E-4 Canal. Based on the nature of use and proposed traffic circulation on the site, no other on-
site right-of-way is being dedicated. Therefore, this criterion does not apply.  Meets Criterion.  
 
11. Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas. Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas 
shall be located, designed and screened to minimize the impact of noise, glare and odor on adjacent property. 
 
Staff Analysis: The site proposes 3 points of ingress/egress.  The westernmost ingress/egress point is for personal and 
regular-sized vehicles.  The two easterly points of ingress/egress will be for larger truck traffic.  These have been located 
away from the single-family and multi-family residences to the west and south to minimize the impact of noise, glare and 
odor to these properties.  The loading and unloading of equipment and materials occurs east of the building, which helps 
minimize the impact of noise, glare, and odor to the single-family and multi-family residences on the opposite side of the 
building to the west.  Meets Criterion. 
 
12. Refuse and service areas. Refuse and service areas shall be located, designed and screened to minimize the impact of 
noise, glare and odor on adjacent property. 
 
Staff Analysis: The site plan shows the refuse area is located toward the middle of the site and away from any existing 
property lines.  The dumpster enclosure is also screened and opens toward the building and away from any adjacent 
properties, minimizing the impact of noise, glare and odor on adjacent property.  Meets Criterion. 
 
13. Protection of property values. The elements of the site plan shall be arranged so as to have minimum negative impact 
on the property values of adjoining property. 
 
Staff Analysis: As stated earlier in this staff report, the elements of the site plan are arranged insofar as feasible to 
minimize negative impacts to property values of adjoining properties.  The site provides landscaping and buffering from 
adjacent properties, and orients building and site activities and circulation away from adjacent properties.  Meets 
Criterion. 
 
14. Transitional development. Where the property being developed is located on the edge of the zoning district, the site 
plan shall be designed to provide for a harmonious transition between districts. Building exteriors shall complement other 
buildings in the vicinity in size, scale, mass, bulk, rhythm of openings and character. Consideration shall be given to a 
harmonious transition in height and design style so that the change in zoning districts is not accentuated. Additional 
consideration shall be given to complementary setbacks between the existing and proposed development. 
 
Staff Analysis: The project is located on the western edge of the Industrial Park of Commerce zoning district and along the 
city’s western boundary following the E-4 Keller Canal.  The project provides for a 6’ pre-cast concrete wall and landscaping 
on the edge of the zoning district’s boundaries with adjacent mixed-use and residential zoning districts.  Yard operations 
and circulations are located away from these properties and setbacks are provided to minimize the impact.  Meets 
Criterion. 
 
15. Consideration of future development. In finding whether or not the above standards are met, the review authority 
shall consider likely future development as well as existing development. 
 
Staff Analysis: The project as proposed does not anticipate any future development at the site.  Any future proposed 
development not included as part of this application must go through the applicable land development process for full 
review.  Overall, the project meets the intent of the Land Development Regulations and Comprehensive Plan.  Meets 
Criterion. 
 



PZB No. 20-01400035 

P a g e  | 8 
 

Section 23.2-31(l): Community Appearance Criteria 
 
1. The plan for the proposed structure or project is in conformity with good taste, good design, and in general contributes 
to the image of the city as a place of beauty, spaciousness, harmony, taste, fitness, broad vistas and high quality. 
 
Staff Analysis:  The design of the project reflects modern architectural styles generally associated with good taste and 
design.  The office portion has large windows that face the right-of-way and allow natural light into the space, with more 
intense uses oriented toward the rear of the site, away from the right-of-way.  The project also provides a lake on-site, as 
well as a pre-cast concrete wall and landscape buffering which shields and buffers the uses from the single and multi-
family uses to the west and south of the project site.  The project provides architectural embellishments that are colored 
to match the business branding, however these are kept to a minimum and are in good taste and design.  Meets Criterion. 
 
2. The proposed structure or project is not, in its exterior design and appearance, of inferior quality such as to cause the 
nature of the local environment or evolving environment to materially depreciate in appearance and value. 
 
Staff Analysis: The project utilizes industry standard materials that are neutral and generally compatible with the local 
environment.  Meets Criterion. 
 
3. The proposed structure or project is in harmony with the proposed developments in the general area, with code 
requirements pertaining to site plan, signage and landscaping, and the comprehensive plan for the city, and with the 
criteria set forth herein. 
 
Staff Analysis: The project uses a modern design aesthetic which is similar to and appropriate with other existing buildings 
and proposed projects which have been approved in the surrounding area.  Meets Criterion. 
 
4. The proposed structure or project is in compliance with this section and 23.2-29, as applicable. 
 
Staff Analysis: The project’s compliance with the community appearance and conditional use criteria is detailed within 
this staff report.  Meets Criterion. 
 
Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program:  
The City of Lake Worth Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program (SBIP) is intended to implement Objective 1.2.3 of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan which states the City shall establish incentives to help support the creation of a compact, sustainable, 
community-oriented development by implementing a Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program. The Program offers the 
opportunity to attain an option for increased height and/or FAR in exchange for the incorporation of sustainable design 
features, community-based improvements and overall design excellence as part of a development proposal. 
 
Based on the calculation of the additional height as part of the SBIP, the Applicant is asking for a bonus height of 1 foot, 
for a total building height of 31 feet. This additional foot in building height is not for the entire building, but the office 
portion of the building.  The total square footage of bonus area under Sustainable Bonus is 5,565 square which results in 
a value of required improvements for the Sustainable Bonus allowance of $8,347.50 ($1.50 per square foot industrial 
bonus).  Below is the Applicant’s schedule of improvements to meet and exceed the requirements of the Sustainable 
Bonus and Planned Development.  
 

Improvement Detail 
(type of amenity) 

Valuation 
Amount 

Calculation Details 

Precast wall along 
west property line 

$97,500 
Difference between pre-cast wall and minimum fencing required by code: 
Precast Wall: $100 per Linear Foot x 1,300 Linear Feet = $130,000 
Chain-link fence with screening: $25 per Linear Foot x 1,300 Linear Feet = $32,500 

https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART2AD_DIV3PE_S23.2-29COUSPE


PZB No. 20-01400035 

P a g e  | 9 
 

Total Value of 
Improvements/Design 
Excellence Required: $8,347.50 

Total Value of Improvements/Design Excellence Provided: $97,500 

 
Section 23.2-33(c)(2): Review/decision 
(a) Is the award calculated correctly, consistent with the square footage and height requested and the value of the features 
and improvements included in the development proposal? 
 
Staff Analysis: The development proposal is consistent with the increase in height requested. The Applicant is asking for 
a bonus height of 1 foot, for a total building height of 31 feet.  The total square footage of bonus area is 5,565 square feet.  
Therefore, the total value of required improvements is $8,347.50 ($1.50 per square foot for industrial bonus height of 
5,565 square feet). The Applicant will be providing improvements above the code required minimums equivalent to 
$97,500, which exceeds the requirements of the Sustainable Bonus and Planned Development program. Meets Criterion. 
 
(b) Do the proposed on-site features or improvements adequately provide sustainable project enhancements beyond 

those otherwise required by these LDRs for the development proposal that are attainable and reasonable in the context 

of the proposed project? 

 
Staff Analysis: The proposed on-site features and improvements provide enhancements that exceed the base 
requirements of the LDRs.  The project will provide a wall on the west and south side of the property, which provides a 
greater degree of buffering than a fence required by code.  The wall is above and beyond the minimum requirements of 
the code, and the difference in value between the fence and the wall meets the required valuation of the SBIP.  Meets 
Criterion.  
 

(c) Do the proposed off-site improvements meet the priorities of the City for community sustainability?  
 
Staff Analysis: The project is not including off-site improvements toward the SBIP credit.  Meets Criterion 
 
(d) Do the proposed features, improvements or fees-in-lieu meet the intent of the SBIP? 
 
Staff Analysis: As identified by the criteria above, the proposed features and improvements incorporated into the 
development proposal are beyond the base requirements of the LDRs and provide additional amenities and an aesthetic 
improvement beyond what is required by the LDRs. Thus, the proposed development meets the intent of the SBIP. Meets 
Criterion. 
 
Conditional Use Permit: 
Conditional uses are those uses that are generally compatible with the other uses permitted in a district, but that 
require individual review of their location, design, structure, configuration, density and intensity of use, and may require 
the imposition of conditions pertinent thereto in order to ensure the appropriateness and compatibility of the use at a 
particular location and to prevent or minimize potential adverse impacts to the surrounding area.  Conditional uses are 
required to be reviewed against the criteria in Section 23.2-29(d) and Section 23.2-29(e). The required analysis is provided 
below. 
 
Section 23.2-29(d): General findings relating to harmony with LDRs and protection of public interest 

The proposed project is consistent with the general findings relating to harmony with the LDRs and protection of public 
interest, as follows: 

 

1. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with the uses which, under 
these LDRs and the future land use element, are most likely to occur in the immediate area where located.  
 



PZB No. 20-01400035 

P a g e  | 10 
 

Staff Analysis: The site contains a base zoning designation of I-POC and is adjacent to I-POC zoned property to the north 
and east, Mixed-Use West (MU-W) zoned property to the south, and residential land use to the west on the opposite side 
of the E-4 canal.  Based on the intent of the I-POC zoning district, the types of uses most likely to occur in this district are 
the establishment and enlargement of office, manufacturing and light industrial uses. The subject proposal is consistent 
with the types of uses anticipated to occur within the I-POC district.  In addition, the site is designed with features to help 
buffer the site from nearby incompatible uses; these are described in the below criterion.  Therefore, the proposed project 
is compatible and harmonious with the existing and anticipated surrounding uses.  Meets Criterion. 

 
2. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with existing uses in the 
immediate area where located. 
 
Staff Analysis: The existing uses in the surrounding area are as follows: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning District Current Use 

North  
(across 7th Avenue North) 

I I-POC Distribution Warehouse, Office 
(Boutwell Business Center) 

South 
(adjacent) 

I/MU-W I-POC/MU-W Warehouse (Marlin Commerce Center)/Multi-

Family Residential 

East 
(adjacent to and across 

the E-4/Keller Canal) 

Residential High 

Density (PBC) 

Medium-Density 

Residential (PBC) 

LWDD ROW, and Single-Family Residences 

West 
(adjacent) 

I I-POC Warehouse/Storage 

 
Per the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser, the subject site is surrounded by a mixture of warehouse, single-family, 
multi-family, and office uses.  The property locates the warehouse building to the north of the site and away from the 
multi-family uses to the south of the site, reducing its impact on those properties.  In addition, a 6’ concrete wall with 
landscaping faces the residential uses to the west and across the E-4 canal, which buffers the warehouse building from 
these uses.  Staff finds that the use is in harmony with the surrounding industrial uses, and finds that the site provides 
adequate features which help buffer the proposed uses from adjacent, incompatible uses.  Meets Criterion. 
 
3. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in substantially less public benefit or greater harm than would 
result from use of the Property for some use permitted by right or some other conditional use permitted on the Property. 
 

Staff Analysis: The approval of this conditional use will provide urban infill development that is consistent with the intent 

of the I-POC zoning district and I future land use category.  As such, the proposal is not anticipated to result in less public 

benefit than other permitted or conditional uses.  Meets Criterion. 

 
4. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in more intensive development in advance of when such 
development is approved by the future land use element of the comprehensive plan. 
 
Staff Analysis: The proposed project is utilizing the City’s SBIP bonuses for an additional 1 foot of building height.  The 
increase in building height will allow for the screening of rooftop equipment located above the office portion of the 
proposed building.  Staff’s analysis of the SBIP can be found on page 8.  The project is consistent with the goals, objectives, 
and polices of the City of Lake Worth Beach’s Comprehensive Plan and will not result in a more intensive development 
than what the Plan anticipates.  Meets Criterion. 

 
Section 23.2-29(e): Specific standards for all conditional uses 



PZB No. 20-01400035 

P a g e  | 11 
 

1. The proposed conditional use will not generate traffic volumes or movements, which will result in a significant adverse 
impact or reduce the level of service provided on any street to a level lower than would result from a development 
permitted by right. 
 
Staff Analysis: Based on the Florida Department of Transportation’s 8th Edition Trip Generation Table, the construction of 

a 47,927 gross square foot warehouse is anticipated to generate approximately 171 daily trips and 15 PM Peak trips.  

Typical uses permitted by right in the I-POC zoning district are under 2,500 square feet, and include gyms/fitness studios 

and administrative/professional services.  If the property was subdivided or rented to individual, small, by-right tenants 

with uses less than 2,500 square feet and totaling 47,927 square feet, then the trips generated would be greater than the 

trips generated for the proposed use.  For example, 47,927 square feet of individual gyms/fitness studios use would 

generate 1,578 trips in total, and 47,927 square feet of individual administrative/professional services use would generate 

528 trips in total.  As such, the proposed conditional use will not generate traffic volumes or movements which would 

result in a significant impact greater than a development permitted by right.  In addition, a Traffic Performance Standards 

(TPS) Letter from the Palm Beach County Traffic Division indicates that the project is located within the Lake Worth Park 

of Commerce Traffic Concurrency Exception Area (TCEA) and is exempt from the Traffic Performance Standards of Palm 

Beach County.  Meets Criterion. 

 
2. The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through traffic on local streets than 
would result from a development permitted by right and is appropriately located with respect to collector and arterial 
streets. 
 
Staff Analysis: The I-POC zoning district allows for the establishment of industrial uses without restriction on traffic 
generating characteristics.  As stated in the above criterion, only uses under 2,500 square feet are permitted by right in 
the I-POC zoning district. If these uses were developed individually on separate lots over time to an intensity equal in 
square footage to the proposed project, they would generate traffic in excess of the traffic generated by the proposed 
use.  The site will not be open to the general public and will only be open to customers picking up rental equipment.  There 
is no showroom or retail store.  Therefore, the traffic generated from the proposed mixed-use development will not be 
significantly greater than that of adjacent uses and other anticipated uses in this area.  Meets Criterion. 
 
3. The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions, to a level compatible with that which 
would result from a development permitted by right. 
 
Staff Analysis: The mixed-use project is not anticipated to produce significant air pollution emissions that are greater than 

that of a development permitted by right.  The applicant states that no manufacturing or fabrication will occur on-site.  

The repair and maintenance of rented equipment will be done indoors.  The proposed use of a distribution facility and 

repair and maintenance do not pose a pollution hazard to the nearby properties.  Meets Criterion. 

 
4. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to the thoroughfare system that neither extension nor 
enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion of 
public cost than would result from development permitted by right. 
 
Staff Analysis: The project is not anticipated to cause a higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than what 
would result from a development permitted by right.  Meets Criterion. 
 
5. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to water lines, sanitary sewers, storm sewers, surface 
drainage systems and other utility systems that neither extension nor enlargement nor any other alteration of such 
systems in a manner resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from 
development permitted by right. 
 



PZB No. 20-01400035 

P a g e  | 12 
 

Staff Analysis: The project will be utilizing the existing City utility lines installed in late 1980s/early 1990s.  The sewer main 
is considered maximum size for an industrial area.  No adverse impact to infrastructure or public utilities is anticipated to 
occur as a result of this request.  Meets Criterion. 
 
6. The proposed conditional use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire protection service beyond the capacity 
of those services.  
 
Staff Analysis: The proposed development is not anticipated to place a demand on municipal police or fire protection 
service beyond the capacity of those services.  In attempt to reduce the crime potential at this location, the application 
proposes controlling access to the site through the use of security gates that will restrict access to the site.  Meets 
Criterion. 
 
7. The proposed conditional use will not generate significant noise, or will appropriately mitigate anticipated noise to a 
level compatible with that which would result from a development permitted by right. Any proposed use must meet all 
the requirements and stipulations set forth in section 15.24, Noise control. 
 
Staff Analysis: Unreasonable noise, which is defined in Section 15.24-1, is prohibited in the City when: 

 Equal to or greater than 65 dba between 11:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m., Sunday through Thursday 

 Greater than 85 dba between 8:00 a.m. and 11:00 p.m., Sunday through Thursday 

 Equal to or greater than 65 dba between 12:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m., Friday through Saturday 

 Equal to or greater than 85 dba between 8:00 a.m. and 12:00 a.m., Friday through Saturday 

 
Based on the uses being proposed, the project is conditioned to prohibit generating noise levels that exceed Section 15.24. 
Meets Criterion. 
 
8. The proposed conditional use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any adjacent property in excess of 
that allowed in Section 23.4-3, Exterior lighting. 
 

Staff Analysis: The proposed project will not generate light or glare that would negatively impact the surrounding 
properties.  Based on the photometric plan submitted, the proposed development complies with LDR Section 23.4-3, 
Exterior Lighting.  Meets Criterion. 

 
Section 23.4-19: Outdoor Storage 

 

1. Outdoor storage in residential districts. Outdoor storage in residential districts for residential purposes shall be limited 
to domestic equipment and normal supplies necessary for residents. Storage shall not be permitted in any front yard. 

 

Staff Analysis: This project is not located in a residential district, therefore this criterion does not apply. 

 

2. Outdoor storage industrial. Outdoor storage in the I-POC industrial district shall be permitted only as accessory to an 
approved principal use. All such storage shall be completely screened from all public rights-of-way and any adjacent 
property that is zoned for residential or mixed use. Outdoor storage of equipment, vehicles, boats, parts, materials, or 
chemicals are required to be stored on an impervious paved surface to reduce pollutants in storm water runoff. 

 

Staff Analysis: The outdoor storage as part of this proposal is accessory to the distribution facility and repair and 
maintenance uses seeking approval through this Conditional Use Permit.  The outdoor storage areas are screened from 
the residential areas to the south and west, and conditions of approval have been added to ensure the areas are screened 
from all rights-of-ways in accordance with this section and Section 23.4-4.  Meets Criterion. 

https://library.municode.com/HTML/10091/level3/PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART4DEST.html#PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART4DEST_S23.4-10OREPA


PZB No. 20-01400035 

P a g e  | 13 
 

 

3. Outdoor storage in planned development and mixed use districts. Outdoor storage facilities shall be limited to the 
following: 

a. Outdoor storage of merchandise for sale within the establishment located on the site shall be limited to the 
area located between the front façade and the public right-of-way and shall only be outside of the building during 
hours of operation. However, this does not apply to the outdoor display of vehicles for sale or rent. 

b. In any commercial planned development, all outdoor storage shall be expressly approved by the city 
commission as part of the ordinance adopting the commercial planned development. 

c. Approval of outdoor storage in a commercial planned development or mixed use district shall include mitigation 
measures to protect adjacent properties from the impacts of the outdoor storage. 

 

Staff Analysis: The proposed project is not located within a planned development or mixed-use district, therefore this 
criterion does not apply. 

 

4. The outdoor storage of all licensed vehicles that are being repaired must be screened from all public rights-of-way or 
stored completely within an enclosed structure. There shall be no storage of junk or unlicensed vehicles within the public 
right-of way at any time. 

 

Staff Analysis: There are no vehicle repair uses associated with the operations of the site, therefore this criterion does not 
apply. 

 

5. The outdoor storage of unlicensed vehicles and/or junked vehicles, boats, machinery, trucks, trailers, mobile homes 
and heavy equipment vehicles is prohibited, except in approved junk yards or the temporary storage of such vehicles on 
a lot or parcel approved and containing an active business license for vehicle towing. 

 

Staff Analysis: There will be no unlicensed and/or junked vehicles stored on-site, therefore this criterion does not apply.  
Meets Criterion. 

 

Public Support/Opposition: 
 

Staff has received five letters opposing the petition.  Mr. Daniel Hiatt, who is a property owner within 400 feet of the 
subject property, has requested to be an affected party. 
 
CONCLUSION: 

The proposed request for a Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and Sustainable Bonus Program Incentive is consistent 
with the purpose, intent and requirements of the Comprehensive Plan, underlying zoning district, and surrounding areas 
as subject to compliance with staff’s proposed conditions of approval. Therefore, staff recommends that the Board 
recommend approval of the proposed request with the conditions below:  

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
Electric:  

1. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy: 
a. The 10-ft-wide electric easement will be needed and recorded prior to the issuance of a Certificate of 

Occupancy. 
b. The customer will be responsible for installing Lake Worth Beach’s two 4” schedule-40 gray electric 

conduits at a minimum of 42” deep. 
2. Prior to the issuance of a building permit: 



PZB No. 20-01400035 

P a g e  | 14 
 

a. The electrical riser diagram and the load calculations will be needed. 
 
Planning: 

1. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, all fencing on-site shall meet the applicable requirements of Sections 
23.4-4 and Section 23.4-19. 

2. The project is prohibited from generating noise levels that exceed regulations found in Section 15.24. 
 
Public Works: 

1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code and all other 
applicable standards including but not limited to the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), Manual on 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), and City of Lake Worth Public Works Construction Standards and 
Policy and Procedure Manual.  

2. Prior to the issuance of a building permit: 
a. the applicant shall contact the Lake Worth Drainage (LWDD) District’s Engineering Department and 

obtain any required permit(s), if necessary, and furnish to the City.  Prior to the issuance of a building 
permit, the applicant shall contact the South Florida Water Management District’s (SFWMD) Engineering 
Department and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary. 

b. the Applicant shall contact and meet with a representative from the Public Works Solid Waste and 
Recycling Division to confirm dumpster enclosure location, accessibility and demand on property and 
that it is compatible with the requirements of the Department of Public Works.  Solid Waste and 
Recycling Division contact number is 561-533-7344. 

c. the applicant shall provide architectural details for the dumpster enclosure to confirm the enclosure 
meets the standards of the Public Works Dept. 

3. Prior to performing work in the right of way, the applicant shall apply for and receive issuance of a “Right of 
Way/Utility Permit” application  

4. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy: 
a. All conditions of approval must be satisfied under jurisdiction of the Department of Public Works  
b. The Applicant shall ensure the entire surrounding off-site infrastructure inclusive of the roadway, 

sidewalk, curbing, stormwater system piping and structures, valve boxes, manholes, landscaping, 
striping, signage, and other improvements are in the same condition as prior to construction 

c. The applicant shall fine grade and sod all disturbed areas with bahia sod  
d. The applicant shall broom sweep all areas of the affected right of way and remove of all silt and debris 

collected as a result of construction activity 
e. The applicant shall restore the right of way to a like or better condition.  Any damages to pavement, 

curbing, striping, sidewalks or other areas shall be restored in kind 
f. The trench patch for the utility crossing on 7th Ave North shall be restored in accordance with the 

construction standards of the Public Works Dept.  
 
Water & Sewer: 

1. Water & Sewer Utility Plan: 
2. Prior to the issuance of a building permit: 

a. Center the 15-foot-wide easement over the water main. 
b. Add or move the in-line valve at the edge of the easement for the fire line.  This will delineate the 

private/utility ownership.  
c. Provide a valve at the southern watermain connection.   
d. Note to engineer:  The proposed watermain has been installed in 7th Ave N, the utility department will 

have the as-built plan shortly.  If practical, the actual utility location should be referenced.   
e. Move the water service parallel to the fire line or propose a location that minimize the easement 

extension and path under asphalt.  Near the entrance or tapping the main off of 7th Ave N is an option 
since the meter can be set close to the property line. 



PZB No. 20-01400035 

P a g e  | 15 
 

f. Adjust the water main and/or slope of bank at the lake to provide a minimum of 10 feet flat space for 
maintenance access.  Consider vehicles and equipment having to navigate around the lake bank at the 
southeast corner. 

g. Capacity fees for water and sewer must be paid in full in accordance with the current City Ordinance. 
h. The site shall permit through LWDD and/or SFWMD for the stormwater management and provide a 

copy to Water Utilities. 
i. The following shall be provided: 

i. At time of engineering submittal, provide a full drawing set including any updated drainage 
calculations, and any permits or permitting information from SFWMD and LWDD. 

ii. Add all structure and utility conflict information on the plans. 
iii. Complete water, sewer and drainage plans showing proposed pipe sizes, materials, structure 

sizes, utility crossing elevations, hydrants, manholes, as well as all pertinent site elevations. 
iv. Permits from the PBC Health Department for the Watermain extension and the private lift 

station connection  
v. If applicable, show irrigation service line/s up the meter and backflow RPZ device/s. 

vi. Show water & sewer services, drainage structures, and storm mains on landscape plan. Confirm 
minimum spacing between landscape and services per Public Services Detail 23, Typical Tree 
with Root Barrier.  

vii. Fireflow calculations based on a recent hydrant test.  Contact Pedro Segovia with Palm Beach 
County at psegovia@pbcgov.com 

viii. Signed and sealed Drainage Calculations including a drainage statement from the engineer 
regarding floodplain management provisions for water quality and quantity shall be provided to 
the City. 

ix. Provide geotechnical information for the determination of the hydraulic conductivity of the soil, 
and groundwater elevation. 

x. An Erosion Control plan and with the BMPs and NPDES compliance practices shall be provided 
for the project site. 

xi. Engineering plans shall include cross-sections along each property line and with grading showing 
the design storm (3 yr, 1 hour (2.6”)) runoff being maintained on site. 

xii. Provide existing and proposed site grades. 
xiii. Indicate vertical datum on all plan drawings with grades. 
xiv. All applicable City of Lake Worth details. 

 
Lake Worth Drainage District: 

1. This project will require a drainage outfall connection permit from this District if they will be draining to the E-4 
Canal. 

 

Board Actions:  
I MOVE TO APPROVE OF PZB PROJECT NUMBER 20-01400035 with staff recommended conditions for a Major Site Plan, 
Conditional Use Permit, and Sustainable Bonus Program Incentive to construct a +/-47,000 square foot distribution facility 
and repair and maintenance uses commonly referred to as “Umdasch/Doka” and located at the subject site.  The project 
meets the applicable criteria based on the data and analysis in the staff report. 
 
I MOVE TO DENY PZB PROJECT NUMBER 20-01400035 for a Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and Sustainable Bonus 
Program Incentive to construct a +/-47,000 square foot distribution facility and repair and maintenance uses commonly 
referred to as “Umdasch/Doka” and located at the subject site.  The project does not meet the applicable criteria for the 
following reasons [Board member please state reasons.] 
 
Consequent Action:  



PZB No. 20-01400035 

P a g e  | 16 
 

The Planning & Zoning Board’s decision will be final for the Major Site Plan, Sustainable Bonus, and Conditional Use Permit. 
The Applicant may appeal the Board’s decision to the City Commission. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

A. Site Plan Package 
B. Supplemental Supporting Documents 

 
 



A-0.0

COVER SHEET

N.T.S.

2020-11-13

2209 7th Avenue North Lake Worth Beach, Florida

UMDASCH REAL ESTATE USA, LTD

OWNER:

UMDASCH REAL ESTATE, USA, LTD.
214 Gates Road
Little Ferry, NJ 07463
Contact: Louis Goldberg
T - 201-853-0594
E - louis.goldberg@doka.com

ARCHITECT:
HNM ARCHITECTURE, LLC
3705 North Federal Highway
Delray Beach, FL  33435
Contact: Jaime O. Mayo
T - 561-733-2225
E - jmayo@hnm-architecture.com

THIS PROJECT IS TO BE BUILT IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL CITY OF
LAKE WORTH BEACH BUILDING DEPARTMENT REQUIREMENTS AND
AMENDMENTS, PALM BEACH COUNTY REQUIREMENTS AND
FOLLOWING CODES:
· 2017 FLORIDA BUILDING CODE
· NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE 2014
· 2017 THE FLORIDA FIRE PREVENTION CODE
· NFPA-101, 2015 EDITION W/ FLORIDA AMENDMENTS
· NFPA 1 UNIFORM FIRE CODE 2015 W/ FLORIDA AMENDMENTS
· FLORIDA STATUES
· FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

ALL WORK TO COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING CODES:

VICINTY MAP

CIVIL & LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE:

KIMLEY-HORN
600 North Pine Island Road, Suite 450
Plantation, FL 33324
Contact: George Balaban
T - 954-716-8824
E - george.balaban@kimley-horn.com

SITE AND BUILDING STATISTICSPROJECT TEAM DRAWING INDEX

THIS PRO-ECT

NOTES

CIVIL:

C-100 COVER SHEET
C-101 GENERAL NOTES
C-102 DEMOLITION & EROSION CONTROL NOTES
C-103 DEMOLITION & EROSION CONTROL PLAN
C-104 DEMOLITION & EROSION CONTROL PLAN
C-105 DEMOLITION & EROSION CONTROL DETAILS
C-106 GEOMETRY SIGNAGE AND STRIPING PLAN
C-107 GEOMETRY SIGNAGE AND STRIPING PLAN
C-200 PAVING, GRADING, & DRAINAGE PLAN
C-201 PAVING, GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN
C-202 DRAINAGE PLAN
C-203 DRAINAGE PLAN
C-204 DRAINAGE DETAILS
C-205 PAVING, GRADING, & DRAINAGE DETAILS
C-206 PAVING, GRADING, & DRAINAGE DETAILS
C-207 PAVING, GRADING, & DRAINAGE DETAILS
C-300 UTILITY PLAN
C-301 UTILITY PLAN
C-302 CITY OF LAKE WORTH SEWER DETAILS
C-303 CITY OF LAKE WORTH SEWER DETAILS
C-304 CITY OF LAKE WORTH WATER DETAILS
C-305 CITY OF LAKE WORTH WATER DETAILS

A-0.1 SITE PLAN
A-0.2 PHOTOMETRIC SITE PLAN
A-0.3 SITE DETAILS
A-0.4 SITE DETAILS

A-0.0      COVER SHEET

SURVEY

A-1.0      OVERALL BUILDING FLOOR PLAN
A-1.1      ENLARGED OFFICE FLOOR PLANS
A-3.0 ROOF PLAN
A-4.0     EAST & NORTH ELEVATIONS
A-4.1      WEST ELEVATION
A-4.2       SOUTH ELEVATIONS
A-4.3       SECTIONS
A-4.4 NORTH & EAST RENDERED ELEVATIONS
A-4.5 WEST RENDERED ELEVATION
A-4.6 SOUTH RENDERED ELEVATION

ARCHITECTURAL:

LANDSCAPE:

L-000       TREE DISPOSITION PLAN
L-001       TREE DISPOSITION PLAN
L-100       LANDSCAPE PLAN
L-101       LANDSCAPE PLAN
L-150 LANDSCAPE DETAILS
L-151 LANDSCAPE NOTES

SURVEY:

SITE DATA TABLE

O
ff

ic
e/

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 F
ac

ili
ty

 a
t

2
2
0
9
 7

th
 A

v
en

u
e 

N
o

rt
h

C
it

y 
o

f 
L

ak
e 

W
o

rt
h

 B
ea

ch
, 
F

lo
ri

d
a

DATE
REVISION

NO.

ALL DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS ARE
THE COPYRIGHT PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT AND MUST BE
RETURNED UPON REQUEST.  REPRODUCTION OF DRAWINGS,
SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS IN PART OR WHOLE
IS FORBIDDEN WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT'S WRITTEN PERMISSION.

CONTRACTOR MUST CHECK AND VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS
AND FIELD CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT/ENGINEER
IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

SCALE:

TITLE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

ISSUED DATE:

3705 North Federal Highway ▪  Delray Beach, Florida 33483 ▪  T. 561.733.2225
info@hnm-architecture.com ▪  AA26000726  ▪    www. hnm-architecture.com

MICHAEL W. HANLON
FLORIDA REGISTERED ARCHITECT  .   REG. NUMBER: AR0017270

HNM PROJECT NUMBER:

19-009.1

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE SERIAL NUMBER:

UM
D

A
SC

H 
RE

A
L

ES
TA

TE
 U

SA
, L

TD

Parking Stalls:     9' x 18'
Parking Reqd:     Industrial 1 per 1,000 sf

Totla Parking Required:   49 (48,217 sf  @ 1/1,000)
Total Parking Provided:   80 (incld 2 HC)   

PARKING STATS

SITE AREA:                                         427,562 Sq Ft
     less 20ft ROW dedication:              -     8,095 Sq Ft
NET SITE AREA:                                419,467 Sq Ft or  9.63 acres

GROSS BUILDING AREA:                  48,217 Sq Ft

PROPOSED LOT COVEAGE:                10.5 % of Net Site Area
(43,946 sf Ground Floor Area)

MAX.  ALLOWED LOT COVERAGE:   55.00%

PROPOSED FLOOR AREA RATIO:                0.11
MAX . ALLOWED FLOOR AREA RATIO:      1.10

LANDSCAPE/PERVIOUS AREA:        167,409.42 Sq Ft  or 39.9% of Net Site Area

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS AREA:               208,111.58 Sq Ft

PROPOSED IMPERMEABLE AREA:                              49.6% of Net Site Area
MAX. ALLOWED IMPERMEABLE AREA:                     65.00%

SITE STATISTICS

EXISTING ZONING DISTRICT:  I-POC
PROPOSED ZONING DISTRICT:   I-POC
EXISTING FLU DESIGNATION:    Industrial
PROPOSED FLU DESIGNATION:  Industrial

REQUIRED LOT AREA:  13,000 SF
PROPOSED LOT AREA: 419,467 SF
REQUIRED LOT WIDTH: 100 FT
PROPOSED LOT WIDTH: 400 FT

PERMITTED BUILDING HEIGHT: 45 FT (with Sustainable Bonus Incentive  Program)
PROPOSED BUILDING HEIGHT:   35'-0"

SITE PLAN APPLICATION
2020-11-13

AutoCAD SHX Text
SETBACKS**                        REQUIRED    PROVIDED **                        REQUIRED    PROVIDED REQUIRED    PROVIDED     PROVIDED PROVIDED FRONT (7TH AVE. NORTH - NORTH)  20-32 feet     20'-0"  SIDE   (EAST)                        0 feet    191'-11"         SIDE   (WEST)                        0 feet     88'- 4  " 38" REAR   (SOUTH)*                     91 feet*   437'- 11  " 38" Notes: * Required Rear Setback is 20ft or 10% of Lot Depth. Lot Depth = 910'-0" Required Rear Setback is 20ft or 10% of Lot Depth. Lot Depth = 910'-0" ** Refer to Site Plan for proposed setback dimensions/locations Refer to Site Plan for proposed setback dimensions/locations 

AutoCAD SHX Text
7th AVENUE NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE WORTH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUTWELL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKETCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1



LOT 5

LOT 6

LOT 7

TRACT "A-1"

LOT 15

LOT 14 2
3
rd

 A
V

E
N

U
E

 S
O

U
T

H

7TH AVENUE NORTH

Boutwell Industrial Park I-POC ZONING

(Open Drainage Area - No Strucutres)

2
3
R

D
 A

V
E

N
U

E
 N

O
R

T
H

L
A

K
E

 W
O

R
T

H
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 E
-4

 C
A

N
A

L
 (

U
N

IN
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 P
.B

.C
.)

Marlin Industrial Park

I-POC ZONING

Marlin Industrial Park

I-POC ZONING

Marlin Industrial Park

I-POC ZONING

Marlin Industrial Park

I-POC ZONING

'Open Drainage Area'

Marlin Commerce Center

I-POC ZONING

M
ar

lin
 I

n
d

u
st

ri
al

 P
ar

k
I-

P
O

C
 Z

O
N

IN
G

'O
p

en
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

A
re

a'

TRACT 81

Oakwood Apartments
MU-W ZONING

TRACT
"A-2"

·

·

·

·

·

·

50'-0" 100'-0" 150'-0" 200'-0" 250'-0" 300'-0"0'-0"

25'-0" 75'-0" 125'-0" 175'-0" 225'-0" 275'-0"

GRAPHIC SCALE

NORTH

2-story Office
10,150 GSF

1-story
MAINT. SHOP/

WAREHOUSE
26,617 GSF

OUTDOOR
OPEN AIRCANOPY

 STRUCTURE
11,160 GSF

LAKE
97,264 sf

or
2.23 Acres

OUTDOOR
 STORAGE AREA

104,342 SF

63
Pking
Stalls

·

·

·

·

·

2020-11-13

1" = 50'-0"

SITE PLAN

A-0.1
1"=50'-0"

1 PROPOSED SITE PLAN

O
ff

ic
e/

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 F
ac

ili
ty

 a
t

2
2
0
9
 7

th
 A

v
en

u
e 

N
o

rt
h

C
it

y 
o

f 
L

ak
e 

W
o

rt
h

 B
ea

ch
, 
F

lo
ri

d
a

DATE
REVISION

NO.

ALL DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS ARE
THE COPYRIGHT PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT AND MUST BE
RETURNED UPON REQUEST.  REPRODUCTION OF DRAWINGS,
SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS IN PART OR WHOLE
IS FORBIDDEN WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT'S WRITTEN PERMISSION.

CONTRACTOR MUST CHECK AND VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS
AND FIELD CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT/ENGINEER
IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

SCALE:

TITLE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

ISSUED DATE:

3705 North Federal Highway ▪  Delray Beach, Florida 33483 ▪  T. 561.733.2225
info@hnm-architecture.com ▪  AA26000726  ▪    www. hnm-architecture.com

MICHAEL W. HANLON
FLORIDA REGISTERED ARCHITECT  .   REG. NUMBER: AR0017270

HNM PROJECT NUMBER:

19-009.1

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE SERIAL NUMBER:

UM
D

A
SC

H 
RE

A
L

ES
TA

TE
 U

SA
, L

TD

SITE PLAN APPLICATION
2020-11-13

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES PROPERTY LINE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FENCELINE AND TREE LINE ON ADJACENT RESID PROPERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES NEW 6FT HIGH PRE-CAST CONC SCREEN WALL ALONG ENTIRE LENGTH OF WESTERN PROPERTY LINE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
400.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88%%d07'43"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01%%d25'48"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
656.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
331.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88%%d07'04"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01%%d46'43"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
210.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
414.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88%%d07'04"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
931.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N23%%d11'33"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL FENCES AND GATES SHALL 8FT HIGH, GALVANIZED, CHAIN LINK W/ GALVANIZED POSTS. GATES SHALL REMAIN OPEN DURING HOURS OF OPERATION. REFER TO KNOX BOX LOCATION ON THIS SHEET FOR FIRE DEPT ACCESS DURING AFTER HOURS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES LINE OF LAKE MAINT ESMT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES LINE OF TOP OF BANK (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES LINE OF EDGE OF WATER (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES EDGE OF EXISTING PAVEMENT ALONG 7TH AVE. NORTH (REFER TO SURVEY & CIVIL DOCS FOR NEW ROADWAYIMPROVEMENTS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES LINE OF EXIST R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES LINE OF NEW R.O.W./ PROPERTY ALONG NORTH OF SUBJECT PROPERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES CANAL RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALLS ARE APPROX 2.5" THICK CONCRETE PANELS SET IN 5" X 5" CONCRETE POSTS AT APPROX 5FT ON CENTER OVERALL HEIGHT OF PRECAST CONCRETE WALLS SHALL BE 6 FEET. REFER TO A0.3 FOR DETAILS AND LANDSCAPE DOCS FOR MORE INFO..

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES LINE OF REQUIRED 91'-0" REAR SETBACK (BASED UPON 910 FOOT LOT DEPTH).

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE AND ENTRY GATE NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST CONCRETE SCREEN WALL NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: REFER TO ARCH COVER SHEET A0.0 FOR SITE DATA TABLE / SITE & PARKING STATS REFER TO ARCH COVER SHEET A0.0 FOR SITE DATA TABLE / SITE & PARKING STATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOT HATCH DENOTES THE 8,095 SF OF ROW BEING DEDICATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES NEW CONTINUOUS 8 FT HIGH, GALV. CLF ALONG EASTERN PROPERTY LINE OFFSET 1'-0" (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUBLE DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R35'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
KB

AutoCAD SHX Text
KNOX BOX WALL MTD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE-CAST CONC SCREEN WALL, OFF SET 1'-0' FROM SOUTHERN PROPERTY LINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACILITY'S REGULATORY SIGNS MOUNTED TO CHAIN LINK ROLLING GATES TO BE PROVIDED BY OTHERS. MAXIMUM COMBINED SIGN AREA ALLOWED =150 SF. (408 L.F. OF FRONTAGE)     -MAX WALL SIGN AREA PROPOSED 70 SF (100 SF ALLOWED) - SEE ELEV.     -MAX FREESTANDING SIGN PROPOSED 80 SF (200 SF ALLOWED)     -TOTAL SIGN AREA PROPOSED = 150 SF ALL SIGNS SHALL WITHSTAND WIND PRESSURES PER ASCE-7. ANY/ALL SIGNS REQUIRED TO BE PERMITTED SHALL HAVE PROPER LABELS AFFIXED TO SUCH SIGN AS REQUIRED. WALL MOUNTED AND FREESTANDING SIGNS SHOWN FOR CODE COMPLIANCE ONLY AND ARE NOT INTENDED TO BE CONSTRUCTED WITH THIS PROJECT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGNAGE NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 8 FT HIGH, GALV. CLF OFFSET 1'-0" FROM PROPERTY LINE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 8 FT HIGH, GALV. CLF OFFSET 1'-0" FROM PROPERTY LINE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
R90'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
R180'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
R30'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
R30'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES EDGE OF PAVEMENT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES NEW 6FT HIGH PRE-CAST CONC SCREEN WALL ALONG ENTIRE LENGTH OF WESTERN PROPERTY LINE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES APPROX EDGE OF EXIST CANAL BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
R25'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20FT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
32FT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EGRESS GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN ENTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.D.C. & D.D.C.V.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FPL TX &  PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10FT X 8FT FREESTANDING SIGN SEE NOTES ON THIS SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES TRANSFORMER CLEARANCE. 8FT MIN. IN FRONT AND MIN. 3 FT ON SIDES AND BACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 31'-0" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 38'-6" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 27'-0" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1



50'-0" 100'-0" 150'-0" 200'-0" 250'-0" 300'-0"0'-0"

25'-0" 75'-0" 125'-0" 175'-0" 225'-0" 275'-0"

GRAPHIC SCALE

NORTH

LAKE
97,264 sf

or
2.23 Acres

SA

MH: 30

SA

MH: 30

SC

MH: 30

SC

MH: 30

SC

MH: 30

SD

MH: 22

SD

MH: 22

SD

MH: 22

SC

MH: 30

SB

MH: 30

SB

MH: 30

SB

MH: 30

SB

MH: 30

SB

MH: 30

SB

MH: 30

SB

MH: 30

SB

MH: 30

SC

MH: 30

SB

MH: 30

SB

MH: 30

1.3 2.3 2.1 2.8
3.2

3.3
2.7

2.3
2.3

1.6
1.4

1.9
2.5

2.3 3.3 2.9 3.4 2.3
2.5

1.9
1.4

1.4
2.0

2.5
2.4

3.4
2.9

3.2 2.2 2.4 1.5

1.2 2.1 2.6 3.1
2.8

2.9
3.0

2.7
2.2

1.5
1.4

1.8
2.5 2.8 3.1 2.6 3.1 2.9

2.5
1.8

1.3
1.3

1.9
2.5

2.9
3.0

2.6
3.1 2.8 2.3 1.5

1.2 2.2 2.9 2.4
2.0

2.0
2.7

3.0
2.2

1.4
1.3

1.7
2.8 3.0 2.2 2.0 2.1 3.0

2.8
1.8

1.2
1.3

1.9
3.0

3.0
2.1

2.0
2.2 3.0 2.6 1.4

1.5 2.0 1.9
1.6

1.7

1.6 1.7 2.1 1.8

1.4 1.5 1.3

1.3 1.6 1.5

1.1 1.2 1.2

1.4 1.3 1.3

1.2 1.2 1.3

1.6 1.5 1.6

1.8 1.7 2.0

2.4 2.3 2.4

2.5 2.7 2.6

3.1 2.8 2.3

2.6 3.3 2.4

2.6 3.1 2.8

3.8 2.6 2.0

2.1 2.8 3.3

3.2 2.4 2.0

2.1 2.8 3.3

3.7 4.0 2.6 2.0

2.5 3.1 2.8

6.4
6.1

3.4 3.2 3.0 3.4 2.4

2.9 2.7 2.3

7.5
8.1

8.3
6.1

6.2
4.4

4.2 3.6 2.9 3.0 2.6

2.2 2.2 2.3

6.2
7.0

6.6
9.5

7.6
8.0

7.8
7.8

5.6 4.3 3.3 2.5 2.0 2.0

1.3 1.4 1.5

7.1 6.0 4.9
5.3

6.8
7.0

8.1
6.0

5.4
5.6

5.7
5.5

4.9 3.3 2.1 1.5 1.2

1.1 1.2 1.3

7.3 6.8 6.4 6.6
4.8

4.6
6.1

8.4
6.9

5.2
4.9

4.0
3.3

3.6 3.3 2.6 1.9 1.3 1.0

1.4 1.4 1.5

5.9
6.6

8.3 8.3 9.1 7.0 6.9
5.1

4.3
5.6

6.6
4.7

3.8
3.5

3.1
2.9

2.4 2.2 1.8 1.4 1.1 1.0

2.3 2.2 2.4

4.9
6.3

6.5
9.3 6.9 6.9 7.9 8.1

6.2
4.9

5.5
4.9

3.5
3.2

3.1
2.8

2.5
2.0 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1

2.9 2.7 2.2

6.0
7.7

6.7 5.5 5.4 5.2 5.3
5.4

5.4
5.1

3.9
2.9

2.7
2.5

2.2
1.9

1.6 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.8

2.4 3.1 2.8

2.9
5.4

7.3
5.5

4.8 4.4 3.7 3.4
3.7

3.8
3.5

2.9
2.2

2.0
1.8

1.6
1.4

1.4 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.3 3.3

2.0 2.7 3.3

2.4
4.8

5.1 3.5 3.4 3.3 3.3 3.1
2.6

2.6
2.3

1.9
1.5

1.4
1.3

1.2
1.2

2.9 3.5 4.3 5.9

2.0 2.8 3.3

1.1
2.3

3.8
3.5 2.7 3.0 3.1 3.0 2.6

2.1
1.7

1.5
1.3

1.1
1.0

6.1 6.4
7.5 3.8

2.5 3.0 2.7

1.0
1.9

2.5
2.4 2.1 2.5 2.6 2.4 2.0

1.7
1.3

1.1

5.8 7.4 6.1
4.8

2.9 2.7 2.2

1.5
1.7

1.8 1.7 2.2 2.4 2.0 1.7
1.3

8.6
6.7

5.2
3.8

2.2 2.1 2.3

1.2
1.5

1.6 1.8 2.5 2.6 2.0

7.3
9.1

6.0
4.3

1.3 1.3 1.4

1.4
1.7

2.0 2.4 3.4 2.9 2.1 1.6

6.2
6.0

7.5
6.5

1.0 1.1 1.1

2.5
3.0 3.8 4.7 3.1 2.1 1.9

6.0
5.1

4.0
3.4

1.2 1.2 1.3

4.0
4.2 4.8 5.2 3.0 2.4 2.2

3.8
2.7

2.0
1.6

1.9 1.9 2.0

3.9 5.1 4.2 3.4 2.7 2.2
2.0

1.6
1.3

1.0

2.9 2.5 2.4

4.5
6.3 4.4 3.4 3.1 2.4

2.1

1.1
1.1

1.1
1.4

2.7 2.9 2.5

4.6 5.3 3.6 3.4 2.4
2.1

1.6

1.3
1.5

1.8
2.5

2.0 2.9 3.4

4.8 5.8 5.2 5.0 3.4
2.7

2.0

2.8
3.4

4.8
4.1

2.0 2.6 3.0

3.9 4.0 4.6 4.9
4.5 3.5

2.5

5.4
5.9

7.8
4.5

2.2 3.1 3.1

4.6 4.1 3.4 3.2
3.4

2.8
1.8

6.1
7.0

4.9
3.4

2.9 2.8 2.2

3.6 3.2 2.9 3.0
3.6

2.6
1.8

8.4
7.1

5.1
4.1

2.5 2.3 2.4

3.2 3.3
4.0

3.9
2.6

1.8
1.5

6.8
8.6

5.4
4.4

3.0

1.4 1.5 1.6

4.1 4.4 5.4
4.3

2.3
2.1

1.8

6.8
7.6

6.7
4.1

1.0 1.1 1.2

4.0 4.1
5.4

3.9
2.9

2.3
2.1

5.9
5.7

4.9
4.1

1.0 1.1
1.2

5.0
5.9

3.5
3.3

2.6
2.2

1.8

3.3
2.4

1.9
1.7

1.5 1.6
1.7

4.5 4.9
4.2

3.3
2.8

2.2
1.9

1.8
1.4

1.1

2.6 2.4 2.5

5.7
5.8

4.7
3.7

2.7
2.1

1.6

1.2
1.1

1.0
1.0 1.4

3.0 2.9 2.2

4.3
4.2

5.3
5.1

3.7
2.8

2.0

1.3
1.5

1.8 2.8

2.2 3.1
3.3

4.4
4.1

3.6
3.4

3.3
2.3

2.2
2.7

3.5 4.9

2.1 2.6
3.0

3.7
3.1

2.7
2.9

3.2
2.3

1.5

5.2
6.4 5.9 3.2

2.1 3.0
3.5

3.0
2.9

3.0
3.7

3.3
2.2

1.6

5.6
7.5

5.9 3.8

2.9 3.0
2.5

3.7
4.1

5.1
3.5

2.1
1.9

1.5

6.9
9.2 5.3 4.8 3.4

3.0 2.6
2.5

4.4
4.5

5.5
3.4

2.5
2.1

1.9

7.5
6.3 5.2 3.6

2.0 2.0
2.1

3.9
5.1

4.8
3.3

3.0
2.2

2.1
1.6

7.9 7.7 5.0 3.5

1.5 1.5
1.4

5.6
5.0

3.5
3.3

2.5
2.2 1.8

6.2 5.6 4.3 3.0

1.6 1.4
1.3

4.4
6.0

4.4
3.7

2.7
2.3 1.8

3.7 3.1 3.3 3.0
2.6

2.5

2.8 1.9 1.7
1.6

5.1
5.3

5.7
4.3

3.4 2.4 1.5

2.7 2.6 3.1 2.7
2.5

3.0
3.6

3.2
2.6

2.8
2.9

2.8
2.9 3.7 4.0 3.4 2.8 2.4

2.4

4.2
4.6

4.8
4.6

4.4
2.9 1.7

3.3 3.7
2.7

2.4
2.8

4.3
4.9

4.1
3.6

3.7
3.8

4.8 5.3 3.6 3.0 3.5 3.0
2.4

4.4
3.8

3.7
3.3 2.4

4.8 4.0 2.8
2.7

3.1
4.2

5.7
5.4

4.3
4.3

4.8
6.2 5.1 3.4 2.7 3.1 3.4

2.9

3.9
3.6

3.9
2.8 1.7

4.1
2.9

3.0
3.5

5.5
6.6

5.7
6.5

4.8

2.9 2.6 3.1
3.5

3.3
3.0

3.5
2.5 1.7 1.3

3.6
3.4

3.1
3.8

4.9
4.7

4.7
5.0

4.8
5.0

4.5

2.6 3.0
3.4

3.3
3.4

2.2 1.9 1.4

5.2 3.7
3.6

3.1
3.4

4.3
4.3

2.9 3.3
2.9

3.3
3.1

2.4 2.0 1.4 1.1

5.7 4.3
3.6

2.7
2.4

1.9
1.5

3.1 2.8
2.2

3.5
3.2 2.8 1.8 1.3

5.1 5.2
5.2

3.6
2.5

1.7
1.2

2.2 2.1
2.2

2.4
3.0 2.4 1.7

4.0
3.0

1.9

1.1
1.1

1.2

0.0 0.0
0.1

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.1
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.1

0.1 0.2
0.3

0.3
0.2

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.1

0.1
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.00.1

0.1
0.0

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.00.1
0.1

0.1
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.00.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.00.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.7
1.6

2.0
2.1

1.6
1.4

2.0
2.0

1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5
2.0

2.0
1.3

1.4
2.1

2.1
1.6

1.7
1.7

1.3
1.3

1.4
1.3

1.3
1.5

1.5
1.5

1.5
1.4

1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1
1.3

1.4
1.5

1.5
1.5

1.5
1.3

1.4
1.4

1.4

1.4
1.5

1.4
1.2

1.0
1.0

1.1
1.1

1.0
0.9

1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0
0.9

1.0
1.1

1.1
1.1

1.0
1.3

1.5
1.7

1.6

1.6
1.5

1.2
1.0

0.8
0.7

0.7
0.7

0.7
0.6

0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7
0.6

0.7
0.7

0.7
0.8

0.8
1.1

1.4
1.8

2.0

2.0
1.4

1.0
0.8

0.6
0.5

0.5
0.5

0.5
0.5

0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5
0.5

0.5
0.5

0.5
0.6

0.7
0.9

1.2
1.7

2.3

1.9
1.3

0.9
0.7

0.5
0.4

0.4
0.4

0.3
0.3

0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4
0.3

0.3
0.4

0.4
0.5

0.6
0.8

1.1
1.4

2.0

1.4
1.2

1.0
0.7

0.5
0.4

0.3
0.3

0.3
0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3

0.3
0.3

0.3
0.3

0.4
0.6

0.8
1.2

1.3
1.6

1.5
1.3

1.1
0.7

0.5
0.4

0.3
0.2

0.2
0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2
0.2

0.3
0.3

0.4
0.6

0.9
1.2

1.3
1.7

1.5
1.2

1.1
0.7

0.5
0.4

0.3
0.2

0.2
0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.3

0.4
0.5

0.8
1.2

1.2
1.7

1.4
1.2

1.0
0.7

0.5
0.3

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.3

0.4
0.5

0.7
1.0

1.2
1.5

1.3
1.1

0.9
0.6

0.4
0.3

0.2
0.2

0.1
0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1
0.2

0.2
0.2

0.3
0.5

0.6
0.9

1.2
1.9 2.9

1.8
1.2

0.8
0.5

0.4
0.3

0.2
0.2

0.1
0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1
0.1

0.2
0.2

0.3
0.4

0.6
0.9

1.4 2.0

1.8
1.2

0.8
0.5

0.3
0.2

0.2
0.1

0.1
0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1
0.1

0.2
0.2

0.3
0.4

0.7
1.0

1.4 1.5

1.3
1.1

0.7
0.5

0.3
0.2

0.2
0.1

0.1
0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1
0.1

0.2
0.2

0.3
0.4

0.7
1.0

1.3 1.1

0.9
0.9

0.7
0.5

0.4
0.3

0.2
0.2

0.1
0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1
0.1

0.2
0.2

0.3
0.4

0.6
1.0

1.4 1.6

1.0
0.9

0.7
0.5

0.4
0.3

0.2
0.2

0.1
0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1
0.1

0.2
0.2

0.3
0.4

0.6
0.9

1.4 2.0

1.3
1.1

0.8
0.6

0.4
0.3

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1
0.1

0.2
0.2

0.3
0.4

0.6
0.9

1.1 1.8

2.2
1.5

1.0
0.6

0.5
0.4

0.3
0.2

0.2
0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1
0.1

0.2
0.2

0.3
0.5

0.7
1.0

1.2 1.5

3.3
2.0

1.2
0.9

0.6
0.4

0.3
0.3

0.2
0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1
0.2

0.2
0.3

0.3
0.5

0.8
1.1

1.2 1.6

3.9
2.4

1.8
1.2

0.8
0.5

0.4
0.3

0.2
0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1
0.2

0.2
0.3

0.3
0.5

0.7
1.1

1.2 1.6

3.1
2.5

1.6
1.0

0.6
0.4

0.3
0.2

0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
0.1

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.3

0.5
0.7

1.0
1.1 1.5

3.4
2.9

2.0
1.1

0.7
0.5

0.3
0.2

0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.2
0.2

0.3
0.4

0.6
0.8

1.2 1.8

3.0
2.1

1.2
0.7

0.5
0.3

0.2
0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.2

0.2
0.3

0.4
0.6

0.9
1.3 2.0

2.9
2.0

1.1
0.7

0.5
0.3

0.2
0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.2

0.2
0.3

0.4
0.6

0.9
1.3 1.4

4.1
2.4

1.4
0.8

0.6
0.4

0.3
0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.2

0.2
0.3

0.4
0.6

0.9
1.1 1.0

2.5
1.4

0.9
0.6

0.4
0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.2

0.2
0.3

0.4
0.6

0.9
1.3 1.3

1.4
1.2

1.0
0.7

0.5
0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.2

0.2
0.3

0.4
0.6

0.9
1.4 2.0

0.9
1.2

1.1
0.8

0.6
0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1

0.1
0.1

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.3

0.4
0.6

0.8
1.2 1.9

1.8
1.4

0.9
0.6

0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2
0.2

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.3

0.3
0.5

0.7
1.0

1.1 1.4

3.3
2.0

1.2
0.8

0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2
0.2

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.3

0.3
0.5

0.7
1.1

1.2 1.6

2.5
1.7

1.1
0.8 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.2

0.3
0.4

0.5
0.8

1.1 1.2 1.6

2.9
2.5

1.6
1.0 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.2

0.3
0.3

0.5
0.7

1.0 1.2 1.5

2.9
2.1

1.2 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.2
0.2

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.3

0.3
0.5

0.6
0.9

1.1 1.7

3.0
2.3

1.3 0.8 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2
0.2

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.2

0.3
0.4

0.6
0.9

1.3 2.0

2.1
1.3 0.8 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.3

0.4
0.6

0.9 1.3 1.7

2.6
1.5 0.9 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.3

0.4
0.6

0.9 1.2 1.0

2.8
1.6 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.3

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.3

0.4
0.6

0.9 1.2 1.1

1.3 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.3
0.3

0.2
0.2

0.2
0.3

0.3
0.4

0.6
0.9 1.4 1.9

1.1 1.1 0.9 0.6 0.5 0.4
0.3

0.3
0.3

0.3
0.3

0.4
0.5

0.6
0.9 1.3 2.0

1.5 1.1 0.7 0.5 0.4
0.4

0.3
0.3

0.3
0.3

0.4
0.5

0.7
1.0 1.1 1.6

2.3 1.4 0.9 0.7
0.5

0.4
0.4

0.4
0.4

0.4
0.5

0.6
0.8

1.1 1.2 1.6

3.0 1.8 1.3 0.9
0.7

0.5
0.5

0.4
0.4

0.5
0.5

0.6
0.9

1.2 1.2 1.7

2.7 1.9 1.3
0.9

0.7
0.5

0.5
0.5

0.5
0.6

0.7
0.9

1.2 1.3 1.7

3.2 2.6 1.7
1.1

0.8
0.6

0.6
0.5

0.6
0.7

0.7
0.9

1.1 1.3 1.6

2.9 1.9
1.3

0.9
0.7

0.7
0.7

0.7
0.8

0.8
0.9

1.1 1.5 2.2

3.0 2.1
1.4

1.1
0.9

0.8
0.9

0.9
1.0

1.0
1.1

1.3 1.7 2.3

2.5
1.7

1.4
1.1

1.1
1.2

1.3
1.4

1.4
1.5

1.6 1.9 1.7

2.2
1.9

1.7
1.5

1.8
2.0

2.1
2.0

1.9
2.0 2.1 1.8

2.4
2.2

2.3
2.4

2.3
2.4

2.4
2.7 3.0

Luminaire Schedule

Symbol Qty Label Description LLF Lum. Lumens

2 SA CREE LTG#: OSQ-HO-A-NM-4ME-65L-40K-UL-BZ / MTD AT 30' AFG 0.900 67369

10 SB CREE LTG#: OSQ-A-4ME-U-40K-UL-BLS / MTD AT 30' AFG 0.900 20427

5 SC CREE LTG#: OSQ-HO-A-4ME-40L-40K-UL--BLSF / MTD AT 30' AFG 0.900 35402

3 SD CREE LTG#: OSQ-HO-A-4ME-40L-40K-UL / WALL MTD AT 25' AFG 0.900 44930

Calculation Summary

Label CalcType Units Avg Max Min Avg/Min Max/Min

PARKING AREAS Illuminance Fc 3.27 9.5 1.0 3.27 9.50

PROPERTY LINE Illuminance Fc 0.02 0.3 0.0 N.A. N.A.

STORAGE LOT AREA Illuminance Fc 0.77 4.1 0.1 7.70 41.00

Filename: 2209-Site-2020-08-19.AGI

2020-11-13

1" = 50'-0"

PHOTOMETRICS
SITE PLAN

A-0.2
1"=50'-0"

1 PROPOSED SITE PLAN

O
ff

ic
e/

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 F
ac

ili
ty

 a
t

2
2
0
9
 7

th
 A

v
en

u
e 

N
o

rt
h

C
it

y 
o

f 
L

ak
e 

W
o

rt
h

 B
ea

ch
, 
F

lo
ri

d
a

DATE
REVISION

NO.

ALL DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS ARE
THE COPYRIGHT PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT AND MUST BE
RETURNED UPON REQUEST.  REPRODUCTION OF DRAWINGS,
SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS IN PART OR WHOLE
IS FORBIDDEN WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT'S WRITTEN PERMISSION.

CONTRACTOR MUST CHECK AND VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS
AND FIELD CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT/ENGINEER
IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

SCALE:

TITLE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

ISSUED DATE:

3705 North Federal Highway ▪  Delray Beach, Florida 33483 ▪  T. 561.733.2225
info@hnm-architecture.com ▪  AA26000726  ▪    www. hnm-architecture.com

MICHAEL W. HANLON
FLORIDA REGISTERED ARCHITECT  .   REG. NUMBER: AR0017270

HNM PROJECT NUMBER:

19-009.1

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE SERIAL NUMBER:

UM
D

A
SC

H 
RE

A
L

ES
TA

TE
 U

SA
, L

TD

SITE PLAN APPLICATION
2020-11-13

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
KB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1



O
ff

ic
e/

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 F
ac

ili
ty

 a
t

2
2
0
9
 7

th
 A

v
en

u
e 

N
o

rt
h

C
it

y 
o

f 
L

ak
e 

W
o

rt
h

 B
ea

ch
, 
F

lo
ri

d
a

DATE
REVISION

NO.

ALL DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS ARE
THE COPYRIGHT PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT AND MUST BE
RETURNED UPON REQUEST.  REPRODUCTION OF DRAWINGS,
SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS IN PART OR WHOLE
IS FORBIDDEN WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT'S WRITTEN PERMISSION.

CONTRACTOR MUST CHECK AND VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS
AND FIELD CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT/ENGINEER
IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

SCALE:

TITLE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

ISSUED DATE:

3705 North Federal Highway ▪  Delray Beach, Florida 33483 ▪  T. 561.733.2225
info@hnm-architecture.com ▪  AA26000726  ▪    www. hnm-architecture.com

MICHAEL W. HANLON
FLORIDA REGISTERED ARCHITECT  .   REG. NUMBER: AR0017270

HNM PROJECT NUMBER:

19-009.1

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE SERIAL NUMBER:

UM
D

A
SC

H 
RE

A
L

ES
TA

TE
 U

SA
, L

TD

1/2"=1'-0"

1 PRECAST CONC. WALL - TYP. PLAN DET.

3/8"=1'-0"

2 PRECAST CONC. WALL - ELEV. DET. 1/4"=1'-0"

4 TYP. LIGHT POLE DTL.

 

2020-09-02

AS NOTED

SITE DETAILS
 
 

A-0.3

3/4"=1'-0"

3 PRECAST CONC. WALL- SECTION

N.T.S.

5 LIGHT POLE HEAD DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST 5" X 3"  CAP RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6FT HIGH DECORATIVE WALL BY 'WALL WAY USA' OR APPROVED EQUAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST 2" X 12" X 57" PANELS (TYP) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST 5" X 5"  CONC POST (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST POST BEYOND @ 5'-0" O.C. MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST 5" X 3" CAP RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST 2.2" THICK CONC WALL PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
40" X 18" POST FOUNDATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" OR 1" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" X 5" HAND HOLE W/ WATERPROOF COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" VOID

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECT BURIAL CONCRETE POLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 GROUND WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 GND, SOLID TINNED COPPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"X10' COPPERCLAD STEEL GROUND ROD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURNDY TYPE "GRC" HIGH STRENGTH GROUND ROD  CLAMP OR EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: THE POLE SUPPLIER SHALL CERTIFY THAT POLE WITH FIXTURE AS SPECIFIED MEETS THE MIN. RISK CATEGORY 2 FOR BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES AT 167 MPH WINDSPEED (PALM BEACH COUNTY), EXPOSURE C: PER 2017 (6TH EDITION) FBC 1620. PROVIDE SIGNED & SEALED CALCS. BY A REGISTERED FLORIDA ENGINEER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT FIXTURE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: REFER TO SITE PLAN SHEET  REFER TO SITE PLAN SHEET A0.1 FOR LOCATION AND PATTERN OF STAGGERED WALL ALONG THE WESTERN & SOUTHERN EDGE OF THE PROPERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
901'-7 5/16" LONG (CL POST TO CL POST) 6FT TALL CONC SCREEN WALL BY 'WALL-A-WAY USA' A TOP 2FT HIGH BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.N.O

AutoCAD SHX Text
386'-5" LONG (CL POST TO CL POST) 6FT TALL CONC SCREEN  WALL BY 'WALL-A-WAY USA' A TOP 2FT HIGH BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE SA, SC, SD



·

·

·

·

·

O
ff

ic
e/

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 F
ac

ili
ty

 a
t

2
2
0
9
 7

th
 A

v
en

u
e 

N
o

rt
h

C
it

y 
o

f 
L

ak
e 

W
o

rt
h

 B
ea

ch
, 
F

lo
ri

d
a

DATE
REVISION

NO.

ALL DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS ARE
THE COPYRIGHT PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT AND MUST BE
RETURNED UPON REQUEST.  REPRODUCTION OF DRAWINGS,
SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS IN PART OR WHOLE
IS FORBIDDEN WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT'S WRITTEN PERMISSION.

CONTRACTOR MUST CHECK AND VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS
AND FIELD CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT/ENGINEER
IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

SCALE:

TITLE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

ISSUED DATE:

3705 North Federal Highway ▪  Delray Beach, Florida 33483 ▪  T. 561.733.2225
info@hnm-architecture.com ▪  AA26000726  ▪    www. hnm-architecture.com

MICHAEL W. HANLON
FLORIDA REGISTERED ARCHITECT  .   REG. NUMBER: AR0017270

HNM PROJECT NUMBER:

19-009.1

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE SERIAL NUMBER:

UM
D

A
SC

H 
RE

A
L

ES
TA

TE
 U

SA
, L

TD

1/4"=1'-0"

1 CHAIN LINK FENCE - TYP. ELEVATION DETAIL

 

2020-09-02

AS NOTED

SITE DETAILS
 
 

A-0.4

1/4"=1'-0"

2 ROLLING GATES - TYP. ELEVATION DETAIL

3/32"=1'-0"

3 DUMPSTER ENC. PLAN 1/2"=1'-0"

4  C.M.U WALL SECTION 1/4"=1'-0"

5 DUMPATER ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. SLAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8 FT HIGH GALVANIZED CHAIN LINK FENCE W/ VERTICAL ALUM SLATS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES 4" CORNER END POST WITH TOP, BOTTOM AND INTERMEDIATE AND BOTTOM RAILS (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. SLAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES VERTICAL POSTS ALONG FENCE AND GATES. (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAIR OF 8FT HIGH ROLLING GLAV. CHAIN LINK FENCE GATES W/ ALUM. SLATS & GATE LATCH; REFER TO SITE PLAN FOR EXACT WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES TOP, INTERMEDIATE AND BOTTOM RAILS (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURBING REFER TO SITE PLAN & CIVIL DOCS FOR MORE INFO (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES 8" CMU WALL, TO BE PAINTED CHARCOAL: "CHARCOAL GREY"  

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: REFER TO SITE PLAN  : REFER TO SITE PLAN  FOR ORIENTATION OF WALL ENCLOSURE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAIR OF 6'-0" PAINTED, GALV. METAL DECK GATES OR APPROVED EQUAL HINGED TO 6" DIA CONC. FILLED GALV. STEEL BOLLARD, (TYP.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRILL CONC FOR PLUNGER BAR (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT SHOP DRAWINGS FOR ALL DUMPSTER GATES AND HARDWARE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATCHING: LOCKABLE FOR LATCH & BOTTOM PLUNGER BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UHARDWARE NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE POST: 3-1/2" DIA. GALV. STEEL TUBE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE FRAMES: 1-1/2"X1-1/2" GALV. STEEL TUBE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HINGES: NON-LIFT-OFF TYPICAL S.S. PIN OFFSET FOR 180 DEGREE GATE SWING - 3 PER LEAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-6" X CONT. X 1'-0" W/ (4) #5 CONT. (TOP & BOT.) & #5 @ 12" O.C. TRANS. (TOP & BOT.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) #5 CONT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SLAB W/ 6 X 6 - W2.9 X W2.9 WWF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" EXP. JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED 3/4" STUCCO ON BOTH SIDES OF REINFORCED C.M.U. WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) K.O. BLK. W/ (1) #5 CONT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" CMU W/ #6 VERT. BARS @ 24" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC TILT UP PANEL, PAINTED TO MATCH MAIN BLDG COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-1/2"X1-1/2" PAINTED, GALV. TUBE STEEL GATE FRAME W/ CROSS BRACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAIR OF 6'-0" PAINTED, GALV. METAL DECK GATES OR APPROVED EQUAL HINGED TO 6" DIA CONC. FILLED GALV. STEEL BOLLARD, (TYP.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" DIA. CORNER POST IN CONC. DEADMAN (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. SLAB. REFER TO STRUCTURAL DWGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALVANIZED GATE LATCH



1

A

E

B

C

D

B'

D'

F

13456789101112 213 014

3456789101112 21314

O
ff

ic
e/

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 F
ac

ili
ty

 a
t

2
2
0
9
 7

th
 A

v
en

u
e 

N
o

rt
h

C
it

y 
o

f 
L

ak
e 

W
o

rt
h

 B
ea

ch
, 
F

lo
ri

d
a

DATE
REVISION

NO.

ALL DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS ARE
THE COPYRIGHT PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT AND MUST BE
RETURNED UPON REQUEST.  REPRODUCTION OF DRAWINGS,
SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS IN PART OR WHOLE
IS FORBIDDEN WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT'S WRITTEN PERMISSION.

CONTRACTOR MUST CHECK AND VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS
AND FIELD CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT/ENGINEER
IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

SCALE:

TITLE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

ISSUED DATE:

3705 North Federal Highway ▪  Delray Beach, Florida 33483 ▪  T. 561.733.2225
info@hnm-architecture.com ▪  AA26000726  ▪    www. hnm-architecture.com

MICHAEL W. HANLON
FLORIDA REGISTERED ARCHITECT  .   REG. NUMBER: AR0017270

HNM PROJECT NUMBER:

19-009.1

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE SERIAL NUMBER:

UM
D

A
SC

H 
RE

A
L

ES
TA

TE
 U

SA
, L

TD

2020-09-02

1/16" = 1'-0"

OVERALL
BUILDING
FLOOR PLAN

A1.0
1/16" = 1'-0"

1 FLOOR PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAREHOUSE BAY NO.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
'OPEN-AIR' OUTDOOR COVERED CANOPY STRUCUTRE (STORAGE/ WORK AREA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURAL STEEL COLUMN (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURAL COLUMN (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES EXTERIOR CONCRETE TILT-UP PANEL (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAREHOUSE BAY NO.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAREHOUSE BAY NO.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
A4.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A4.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES LINE OF 6FT ROOF OVERHANG (TYPL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 & 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.H. DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SORTING AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SORTING/ SMALL PARTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SORTING/SYSTEMS BEAMS, PROPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOREMAN OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SORTING AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPAIR AREA (WELD/PLY CHANGE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAMED FORMWORK PROCESS LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BULK STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASSEMBLY AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMALL PREASSEMBLY AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHING BAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSIGNMENT AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
5m 500kg

AutoCAD SHX Text
5m 1000kg

AutoCAD SHX Text
5m 500kg

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER WASHER

AutoCAD SHX Text
5m 100kg

AutoCAD SHX Text
5m 1000kg

AutoCAD SHX Text
5m 1000kg

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%Uwaste

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%Ulumber

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,5x1m

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,5x1m

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%Ulumber

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,5x1m

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%Ulumber 2,5x1m

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%Ulumber 2,5x1m

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%Uwaste

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%Uplywood 2,5x1m

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%Uplywood 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,5x1m

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,5x1m

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%Uwaste 1,5x1m

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%Uplywood 3x1,5m

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%Uplywood 5,5x2m

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%Uwaste 1,5x1m

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%Ulumber 6x1m

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%Ulumber 3x1m

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%Ulumber 4x1m

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%Ulumber 4x1m

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER WASHER

AutoCAD SHX Text
JIB CRANE-2 

AutoCAD SHX Text
JIB CRANE-1 

AutoCAD SHX Text
JIB CRANE-3 

AutoCAD SHX Text
JIB CRANE-4 

AutoCAD SHX Text
JIB CRANE-5 

AutoCAD SHX Text
JIB CRANE-6 

AutoCAD SHX Text
JIB CRANE-7 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATFORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECTION CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIRCULAR SAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL PANEL SAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
BANDSAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHAPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECTION CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANING MACHINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHOP SAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GANTRY OVERHEAD CRANE 5-TON HOIST

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
A4.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
A4.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1&2



F

E

A A

123 12

123

E

F

E

O
ff

ic
e/

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 F
ac

ili
ty

 a
t

2
2
0
9
 7

th
 A

v
en

u
e 

N
o

rt
h

C
it

y 
o

f 
L

ak
e 

W
o

rt
h

 B
ea

ch
, 
F

lo
ri

d
a

DATE
REVISION

NO.

ALL DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS ARE
THE COPYRIGHT PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT AND MUST BE
RETURNED UPON REQUEST.  REPRODUCTION OF DRAWINGS,
SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS IN PART OR WHOLE
IS FORBIDDEN WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT'S WRITTEN PERMISSION.

CONTRACTOR MUST CHECK AND VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS
AND FIELD CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT/ENGINEER
IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

SCALE:

TITLE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

ISSUED DATE:

3705 North Federal Highway ▪  Delray Beach, Florida 33483 ▪  T. 561.733.2225
info@hnm-architecture.com ▪  AA26000726  ▪    www. hnm-architecture.com

MICHAEL W. HANLON
FLORIDA REGISTERED ARCHITECT  .   REG. NUMBER: AR0017270

HNM PROJECT NUMBER:

19-009.1

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE SERIAL NUMBER:

UM
D

A
SC

H 
RE

A
L

ES
TA

TE
 U

SA
, L

TD

2020-09-02

1/8" = 1'-0"

ENLARGED
OFFICE FLOOR PLANS

A1.1
1/8" = 1'-0"

1 OFFICE FIRST FLOOR PLAN 1/8" = 1'-0"

2 OFFICE SECOND FLOOR PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
METER ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUMP ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOBBY OPEN TO STRUCTURE ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR EGRESS STAIRS (24) RISERS 6.75" EA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOMEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONF ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPS MGR OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEETING ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHSE BREAK ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE BREAK ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV. MACH. ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEN LOCKERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ccCOPY/ PRINT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOMEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
COFFEE/ WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
BANDSAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHAPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN STAIRS (24) RISERS @ 6.75" EA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
REF.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REF.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VEND MACH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BULK STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASSEMBLY AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAN/ STOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seating

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-014-LUNCH ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M600-2310-M

AutoCAD SHX Text
VEND MACH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN TO  RECEPTION/ SHOWROOM BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING OPEN OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(8)	CUBICLESCUBICLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRANCH MGR OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALES MGR OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALES OPEN AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(10) CUBICLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONF ROOM 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRINT ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRG

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING MGR OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFERENCE ROOM 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOMEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ccCOPY/PRINT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COFFEE/WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN STAIRS (24) RISERS @ 6.75" EA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN



1

A

E

B

C

D

B'

D'

F

13456789101112 213 014

3456789101112 21314

O
ff

ic
e/

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 F
ac

ili
ty

 a
t

2
2
0
9
 7

th
 A

v
en

u
e 

N
o

rt
h

C
it

y 
o

f 
L

ak
e 

W
o

rt
h

 B
ea

ch
, 
F

lo
ri

d
a

DATE
REVISION

NO.

ALL DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS ARE
THE COPYRIGHT PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT AND MUST BE
RETURNED UPON REQUEST.  REPRODUCTION OF DRAWINGS,
SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS IN PART OR WHOLE
IS FORBIDDEN WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT'S WRITTEN PERMISSION.

CONTRACTOR MUST CHECK AND VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS
AND FIELD CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT/ENGINEER
IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

SCALE:

TITLE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

ISSUED DATE:

3705 North Federal Highway ▪  Delray Beach, Florida 33483 ▪  T. 561.733.2225
info@hnm-architecture.com ▪  AA26000726  ▪    www. hnm-architecture.com

MICHAEL W. HANLON
FLORIDA REGISTERED ARCHITECT  .   REG. NUMBER: AR0017270

HNM PROJECT NUMBER:

19-009.1

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE SERIAL NUMBER:

UM
D

A
SC

H 
RE

A
L

ES
TA

TE
 U

SA
, L

TD

2020-11-13

1/16"=1'-0"

ROOF PLAN

A-3.0
ROOF PLAN1

1/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE ROOF 1/4" PER FOOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE ROOF 1/4" PER FOOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE ROOF 1/4" PER FOOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE ROOF 1/4" PER FOOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE ROOF 1/4" PER FOOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE ROOF 1/4" PER FOOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE ROOF 1/4" PER FOOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 36'-0" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 38'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 38'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 33'-6" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 38'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 38'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE-ENGINEERED METAL ROOF W/ CONTINUOUS ROOF OVERHANG

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE-ENGINEERED METAL ROOF W/ CONTINUOUS ROOF OVERHANG

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 41'-6" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANEL JOINTS (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 31'-0" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 31'-0" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 33'-6" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 31'-0" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 31'-0" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 17'-3" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 31'-0" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTINUOUS GUTTER W/DOWN SPOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES ROOF TOP EQUIPMENT  (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW SHEET



A
EF

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

05 04 03 02 01 00

14 13 12 11 10 09 08 07 06

O
ff

ic
e/

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 F
ac

ili
ty

 a
t

2
2
0
9
 7

th
 A

v
en

u
e 

N
o

rt
h

C
it

y 
o

f 
L

ak
e 

W
o

rt
h

 B
ea

ch
, 
F

lo
ri

d
a

DATE
REVISION

NO.

ALL DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS ARE
THE COPYRIGHT PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT AND MUST BE
RETURNED UPON REQUEST.  REPRODUCTION OF DRAWINGS,
SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS IN PART OR WHOLE
IS FORBIDDEN WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT'S WRITTEN PERMISSION.

CONTRACTOR MUST CHECK AND VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS
AND FIELD CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT/ENGINEER
IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

SCALE:

TITLE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

ISSUED DATE:

3705 North Federal Highway ▪  Delray Beach, Florida 33483 ▪  T. 561.733.2225
info@hnm-architecture.com ▪  AA26000726  ▪    www. hnm-architecture.com

MICHAEL W. HANLON
FLORIDA REGISTERED ARCHITECT  .   REG. NUMBER: AR0017270

HNM PROJECT NUMBER:

19-009.1

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE SERIAL NUMBER:

UM
D

A
SC

H 
RE

A
L

ES
TA

TE
 U

SA
, L

TD

2020-09-02

1/8" = 1'-0"

NORTH & EAST
ELEVATIONS

A4.0

1/8" = 1'-0"

1 NORTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

2 EAST ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

1 PARTIAL EAST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
+31'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+36'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
+38'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
+28''-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. STOREFRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0" X 20'-0" CLEAR ANODIZED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT, DOOR (10'-0") AND WINDOW SYSTEM W/ DARK GRAY TINTED IMPACT GLASS & VERTICAL PUSH/PULL BARS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES CONC TILT-UP PANEL JOINT (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0" X 10'-0" CLEAR ANODIZED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT WINDOW W/ DARK GRAY TINTED IMPACT GLASS (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6" WIDE, 3/4" RECESSED, CONTINUOUS HORIZONTAL BAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
+10''-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. DR/B.O. BM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES 1-1/ 2" WIDE BY 3/4" DEEP REVEAL. REVEALS TO CARRY AROUND @ ALL CORNERS (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES 3/4" RECESS IN CONCRETE PANEL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
+13'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLR

AutoCAD SHX Text
+10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
+23'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
+0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIN. FLR. ELEV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
+13''-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. BM/B.O. WIND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'-0" X 20'-0" CLEAR ANODIZED ALUMINUM STOREFRONT WINDOW SYSTEM W/ DARK GRAY TINTED IMPACT GLASS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC EYEBROW OVER 18" STL BM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
G1

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
G1

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G1

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
YELLOW: SW 6910 "DAISY"  

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT GRAY:  SW 7071 "GRAY SCREEN"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DARK GRAY:  SW 2740 "MINERAL GRAY"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE:  SW 7005 "PURE WHITE"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLUE:  SW 2940 "BRIDGEPORT"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT COLOR LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: ALL WINDOWS TO BE WHITE SATIN FINISH ALUMINUM FRAMES WITH TINTED IMPACT GLASS, U.N.O. PROVIDE MEDIUM TEXTURED ACRYLIC COATING WITH INTEGRAL BASE BUILDING COLOR (TEXCOTE XL-70 OR APPROVED EQUAL) ON ALL EXTERIOR WALLS EXCEPT DOCK DOOR WALLS AND UTILITY ROOM WALLS. ACCENT COLORS AND DOCK AREA WALLS TO BE PRIMED AND HAVE TWO (2) COATS OF COMMERCIAL QUALITY GRADE LATEX PAINT.  WHERE DARK COLORS ARE USED, PROVIDE SATIN FINISH LATEX. ALL COLORS TO BE "SHERWIN WILLIAMS" EXTERIOR ACRYLIC LATEX OR APPROVED EQUAL MISCELLANEOUS METALS INCLUDING EXTERIOR EXPOSED METALS (I.E. HANDRAILS, LADDERS, BOLLARDS) TO HAVE ONE (1) COAT OF PRIMER AND TWO (2) COATS OF COMMERCIAL QUALITY GRADE ENAMEL PAINT. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE SAMPLES OF COLORS ON ACTUAL BUILDING FOR OWNER'S FINAL REVIEW. RETURN ALL REVEALS @ PANEL OVERLAPS, TYP. ALL EXTERIOR TILT UP WALLS TO RECEIVE TEX-COTE    XL-70W. FINISHES AS FOLLOWS: - ENTRY PANEL: FINE ENTRY PANEL: FINE - HORIZONTAL BAND: SMOOTH  HORIZONTAL BAND: SMOOTH  - MAIN BLDG PANELS: MEDIUM MAIN BLDG PANELS: MEDIUM - YELLOW ACCENT WALL: FINEYELLOW ACCENT WALL: FINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
+38'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
+0'-0" ELEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. SLAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
+21'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
+14'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES PANEL JOINT (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES 20'X25' OVERHEAD DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G1

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
G1

AutoCAD SHX Text
+33'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES CONCRETE TILT UP PANEL BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
+31'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+27'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTDOOR COVERED STORAGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES 16'X25' OVERHEAD DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES 20'X25' OVERHEAD DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES PRE-ENGINEERED STRUCTURE OVER STORAGE AREA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE-ENGINEERED METAL ROOF W/ CONTINUOUS ROOF OVERHANG

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
+31'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+36'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
DASHED LINE REPRESENTS EXT. TILT PANEL 



01 020200

0908070605040301 020200

141312111009

1/8" = 1'-0"

1A WEST ELEVATION - STAIR FACADE

O
ff

ic
e/

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 F
ac

ili
ty

 a
t

2
2
0
9
 7

th
 A

v
en

u
e 

N
o

rt
h

C
it

y 
o

f 
L

ak
e 

W
o

rt
h

 B
ea

ch
, 
F

lo
ri

d
a

DATE
REVISION

NO.

ALL DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS ARE
THE COPYRIGHT PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT AND MUST BE
RETURNED UPON REQUEST.  REPRODUCTION OF DRAWINGS,
SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS IN PART OR WHOLE
IS FORBIDDEN WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT'S WRITTEN PERMISSION.

CONTRACTOR MUST CHECK AND VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS
AND FIELD CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT/ENGINEER
IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

SCALE:

TITLE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

ISSUED DATE:

3705 North Federal Highway ▪  Delray Beach, Florida 33483 ▪  T. 561.733.2225
info@hnm-architecture.com ▪  AA26000726  ▪    www. hnm-architecture.com

MICHAEL W. HANLON
FLORIDA REGISTERED ARCHITECT  .   REG. NUMBER: AR0017270

HNM PROJECT NUMBER:

19-009.1

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE SERIAL NUMBER:

UM
D

A
SC

H 
RE

A
L

ES
TA

TE
 U

SA
, L

TD

2020-09-02

1/8" = 1'-0"

WEST ELEVATION

A4.1

1/8" = 1'-0"

1 WEST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
+31'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
+31'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'-0" X 10'-0" CLR ANODIZED ALUM STOREFRONT WINDOW SYSTEM W/ DARK GRAY TINTED IMPACT GLASS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
+13''-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0" X 10'-0" CLR ANODIZED ALUM STOREFRONT WINDOW SYSTEM W/ DARK GRAY TINTED IMPACT GLASS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES STAIRS/ FACADE/PANEL, SHOWN DASHED FOR CLARITY PURPOSES, REFER TO ELEV DIRECTLY BELOW FOR STAIR PANELS ELEVATIONS, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
G1

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G1

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES 3'X7' MAN DOOR (TYP.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
+31'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES PANEL JOINT (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES 20'X25' OVERHEAD DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES 16'X25' OVERHEAD DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE-ENGINEERED METAL ROOF W/ CONTINUOUS ROOF OVERHANG

AutoCAD SHX Text
+31'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'-0" X 10'-0" CLR ANODIZED ALUM STOREFRONT WINDOW SYSTEM W/ DARK GRAY TINTED IMPACT GLASS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
+13''-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0" X 10'-0" CLR ANODIZED ALUM STOREFRONT WINDOW SYSTEM W/ DARK GRAY TINTED IMPACT GLASS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
G1

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
+17'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES 3'X7' MAN DOOR (TYP.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
+31'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+27'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTDOOR COVERED STORAGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES PRE-ENGINEERED STRUCTURE OVER STORAGE AREA 



A
E F

A
E F

O
ff

ic
e/

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 F
ac

ili
ty

 a
t

2
2
0
9
 7

th
 A

v
en

u
e 

N
o

rt
h

C
it

y 
o

f 
L

ak
e 

W
o

rt
h

 B
ea

ch
, 
F

lo
ri

d
a

DATE
REVISION

NO.

ALL DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS ARE
THE COPYRIGHT PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT AND MUST BE
RETURNED UPON REQUEST.  REPRODUCTION OF DRAWINGS,
SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS IN PART OR WHOLE
IS FORBIDDEN WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT'S WRITTEN PERMISSION.

CONTRACTOR MUST CHECK AND VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS
AND FIELD CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT/ENGINEER
IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

SCALE:

TITLE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

ISSUED DATE:

3705 North Federal Highway ▪  Delray Beach, Florida 33483 ▪  T. 561.733.2225
info@hnm-architecture.com ▪  AA26000726  ▪    www. hnm-architecture.com

MICHAEL W. HANLON
FLORIDA REGISTERED ARCHITECT  .   REG. NUMBER: AR0017270

HNM PROJECT NUMBER:

19-009.1

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE SERIAL NUMBER:

UM
D

A
SC

H 
RE

A
L

ES
TA

TE
 U

SA
, L

TD

2020-09-02

1/8"=1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATIONS

A4.2

1/8" = 1'-0"

1 SOUTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

2 SOUTH ELEVATION @ OFFICE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES 16'X18' OVERHEAD DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES 16'X25' OVERHEAD DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES 16'X14' OVERHEAD DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES CONCRETE TILT UP ENTRY PANEL BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECONDARY ENTRY PANEL BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
+33'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
+38'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
+31'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+31'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+36'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES CONCRETE PANEL BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES 3'X7' MAN DOOR (TYP.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES CONCRETE TILT UP PANEL BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES CONCRETE TILT UP ENTRY PANEL BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECONDARY ENTRY PANEL BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
+33'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
+38'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
G1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
+31'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+31'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+36'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES CONCRETE PANEL BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6" WIDE, 3/4" RECESSED, CONTINUOUS BAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES CONCRETE TILT UP PANEL BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
+17'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O.PNL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL MTD MTL GRILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y



08 07 06 05 04 03 02 01 00

14 13 12 11 10 09 08

O
ff

ic
e/

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 F
ac

ili
ty

 a
t

2
2
0
9
 7

th
 A

v
en

u
e 

N
o

rt
h

C
it

y 
o

f 
L

ak
e 

W
o

rt
h

 B
ea

ch
, 
F

lo
ri

d
a

DATE
REVISION

NO.

ALL DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS ARE
THE COPYRIGHT PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECT AND MUST BE
RETURNED UPON REQUEST.  REPRODUCTION OF DRAWINGS,
SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS IN PART OR WHOLE
IS FORBIDDEN WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT'S WRITTEN PERMISSION.

CONTRACTOR MUST CHECK AND VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS
AND FIELD CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT/ENGINEER
IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

SCALE:

TITLE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

ISSUED DATE:

3705 North Federal Highway ▪  Delray Beach, Florida 33483 ▪  T. 561.733.2225
info@hnm-architecture.com ▪  AA26000726  ▪    www. hnm-architecture.com

MICHAEL W. HANLON
FLORIDA REGISTERED ARCHITECT  .   REG. NUMBER: AR0017270

HNM PROJECT NUMBER:

19-009.1

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE SERIAL NUMBER:

UM
D

A
SC

H 
RE

A
L

ES
TA

TE
 U

SA
, L

TD

2020-11-13

1/8"=1'-0"

SECTIONS

A4.3

1/8" = 1'-0"

1 LONGITUDINAL SECTION - OFFICE / PARTIAL WAREHOUSE

1/8" = 1'-0"

2 CROSS SECTION - WAREHOUSE

SITE PLAN APPLICATION
2020-11-13

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF SLOPE  1/4" PER FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLUE PIN MOUNTED SIGNAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
+31'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+14'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. 2ND FLR

AutoCAD SHX Text
+0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
+36'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. WALL BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
+27'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES OVERHEAD DOOR BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES OVERHEAD DOOR BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES PRE-ENGINEERED STRUCTURE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES 3'X7' MAN DOOR (TYP.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES PARTITION WALL IN WAREHOUSE  

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES MECHANICAL ROOF TOP EQUIPMENT (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
+31'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+23'-1-1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. CONC. PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
+27'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTDOOR COVERED STORAGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES 3'X7' MAN DOOR (TYP.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTCH OUT TOP OF CONC TILT PANEL TO RECEIVE ROOF OVERHANG

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTINUOUS GUTTER W/DOWN SPOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE-ENGINEERED METAL ROOF W/ CONTINUOUS ROOF OVERHANG

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

















O
F

F
I
C

E
/
I
N

D
U

S
T

R
I
A

L

F
A

C
I
L

I
T

Y

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

U
M

D
A

S
C

H
 
R

E
A

L
 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 
U

S
A

L
T

D
.

T
R

E
E

 
D

I
S

P
O

S
I
T

I
O

N

P
L

A
N

L-000

©

SEE SHEET L-001 FOR CONTINUATION

NORTH

TREE #

TREE #

CANOPY

SPREAD

CANOPY

SPREAD

TREE #

CANOPY

SPREAD

TREE

PROTECTION

BARRIER



O
F

F
I
C

E
/
I
N

D
U

S
T

R
I
A

L

F
A

C
I
L

I
T

Y

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

U
M

D
A

S
C

H
 
R

E
A

L
 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 
U

S
A

L
T

D
.

T
R

E
E

 
D

I
S

P
O

S
I
T

I
O

N

P
L

A
N

L-001

©

NORTH

SEE SHEET L-000 FOR CONTINUATION

TREE #

TREE #

CANOPY

SPREAD

CANOPY

SPREAD

TREE #

CANOPY

SPREAD

TREE

PROTECTION

BARRIER

NO. BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME DBH (in) CT (ft) SPR (ft) CONDITION CONDITION % DISPOSITION
32 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
33 Ficus species Ficus Tree 30 Poor 40 REMOVE
34 Ficus species Ficus Tree 36 Poor 40 REMOVE
35 Unknown Unknown Tree 24 Poor 40 REMOVE
36 Unknown Unknown Tree 36 Poor 40 REMOVE
37 Unknown Unknown Tree 36 Poor 40 REMOVE
38 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 24 Good 60 REMOVE
39 Sabal palmetto Cabbage Palm Good 60 REMOVE
40 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
41 Quercus virginiana Southern Live Oak 12 Good 60 REMOVE
42 Quercus virginiana Southern Live Oak 12 Good 60 REMOVE
43 Quercus virginiana Southern Live Oak 14 Good 60 REMOVE
44 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
45 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
46 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
47 Unknown Unknown Tree 18 Poor 40 REMOVE
48 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
49 Unknown Unknown Tree 15 Good 60 REMOVE
50 Terminalia catappa Tropical Almond 14 Good 60 REMOVE
51 Sabal palmetto Cabbage Palm Good 60 REMOVE
52 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
53 Terminalia catappa Tropical Almond 12 Good 60 REMOVE
54 Sabal palmetto Cabbage Palm Good 60 REMOVE
55 Terminalia catappa Tropical Almond 10 Good 60 REMOVE
56 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
57 Mangifera indica Mango Tree 14 Good 60 REMOVE
58 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 30 Poor 40 REMOVE
59 Sabal palmetto Cabbage Palm Good 60 REMOVE
60 Terminalia catappa Tropical Almond 12 Good 60 REMOVE
61 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
62 Unknown Unknown Tree 10 Good 60 REMOVE
63 Unknown Unknown Tree 10 Good 60 REMOVE
64 Unknown Unknown Tree 12 Good 60 REMOVE
65 Sabal palmetto Cabbage Palm Good 60 REMOVE
66 Terminalia catappa Tropical Almond 10 Good 60 REMOVE
67 Mangifera indica Mango Tree 10 Good 60 REMOVE
68 Terminalia catappa Tropical Almond 14 Good 60 REMOVE
69 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
70 Terminalia catappa Tropical Almond 12 Good 60 REMOVE
71 Ficus species Ficus Tree 30 Poor 40 REMOVE
72 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 20 Poor 40 REMOVE
73 Unknown Unknown Tree 16 Good 60 REMOVE
74 Terminalia catappa Tropical Almond 12 Good 60 REMOVE
75 Terminalia catappa Tropical Almond 14 Good 60 REMOVE
76 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 24 Poor 40 REMOVE
77 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 10 Good 60 REMOVE
78 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
79 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 10 Good 60 REMOVE
80 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 24 Poor 40 REMOVE
81 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 24 Poor 40 REMOVE

NO. BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME DBH (in) CT (ft) SPR (ft) CONDITION CONDITION % DISPOSITION
1 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
2 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
3 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
4 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
5 Ficus species Ficus Tree 12 Good 60 REMOVE
6 Ficus species Ficus Tree 30 Good 60 REMOVE
7 Ficus species Ficus Tree 30 Good 60 REMOVE
8 Ficus species Ficus Tree 30 Good 60 REMOVE
9 Ficus species Ficus Tree 30 Good 60 REMOVE

10 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
11 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
12 Ficus species Ficus Tree 24 Poor 40 REMOVE
13 Ficus species Ficus Tree 24 Poor 40 REMOVE
14 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
15 Ficus species Ficus Tree 30 Poor 40 REMOVE
16 Ficus species Ficus Tree 12 Good 60 REMOVE
17 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
18 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
19 Ficus species Ficus Tree 60 Good 60 REMOVE
20 Ficus species Ficus Tree 24 Good 60 REMOVE
21 Ficus species Ficus Tree 12 Good 60 REMOVE
22 Ficus species Ficus Tree 24 Poor 40 REMOVE
23 Ficus species Ficus Tree 24 Poor 40 REMOVE
24 Sabal palmetto Cabbage Palm Good 60 REMOVE
25 Ficus species Ficus Tree 24 Poor 40 REMOVE
26 Ficus species Ficus Tree 24 Good 60 REMAIN
27 Ficus species Ficus Tree 30 Good 60 REMAIN
28 Ficus species Ficus Tree 40 Good 60 REMOVE
29 Delonix regia Royal Poinciana 12 Good 60 REMOVE
30 Ficus species Ficus Tree 18 Good 60 REMOVE
31 Ficus species Ficus Tree 30 Good 60 REMOVE



OUTDOOR

STORAGE AREA

104,342 SF

(2.40 ACRES)

1-STORY

MAINTENANCE SHOP/

WAREHOUSE

26,743 SF

F.F.E=12.50 NAVD

 2-STORY OFFICE

10,042 SF

F.F.E=12.50 NAVD

OUTDOOR OPEN AIR

CANOPY STRUCTURE

11,160 SF

O
F

F
I
C

E
/
I
N

D
U

S
T

R
I
A

L

F
A

C
I
L

I
T

Y

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

U
M

D
A

S
C

H
 
R

E
A

L
 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 
U

S
A

L
T

D
.

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N

L-100

©

SEE SHEET L-101 FOR CONTINUATION

NORTH



LAKE

87,520 SF

(2.01 ACRES)

O
F

F
I
C

E
/
I
N

D
U

S
T

R
I
A

L

F
A

C
I
L

I
T

Y

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

U
M

D
A

S
C

H
 
R

E
A

L
 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 
U

S
A

L
T

D
.

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N

L-101

©

NORTH

SEE SHEET L-100 FOR CONTINUATION



O
F

F
I
C

E
/
I
N

D
U

S
T

R
I
A

L

F
A

C
I
L

I
T

Y

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

U
M

D
A

S
C

H
 
R

E
A

L
 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 
U

S
A

L
T

D
.

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

S

L-150

©

∅

http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info
http://www.CADdetails.com/info


O
F

F
I
C

E
/
I
N

D
U

S
T

R
I
A

L

F
A

C
I
L

I
T

Y

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

U
M

D
A

S
C

H
 
R

E
A

L
 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 
U

S
A

L
T

D
.

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
N

O
T

E
S

L-151

©



O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

C
O

VE
R

 S
H

EE
T

C-100

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

LIST OF CONTACTS

PREPARED BY

VICINITY MAP
1"=1000'

FIBER OPTIC
AT&T DISTRIBUTION
1120 S ROGERS CIRCLE
BOCA RATON, FL 33487
PHONE: (561) 997-0240
CONTACT: DINO FARRUGGIO

CABLE PROVIDER
COMCAST CABLE
2601 SW 145TH AVENUE
MIRAMAR, FLORIDA 33027
PHONE: (954) 447-8405
CONTACT: LEONARD MAXWELL-NEWBOLD

TELECOMMUNICATIONS PROVIDER
LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, LLC
1025 ELDORADO BOULEVARD
BROOMFIELD, CO 80021
PHONE: (720) 888-7568

WATER AND SEWER
CITY OF LAKE BEACH WORTH UTILITIES
414 LAKE AVENUE
LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA 33460
PHONE: (561) 586-1798
CONTACT: JULIE PARHAM

NATURAL GAS PROVIDER
FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES CO
401 SOUTH DIXIE HIGHWAY,
WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA 33401
PHONE: (561) 838-1773
CONTACT: CHRISTOPHER C. CANINO

NORTH

PROJECT LOCATION

© 2020 KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
8201 PETERS ROAD, SUITE 2200, PLANTATION, FL 33324

PHONE: 954-535-5100  FAX: 561-863-8175
WWW.KIMLEY-HORN.COM   CA 00000696

PROJECT TEAM
DEVELOPER
UMDASCH REAL ESTATE USA LTD.
214 GRATES ROAD
LITTLE FERRY, NEW JERSEY

CIVIL ENGINEER
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
8201 PETERS ROAD, SUITE 2200
PLANTATION, FL 33324
PHONE: (954) 535-5100
CONTACT: GEORGE BALABAN, P.E.

SURVEYOR
VIC-SCOTT LAND SURVEYING & MAPPING, INC.
6043 KIMBERLY BOULEVARD, SUITE L
NORTH LAUDERDALE, FL 33068
PHONE: (954) 722-8500
CONTACT: SCOTT A. GUZZI, P.S.M.

PROJECT LOCATION

PALM BEACH COUNTY

PUBLIC SERVICES
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
1749 3RD AVENUE SOUTH,
LAKE WORTH, FL 33460
PHONE: (561) 586-1720
CONTACT: FELIPE LOFASO

ELECTRIC PROVIDER
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH - ELECTRIC UTILITIES
1900 2ND AVENUE NORTH
LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA 33461
PHONE: (561) 586-1699
CONTACT: JEAN ST. SIMON

OFFICE/INDUSTRIAL FACILITY
FOR

UMDASCH REAL ESTATE USA, LTD
LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44, RANGE 43

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
1920 WEKIVA WAY, SUITE 200
WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33411
CONTACT: JONATHAN HAIGH

GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER
NUTTING ENGINEERING OF FLORIDA, INC.
1310 NEPTUNE DRIVE
BOYNTON BEACH, FL 33426
PHONE: (561) 736-4900
CONTACT: SCOTT ERSLAND

ARCHITECT
HNM ARCHITECTURE
3705 NORTH FEDERAL HIGHWAY
DELRAY BEACH, FL 33483
PHONE: (561) 733-2225
CONTACT: JAIME MAYO

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
TRACT 66 AND THE NORTH 210.81 FEET OF TRACT 81, MODEL LAND CO.
SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST, ACCORDING
TO THE MAP OR PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE
PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA.

STORMWATER
SOUTH FLORIDA WATER
MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
3301 GUN CLUB ROAD,
WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33406
PHONE: (561) 682-2624
CONTACT: DUSTIN WOOD, P.E.

STORMWATER
LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT
PERMIT REVIEW COORDINATOR
13081 MILITARY TRAIL
DELRAY BEACH, FL 33484-1105
PHONE: (561) 819-5588
CONTACT: DAVID VARNER

ENGINEERS CERTIFICATION
ALL CONSTRUCTION WITHIN FDOT RIGHT-OF-WAY TO BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION STANDARD PLANS FY 2020/2021  AND 2020 STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION

BUILDING DIVISION
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
1900 2ND AVENUE NORTH,
LAKE WORTH, FL 33461
PHONE: (561) 586-1647
CONTACT: PETER RINGLE

FIRE RESCUE
PALM BEACH COUNTY
2300 NORTH JOG ROAD, 1ST FLOOR
WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33411
PHONE: (561) 233-0054
CONTACT: PEDRO SEGOVIA

TELEPHONE PROVIDER
AT&T
2021 S MILITARY TRAIL
WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33415
PHONE: (561) 988-6529
CONTACT: JOHN NGUYEN

GOOGLE MAPS

Sheet List Table
Sheet Number Sheet Title

C-100 COVER SHEET
C-101 GENERAL NOTES
C-102 DEMOLITION AND EROSION CONTROL NOTES
C-103 DEMOLITION AND EROSION CONTROL PLAN
C-104 DEMOLITION AND EROSION CONTROL PLAN
C-105 DEMOLITION AND EROSION CONTROL DETAILS
C-106 GEOMETRY SIGNAGE AND STRIPING PLAN
C-107 GEOMETRY SIGNAGE AND STRIPING PLAN
C-200 PAVING AND GRADING PLAN
C-201 PAVING AND GRADING PLAN
C-202 DRAINAGE PLAN
C-203 DRAINAGE PLAN
C-204 DRAINAGE DETAILS
C-205 PAVING GRADING AND DRAINAGE DETAILS
C-206 PAVING GRADING AND DRAINAGE DETAILS
C-207 PAVING GRADING AND DRAINAGE DETAILS
C-208 PAVING AND GRADING CROSS SECTIONS
C-300 UTILITY PLAN
C-301 UTILITY PLAN
C-302 CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH SEWER DETAILS
C-303 CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH SEWER DETAILS
C-304 CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH WATER DETAILS
C-305 CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH WATER DETAILS

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:10:12 -05'00'

George
Balaban



G
EN

ER
AL

 N
O

TE
S

C-101

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

PAVING GRADING AND DRAINAGE NOTES

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

01GENERAL NOTES
ISSUED: 09/18/13

GENERAL NOTES

1. EXISTING UTILITIES.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTACTING ALL UTILITY COMPANIES AND "SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL OF FLORIDA,
INC." TO LOCATE ALL EXISTING UTILITIES WITHIN THE CONSTRUCTION AREA PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.  CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE HORIZONTAL AND
VERTICAL LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO COMMENCING CONSTRUCTION.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROTECTING ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES DURING CONSTRUCTION AND RESETTING UTILITIES TO NEW GRADE AND SLOPE WITHIN THE LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION.

2. SAFETY.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLYING WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA TRENCH SAFETY ACT, THE FLORIDA
UNDERGROUND FACILITY DAMAGE PREVENTION AND SAFETY ACT, AND ALL APPLICABLE O.S.H.A. REQUIREMENTS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR TAKING ALL NECESSARY PRECAUTIONS WHEN WORKING IN THE VICINITY OF OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINES.

3. MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC.  CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC (MOT) PLANS, PREPARED BY A WORK SITE TRAFFIC SUPERVISOR AS
CERTIFIED BY THE AMERICAN TRAFFIC SAFETY SERVICES ASSOCIATION, PRIOR TO COMMENCING CONSTRUCTION WITHIN CITY OF LAKE WORTH
RIGHT-OF-WAY.

4. ACCESS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING SAFE VEHICULAR AND PEDESTRIAN ACCESS AT ALL TIMES.
5. WARRANTY.  ALL WORK, MATERIALS, OR EQUIPMENT SHALL BE WARRANTIED FOR A MINIMUM OF ONE YEAR, FROM THE DATE OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE BY THE

CITY OF LAKE WORTH, AGAINST DEFECTIVE MATERIALS AND/OR WORKMANSHIP.  ALL WORK FOUND TO BE DEFECTIVE WILL BE REPLACED BY THE
CONTRACTOR AT NO EXPENSE TO THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH.

6. SHOP DRAWINGS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF SEVEN (7) COPIES (OR MORE, IF REQUIRED) OF SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA,
MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS AND OTHER INFORMATION REGARDING CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS AND STRUCTURES AS REQUESTED BY THE ENGINEER OF
RECORD OR THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH.  SHOP DRAWINGS MUST BE NEWLY PREPARED INFORMATION, DRAWN TO ACCURATE SCALE.  STANDARD
INFORMATION PREPARED WITHOUT SPECIFIC REFERENCE TO THE PROJECT WILL BE RETURNED TO THE CONTRACTOR WITHOUT REVIEW.  SHOP DRAWINGS
SHALL BE SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING:

A. BY SUBMITTAL OF ANY SHOP DRAWING OR CATALOG DATA, BEARING AN APPROVAL STAMP, THE CONTRACTOR REPRESENTS THAT IT HAS
DETERMINED AND VERIFIED ALL FIELD MEASUREMENTS, FIELD CONSTRUCTION CRITERIA, MATERIALS, DIMENSIONS, CATALOG NUMBERS AND SIMILAR
DATA, OR WILL DO SO, AND THAT IT HAS CHECKED AND COORDINATED EACH ITEM WITH OTHER APPLICABLE APPROVED SHOP DRAWINGS AND THE
CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS.

B. SHOP DRAWINGS AND CATALOG DATA SUBMITTED WITHOUT THE CONTRACTOR'S STAMP OF APPROVAL WILL BE RETURNED TO THE CONTRACTOR
WITHOUT REVIEW.  APPROVAL OF SHOP DRAWINGS, SAMPLES, OR CATALOG DATA BY THE ENGINEER OF RECORD OR THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH
SHALL NOT AUTHORIZE ANY DEVIATION FROM THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

C. ANY PROPOSED SUBSTITUTE OR EQUAL TO THE THAT SHOWN ON THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS SHALL BE ACCOMPANIED BY CALCULATIONS
SUBSTANTIATING EQUIVALENCY.  SHOP DRAWINGS WITH SUBSTITUTE MATERIALS NOT ACCOMPANIED BY CALCULATIONS WILL BE RETURNED
WITHOUT REVIEW.

D. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONFIRM COMPATIBILITY OF PIPE SLOPES AND INVERTS DURING THE SHOP DRAWING AND MATERIALS ORDERING PHASE OF
THE PROJECT AND ADVISE THE ENGINEER OF RECORD IN WRITING OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

E. INDIVIDUAL SHOP DRAWINGS FOR ALL PRECAST STRUCTURES ARE REQUIRED.  CATALOG LITERATURE WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED FOR PRECAST
STRUCTURES.

7. FIELD REVIEWS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE NOTIFICATION, 48 HOURS (MIN.), PRIOR TO ANY REQUIRED FIELD REVIEWS OR INSPECTIONS AND SHALL
SUPPLY ALL NECESSARY EQUIPMENT, LABOR, AND MATERIALS FOR INSPECTION AND/OR TEST.  ALL WORK SHALL BE OPEN AND SUBJECT TO REVIEW AND/OR
INSPECTION BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH AND THE ENGINEER OF RECORD.

13. DENSITY TESTING.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL NECESSARY TESTING TO ENSURE THAT THE PROPER COMPACTION HAS
BEEN ACHIEVED FOR ALL SUBGRADE, BASE MATERIAL, PIPE BASE MATERIAL, BACKFILL, & ALL OTHER AREAS WHERE COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS ARE
SPECIFIED.  ALL TEST RESULTS SHALL BE SIGNED & SEALED BY A FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER AND COPIES SHALL BE PROVIDED TO THE
ENGINEER OF RECORD AND THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH.

14. PERMITS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT COMMENCE CONSTRUCTION PRIOR TO RECEIPT OF ALL APPLICABLE PERMITS AND APPROVALS INCLUDING AN
APPROVED MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC PLAN.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ABIDE BY ALL APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS OF THE PERMITS AND AGENCY
APPROVALS.

15. EROSION CONTROL.  ALL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH FDOT INDICES 102, 103 AND 106, THE FDEP NATIONAL
POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) GENERAL PERMIT (IF APPLICABLE), AND THE STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP).
FILTER FABRIC, HAY BALES, OR ROCK BAGS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN EACH INLET THROUGHOUT THE CONSTRUCTION PERIOD.  A SOIL TRACKING PREVENTION
DEVICE (STPD) SHALL CONSTRUCTED AT ALL UNSTABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ACCESS POINTS, PER FDOT INDEX NO. 106.

16. STORM DRAINAGE.  ALL STORM DRAINAGE PIPE JOINTS SHALL BE WRAPPED IN FILTER FABRIC PER FDOT STANDARD INDEX NO. 280.  ALL DRAINAGE
STRUCTURES SHALL CONFORM TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF FDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION, LATEST EDITION.
ALL GRATES SHALL BE SECURED TO THE STRUCTURES WITH AN EYEBOLT AND CHAIN.  ALL STORM DRAINAGE SHALL BE FREE OF SILT AND SEDIMENT AT THE
TIME OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE BY THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH.

17. DEWATERING.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING AND COMPLYING WITH ANY DEWATERING PERMITS AND/OR APPROVALS
NECESSARY FOR CONSTRUCTION.  NO WATER FROM DEWATERING MEASURES SHALL BE DISCHARGED OFF-SITE.  ALL DISCHARGE SHALL BE CONTAINED IN
ON-SITE SEDIMENT BASINS.

18. SIDEWALKS.  ALL SIDEWALKS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED TO MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE FLORIDA BUILDING CODE, CHAPTER 11 - FLORIDA
ACCESSIBILITY CODE FOR BUILDING CONSTRUCTION.  ALL CURB RAMPS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH FDOT STANDARD INDEX NO. 304
AND THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE FLORIDA BUILDING CODE.  ALL WALKWAYS CROSSING VEHICULAR AREAS SHALL HAVE A DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACE
(TRUNCATED DOMES) IN ACCORDANCE WITH FDOT STANDARD INDEX NO. 304 AND THE FLORIDA BUILDING CODE, CHAPTER 11 - ACCESSIBILITY CODE FOR
BUILDING CONSTRUCTION. ALL SIDEWALKS SHALL BE BROOM FINISHED WITH AN EVEN, DUSTLESS SURFACE AND SHALL BE FREE OF CRACKS AT TIME OF
FINAL ACCEPTANCE BY THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH.

19. PAVEMENT.  WHERE FULL-DEPTH PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT IS SPECIFIED, EXISTING BASEROCK MAY NOT BE RE-USED, HOWEVER IT MAY BE UTILIZED AS
SUBGRADE STABILIZATION MATERIAL.  ALL SUBGRADE SHALL BE FREE OF MUCK, ROOTS, UNDERBRUSH, VEGETATIVE MATTER, GARBAGE, TRASH, OR ANY
OTHER UNSUITABLE MATERIALS.  BASEROCK AND ASPHALT SHALL BE PLACED IN MULTIPLE LIFTS AND SHALL BE PLACED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
APPLICABLE FDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION, LATEST EDITION.  FINAL LIFT OF ASPHALT SHALL PROVIDE A
UNIFORM FINISH AND SHALL BE PLACED TO CORRECT MINOR IMPERFECTIONS IN THE FIRST LIFT AND TO PROVIDE POSITIVE DRAINAGE FOR THE ROADWAY.

20. SIGNING AND PAVEMENT MARKING.  ALL PAVEMENT MARKINGS WITHIN CITY OF LAKE WORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE THERMOPLASTIC.  THERMOPLASTIC
SHALL NOT BE INSTALLED ON PAVEMENT UNTIL A MINIMUM OF FIVE CALENDAR DAYS AFTER THE FINAL LIFT OF ASPHALT HAS BEEN COMPLETED.  BLUE/BLUE
REFLECTIVE PAVEMENT MARKERS (RPM) SHALL BE INSTALLED TO INDICATE THE LOCATION OF ALL FIRE HYDRANTS.

DETAIL NO.

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:10:45 -05'00'

George
Balaban



D
EM

O
LI

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

ER
O

SI
O

N
 C

O
N

TR
O

L
N

O
TE

S

C-102

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:11:00 -05'00'

George
Balaban



XXXXXXX

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXX

D
EM

O
LI

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

ER
O

SI
O

N
 C

O
N

TR
O

L
PL

AN

C-103

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

NORTH

LEGEND

X X
CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE ALL
SITE PREPARATION REQUIREMENTS
ARE MET AS DICTATED IN THE
GEOTECHNICAL REPORT

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:11:18 -05'00'

George
Balaban



X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

D
EM

O
LI

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

ER
O

SI
O

N
 C

O
N

TR
O

L
PL

AN

C-104

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

NORTH

LEGEND

X X
CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE ALL
SITE PREPARATION REQUIREMENTS
ARE MET AS DICTATED IN THE
GEOTECHNICAL REPORT

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:11:31 -05'00'

George
Balaban



TURBIDITY BARRIER DETAIL
N.T.S.3

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

SILT FENCE INSTALLATION DETAIL 28
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION
ENTRANCE DETAIL

29
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

EROSION CONTROL NOTES
DETAIL

25
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

SILT FENCE INSTALLATION DETAIL 27
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

2 TRUCK WASHDOWN DETENTION AREA
N.T.S.

(2" TYP.)

6' CHAIN LINK CONSTRUCTION
FENCE WITH VISUAL DUST SCREEN
N.T.S.

1

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

INLET FILTER DETAIL 26
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

D
EM

O
LI

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

ER
O

SI
O

N
 C

O
N

TR
O

L
D

ET
AI

LS

C-105

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:11:46 -05'00'

George
Balaban



DI
SA

BL
ED

PA
RK

IN
G 

BY
PE

RM
IT

ON
LY

FIN
E

$2
50

.00
 M

AX

OUTDOOR
STORAGE AREA

104,342 SF
(2.40 ACRES)

1-STORY
MAINTENANCE SHOP/

WAREHOUSE
26,743 SF

F.F.E=12.50 NAVD

 2-STORY OFFICE
10,042 SF

F.F.E=12.50 NAVD

OUTDOOR OPEN AIR
CANOPY STRUCTURE

11,160 SF

G
EO

M
ET

R
Y 

SI
G

N
AG

E
AN

D
 S

TR
IP

IN
G

 P
LA

N

C-106

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

NORTH

LEGEND

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:12:00 -05'00'

George
Balaban



LAKE

87,520 SF

(2.01 ACRES)

D
O

K
A

 
L

A
K

E
 
W

O
R

T
H

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

U
M

D
A

S
C

H
 
R

E
A

L
 
E

S
T

A
T

E

U
S

A
 
L
T

D
.

G
E

O
M

E
T

R
Y

 
S

I
G

N
A

G
E

A
N

D
 
S

T
R

I
P

I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

C-107

©

NORTH

SEE SHEET C-106 - GEOMETRY SIGNAGE AND STRIPING PLAN FOR CONTINUATION

LEGEND



LAKE
87,520 SF

(2.01 ACRES)

G
EO

M
ET

R
Y 

SI
G

N
AG

E
AN

D
 S

TR
IP

IN
G

 P
LA

N

C-107

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

NORTH

LEGEND

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:12:15 -05'00'

George
Balaban



OUTDOOR

STORAGE AREA

104,342 SF

(2.40 ACRES)

1-STORY

MAINTENANCE SHOP/

WAREHOUSE

26,743 SF

F.F.E=12.50 NAVD

 2-STORY OFFICE

10,042 SF

F.F.E=12.50 NAVD

OUTDOOR OPEN AIR

CANOPY STRUCTURE

11,160 SF

H

P

H

P

H

P

H

P

H

P

H

P

HP

H
P

H
P

H
P

HP

12.50

12.23

12.30

12.50

12.50

11.15

11.30

12.45

12.45

10.50

11.75

11.55
11.50

11.10

10.90

10.70

10.50

11.20

12.30

12.00

12.20

11.00

10.50

12.00

12.25

10.50

12.00
12.00

11.00

10.50

12.10

12.10

12.20

12.10

11.74

11.25

12.50

11.50

12.00

11.50

12.10

10.50

12.00

12.50

10.50

11.79

11.25

11.50

12.00

11.85

11.75

12.10

11.77

11.61

12.50

12.50

12.50

12.50

12.50

12.50

12.50

12.50

12.50

12.50

12.50

13.00

13.00

13.50

11.20

13.00

11.50

11.25

11.25

12.45

10.50

11.60

12.45

12.30

11.25

M.E.±

10.00

M.E.±

10.00

M.E.±

9.50

M.E.±

9.50

M.E.±

9.85

10.73
10.76

11.65

11.80

11.65

M.E.±

9.85

10.9710.9610.7610.77

12.40

11.90

11.55

11.00

11.35

11.10

11.10

P
A

V
I
N

G
 
A

N
D

G
R

A
D

I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

C-200

©

G

E

O

R

G

E

 
B

A

L

A

B

A

N

L

I

C

E
N

S

E

F

L

O

R
I

D

A

P

R

O

F

E

S

S

I

O

N

A
L

 

E

N

G

I

N

E

E

R

N
o

74
54

3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

NORTH

SEE SHEET C-201 - PAVING AND GRADING PLAN FOR CONTINUATION

LEGEND

HP

CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE ALL

SITE PREPARATION REQUIREMENTS

ARE MET AS DICTATED IN THE

GEOTECHNICAL REPORT

O
F

F
I
C

E
/
I
N

D
U

S
T

R
I
A

L

F
A

C
I
L

I
T

Y

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

U
M

D
A

S
C

H
 
R

E
A

L
 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 
U

S
A

L
T

D
.



LAKE

87,520 SF

(2.01 ACRES)

H
P

H
P

11.40

10.80

10.50

12.00

12.00

11.00

10.50

10.80

11.00

11.80

11.40

P
A

V
I
N

G
 
A

N
D

G
R

A
D

I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

C-201

©

G

E

O

R

G

E

 
B

A

L

A

B

A

N

L

I

C

E
N

S

E

F

L

O

R
I

D

A

P

R

O

F

E

S

S

I

O

N

A
L

 

E

N

G

I

N

E

E

R

N
o

74
54

3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

NORTH

SEE SHEET C-200 - PAVING AND GRADING PLAN FOR CONTINUATION

LEGEND

HP

CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE ALL

SITE PREPARATION REQUIREMENTS

ARE MET AS DICTATED IN THE

GEOTECHNICAL REPORT

O
F

F
I
C

E
/
I
N

D
U

S
T

R
I
A

L

F
A

C
I
L

I
T

Y

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

U
M

D
A

S
C

H
 
R

E
A

L
 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 
U

S
A

L
T

D
.



OUTDOOR
STORAGE AREA

104,342 SF
(2.40 ACRES)

1-STORY
MAINTENANCE SHOP/

WAREHOUSE
26,743 SF

F.F.E=12.50 NAVD

 2-STORY OFFICE
10,042 SF

F.F.E=12.50 NAVD

OUTDOOR OPEN AIR
CANOPY STRUCTURE

11,160 SF

D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

PL
AN

C-202

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

NORTH

LEGEND

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:13:09 -05'00'

George
Balaban



LAKE
87,520 SF

(2.01 ACRES)

D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

PL
AN

C-203

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

NORTH

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

LEGEND

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:13:25 -05'00'

George
Balaban



D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

D
ET

AI
LS

C-204

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

TYPICAL EXFILTRATION TRENCH DETAIL

8" 3'-1" 8"

8"

ELEV. = 10.60' NAVD

2" CL.

24"

SEE PLAN

7.00' NAVD

SECTION A-A ELEVATION

4'-0"

ELEV. = 10.60' NAVD

OF STRUCTURE

INV. ELEV. = 3.00' NAVD

CONTROL STRUCTURE (S-15)

INV. ELEV. = 3.00' NAVD

BAFFLE DETAIL
N.T.S.

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

24
"

M
IN 24
"

M
IN 24
"

M
IN

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:13:38 -05'00'

George
Balaban



CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

VALLEY GUTTER
(DROP CURB)

NOTES:
1. ULTIMATE STRENGTH OF CONCRETE

FOR CURBS AND GUTTERS SHALL BE
3,000 P.S.I. @ 28 DAYS.

2. 1/8"-1/4" CONTRACTION JOINTS IN CURB
AND GUTTER SHALL BE CUT AS SHOWN
AND AT 10 FT. MAXIMUM SPACING. NO
SECTION SHALL BE LESS THAN 4 FT.

3. WHEN PAVEMENT IS CONCRETE,
PROVIDE A 1/2" EXPANSION JOINT WITH
PRE-FORMED JOINT FILLER & JOINT SEAL
BETWEEN CURB AND CONCRETE
PAVEMENT. (1-1/2" TAPER ON CURB FACE
NOT REQUIRED AT CONCRETE
PAVEMENT.)

4. WHEN USED ON HIGH EDGE OF
PAVEMENT, THE CROSS SLOPE OF
TYPES "E", "F", AND VALLEY GUTTER
SHALL MATCH THE CROSS SLOPE OF
THE ADJACENT EDGE OF PAVEMENT.
THE THICKNESS OF THE LIP SHALL BE 6"
MINIMUM UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN
ON PLANS. THE SURFACE ON THE LOW
EDGE OF PAVEMENT TO BE 1/4" ABOVE
LIP OF GUTTER. SURFACE ON HIGH EDGE
OF PAVEMENT TO BE FLUSH WITH LIP OF
CURB AND GUTTER. IF BOTH EDGES ARE
AT SAME ELEVATION, SURFACE SHALL
BE FLUSH.

5. ENDS OF TYPE "E" & "F" CURBING SHALL
TRANSITION FROM FULL HEIGHT TO
FLUSH IN 3 FEET.

6. THE MINIMUM CONSTRUCTED FLOW-LINE
GRADIENT FOR STREET DRAINAGE
UTILIZING CURB & GUTTER OR VALLEY
GUTTER SHALL BE 0.20%.

7. REFER TO FDOT INDEX 300 FOR
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

8. CONCRETE CURBING SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED ON A 4" THICK
BASEROCK CURB PAD

TYPE E

TYPE F

FLEXIBLE
PAVEMENT

1
4" ASPHALT LIP

SEE
NOTE 4

SLOPE TO FITDRIVEWAY* 3
4"R

FLEXIBLE
PAVEMENT

1
4" ASPHALT LIP

SEE
NOTE 4

FLEXIBLE
PAVEMENT

1
4" ASPHALT LIP

SEE
NOTE 4

CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER 05
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

*NOTE:  2% MAX. SLOPE
FOR PEDESTRIAN
PATHWAYS; 12% MAX.
SLOPE FOR DRIVEWAYS

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

CONCRETE WALK

TABLE OF SIDEWALK
THICKNESS - "T"

RESIDENTIAL AREAS        4"

AT DRIVEWAYS & OTHER AREAS

TABLE OF SIDEWALK
WIDTHS - "W"

STANDARD WIDTH
OTHER AREAS AS SPECIFIED BY THE
CITY ENGINEER.

5'

2% MAX. SLOPE

P.T.

P.C.

A

A

WITHIN 10' OF CROSS-STREETS,

CONCRETE WALK CONSTRUCTION

SIDEWALK JOINT

EXIST. S.W.
NEW  S.W.

E.O.P.

SECTION A-A

SUBGRADE; MIN. 95%
MAX DENSITY PER AASHTO T-99.

COMPACT SUBGRADE 12" BEYOND EACH END OF
SIDEWALK, WHERE RIGHT-OF-WAY ALLOWS.

R/W LINE

R/W LINEEDGE 1/2"
RADIUS

CLASS I CONCRETE
PER SECTION 345,
F.D.O.T. STD.
SPECIFICATIONS
3,000 PSI MIN.

6"

CURB RAMP
PER FDOT INDEX 304

TACTILE SURFACE SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH FDOT INDEX 304 &
FLORIDA BUILDING CODE CH. 11

NOTE:
1. ALL SIDEWALKS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED THROUGH DRIVEWAYS.
2. ALL SIDEWALKS SHALL INCLUDE ADA COMPLIANT RAMPS @ INTERSECTIONS.
3. CONCRETE SHALL BE BROOM FINISHED WITH EVEN DUSTLESS SURFACE.

07
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

STOP SIGN AND STOP BAR

NOTES:
1. STOP SIGN PLACEMENT SHALL BE AT RADIUS, WHEN POSSIBLE

(6' MINIMUM / 30' MAXIMUM FROM THROUGHFARE).
2. AT CURBED LOCATIONS, SIGN SHALL BE 2' FROM EDGE OF SIGN

TO FACE OF CURB.  AT UNCURBED LOCATIONS, SIGN SHALL BE
6" TO 12" FROM EDGE OF PAVEMENT.  WHERE SIDEWALK ABUTS
CURB, SIGN SHALL BE PLACED IN SIDEWALK AS SHOWN.

3. STOP BAR AND STOP SIGN SHALL BE PLACED ADJACENT TO
EACH OTHER, WHEN POSSIBLE.  WHEN A CROSSWALK IS
PRESENT, THE STOP BAR SHALL BE PLACE  4' CLEAR FROM
CROSSWALK STRIPING.

4. FLAT BLADE: ALCOA #86054.6063-T6 ALLOY,  ETCHED,
DEGREASED WITH #1200 ALODINE FINISH WITH #3877 GREEN
HIGH INTENSITY BACKGROUND AND  EQUAL DIMENSIONS - 9" &
12" MIN. H, 24", 30"  OR 36" L.

5. LETTERS:  NAME - 6" & 9" SERIES 'B' # 3870 HIGH INTENSITY
(SILVER) OR EQUAL - SUFFIX - 4.5" SERIES AS ABOVE.

6. 9" BLADES WITH  6" LETTERS FOR  TWO LANE ROADS WITH A
SPEED LIMIT UNDER 45 MPH.

7. 12" BLADES WITH 9" LETTERS:
THOROUGHFARE ROADS FOUR LANES OR WIDER.
TWO LANE ROADS WITH A POSTED SPEED LIMIT OF 45 MPH
OR MORE.
ONLY ONE BLADE WILL BE USED INDICATING THE SIDE
STREET NAME.

STOP SIGN
 R1-1  MUTCD - 30" x 30"

 (HIGH INTENSITY)

STOP

SIDEWALKSIDEWALK
24" WHITE

THERMOPLASTC
STOP BAR

6" DOUBLE
YELLOW

STRIPE
(THERMO-
PLASTIC)

REFER TO CROSSWALK
STRIPING DETAIL

REFER TO CONCRETE
WALK DETAIL

ANY  ST.

CONC.
WALK

18" LONG - 3" x 18"
ALUMINUM SLEEVE

CORE 5" HOLE IN
EXIST. WALK  & SET
SLEEVE IN CEMENT GROUT

3
8" x 31

2"
STAINLESS
STEEL BOLT

2 12" x 18"
ALUMINUM POST

30" x 30" HIGH
INTENSITY STOP SIGN

AMBER/AMBER
BI-DIRECTIONAL
RPM'S @ 5' O.C.

BLADESBRACKETS

STREET SIGNS

09
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

STOP

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

STREET SIGN DETAIL 10
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

STREET SIGN DETAIL 11
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

CROSSWALK STRIPING

SIDEWALK

STANDARD CROSSWALK

SCHOOL CROSSWALK

12" WHITE STRIPE
(THERMOPLASTIC)

12" WHITE STRIPE
(THERMOPLASTIC)

18" WHITE STRIPE
SPACED 24" APART
(THERMOPLASTIC)

12" WHITE STRIPE
(THERMOPLASTIC)

SIDEWALK

SIDEWALKSIDEWALK

CURB RAMP
PER FDOT INDEX 304

TACTILE SURFACE SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH FDOT INDEX 304 &

FLORIDA BUILDING CODE CH. 11

CURB RAMP
PER FDOT INDEX 304

TACTILE SURFACE SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH FDOT INDEX 304 &

FLORIDA BUILDING CODE CH. 11

12
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

- STANDARD CROSSWALK STRIPING TO BE INSTALLED IN THE FOLLOWING
  LOCATIONS:

- ALONG COLLECTORS OR ARTERIALS
- BIKE PATH CROSSINGS
- CROSS WALKS WITH HIGH EXPECTED PEDESTRIAN VOLUME
- SCHOOL ACCESS ROUTES

- SIGNING  REQUIRED AS PER FDOT STANDARDS

- SCHOOL CROSSWALK STRIPING TO BE USED ONLY
  AT DESIGNATED SUPERVISED SCHOOL CROSSING

- SIGNS AND ADVANCED PAVEMENT MESSAGES TO
  BE DESIGNED AND INSTALLED PER FDOT STANDARDS.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

PAVEMENT MARKING
SPECIFICATIONS

13
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

PA
VI

N
G

 G
R

AD
IN

G
AN

D
 D

R
AI

N
AG

E
D

ET
AI

LS

C-205

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:13:53 -05'00'

George
Balaban



CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

PAVEMENT MARKING
SPECIFICATIONS

14
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGNAGE
AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS

TYPICAL PARKING STALL AND ACCESSIBLE SPACE DETAIL

4" BLUE STRIPE

4" WHITE
STRIPE (TYP)

WHITE

W
HI

TE

BL
UE

WHITE
STRIPE

BLUE
STRIPE

*

BLUE

* PAVEMENT LOGO SYMBOL
SHALL BE 3' OR 5' HIGH AND
WHITE IN COLOR

MONOLITHIC CURB & WALK
OR FLUSH CONCRETE SIDEWALK

4" DOUBLE WHITE
STRIPE  (TYP)

CURB RAMP PER FDOT INDEX 304
TACTILE SURFACE REQUIRED

TACTILE SURFACE SHALL BE
TRUNCATED DOME DETECTABLE
WARNING SURFACE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH FDOT INDEX 304 & FLORIDA
BUILDING CODE CH. 11

ADA SIGN (FTP-20-04)
$250 FINE SIGN (FTP-22-04)
(84" CLEAR TO BOTTOM OF SIGN)

CONCRETE BUMPER
GUARD (TYP)

ADA SIGN DETAILS

 18
" 

6"

FTP-20-04

FTP-22-04

1" SERIES CFINE $250.00

2.9" 6.2"

2.5"

2.9"

2.5"

 8-
1/2

" 

DISABLED
PARKING BY

PERMIT
ONLY

 2"
 

 2"
 

1-1/2"

 2"
 

 2"
 

 12" NOTES:

SIGN FTP-20-04
1. ALL LETTERS ARE 1" SERIES "C".
2. TOP PORTION OF SIGN SHALL HAVE A

REFLECTORIZED BLUE BACKGROUND WITH WHITE
REFLECTORIZED LEGEND & BORDER.

3. BOTTOM PORTION OF SIGN SHALL HAVE A
REFLECTORIZED WHITE BACKGROUND WITH BLACK
OPAQUE LEGEND & BORDER.

SIGN FTP-22-04
1. ALL LETTERS ARE 1" SERIES "C".
2. BACKGROUND WHITE, LEGEND AND BORDER BLACK.

R=1-1/2"
(TYP.)

3/8"
TYP.

15
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CURBING
4" WHITE
STRIPE @ 45°

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

TYPICAL PARKING SPACES 16
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT PAVEMENT AND SIDEWALK RESTORATION

N.T.S.
CONCRETE SIDEWALK RESTORATION DETAIL

WHERE RESTORATION OF EXIST. CONCRETE WALK IS
REQUIRED, REMOVE EXIST. SIDEWALK TO CONTROL
JOINTS & REPLACE WITH 4" THICK CONCRETE (3,000 PSI)
W/ CONTROL JOINTS @ 5' O.C.  CONCRETE TO BE BROOM
FINISHED W/ EVEN, DUSTLESS SURFACE.

4" COMPACTED SUBBASE
(95% AASHTO T-99)

PAVEMENT RESTORATION DETAIL

PROPOSED SUBBASE

PROPOSED BASE

PROPOSED ASPHALT

EXISTING PAVEMENT

SHOWN ON PLANS
LIMIT OF PAVEMENT 12"

NOTE: REFER TO PAVEMENT
SECTIONS FOR MATERIAL
THICKNESS

12"

EXIST. BASE

EXIST. SUBBASE

WHERE PROPOSED PAVEMENT MEETS EXISTING PAVEMENT
REMOVE ASPHALTIC CONCRETE SURFACE COURSE OR
LEVELING COURSE, SAWCUT NEAT TRIM EDGE AND TACK
COAT JUST PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF NEW SURFACE
COURSE.

EXISTING PAVEMENT
TO REMAIN

19
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

PAVEMENT JOINT 20
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

UTILITY TRENCH AND PAVEMENT
OPEN-CUT

N.T.S.
UTILITY TRENCH DETAIL

NOTES:
1. BEDDING SHALL CONSIST OF IN-SITU GRANULAR

MATERIAL OR WASHED AND GRADED LIMEROCK 3/8" -
7/8" SIZING. UNSUITABLE IN-SITU MATERIALS SUCH AS
MUCK, DEBRIS AND LARGER ROCK SHALL BE
REMOVED.

2. THE PIPE SHALL BE FULLY SUPPORTED FOR ITS
ENTIRE LENGTH WITH APPROPRIATE COMPACTION
UNDER THE PIPE HAUNCHES.

3. THE PIPE SHALL BE PLACED IN A DRY TRENCH.

4. BACKFILL SHALL BE FREE OF UNSUITABLE MATERIALS
SUCH AS LARGER ROCK, MUCK AND DEBRIS.

N.T.S.
PAVEMENT OPEN-CUT DETAIL

EXIST. PAVEMENT

NOTES:
1. PAVEMENT OVERLAY MAY BE REQUIRED IN OPEN-CUT AREAS AT THE DISCRETION OF THE CITY ENGINEER.
2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE TRENCH SAFETY REGULATIONS.
3. FINISHED SURFACE SHALL HAVE SMOOTH FINISH & SHALL MATCH FLUSH TO SURROUNDING PAVEMENT.
4. ASPHALT OVERLAY SHALL EXTEND A MINIMUM OF 50' BEYOND THE LIMITS OF THE OPEN CUT.

OPEN-CUT WIDTH
(W + 4' )

TO REMAIN

SAWCUT

21
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

REFER TO TRENCH DETAIL
FOR BEDDING & BACKFILL REQUIREMENTS

REPLACED BASEROCK SHALL BE TWICE
THE THICKNESS OF THE ORIGINAL
BASEROCK LAYER (12" MIN.)
(REFER TO PAVEMENT SECTIONS
FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS.)

MI
N.

4"

MAX.
12"

MAX.
12"

OF MAXIMUM DENSITY. 2" MAX. SIZE.
AND COMPACTED TO MINIMUM 98%

98% COMPACTION.

GRANULAR BACKFILL PLACED

BEDDING MATERIAL

AND COMPACTED PER APPROPRIATE
SPECIFICATIONS. 6" MAX. SIZE.

REMAINING BACKFILL PLACED

EXISTING GROUND

12"
MIN.

MIN.
24"

MI
N.4"

MAX.
12"

MAX.
12"

MIN.
24"

REPLACED ASPHALT TO BE
MIN 2" TYPE S-3 (TWO LIFTS)

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

TYPICAL TREE
WITH ROOT BARRIER

23
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

PA
VI

N
G

 G
R

AD
IN

G
AN

D
 D

R
AI

N
AG

E
D

ET
AI

LS

C-206

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:14:09 -05'00'

George
Balaban



PA
VI

N
G

 G
R

AD
IN

G
AN

D
 D

R
AI

N
AG

E
D

ET
AI

LS

C-207

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:14:25 -05'00'

George
Balaban



SECTION A 7 TH AVE NORTH
SECTION B EAST
PROPERTY LINE

SECTION C CONCRETE PAD

SECTION F LAKE WET
RETENTION POND

SECTION E LAKE  WET
RETENTION POND

PAVING LEGEND

SECTION G CANAL BANK
AREA

SECTION H CANAL BANK
AREA

R/W

SECTION D CONCRETE PAD

 BLDG
FFE= 12.50'

SECTION I  BUILDING

RIP-RAP LEGEND RIP-RAP LEGEND

A

B

D

C

E

F

G

H

I

P
A

V
I
N

G
 
A

N
D

G
R

A
D

I
N

G
 
C

R
O

S
S

S
E

C
T

I
O

N
S

C-208

©

G

E

O

R

G

E

 
B

A

L

A

B

A

N

L

I

C

E
N

S

E

F

L

O

R
I

D

A

P

R

O

F

E

S

S

I

O

N

A
L

 

E

N

G

I

N

E

E

R

N
o

74
54

3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

O
F

F
I
C

E
/
I
N

D
U

S
T

R
I
A

L

F
A

C
I
L

I
T

Y

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

U
M

D
A

S
C

H
 
R

E
A

L
 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 
U

S
A

L
T

D
.

KEY MAP

N
O

R
T

H

CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE ALL

SITE PREPARATION REQUIREMENTS

ARE MET AS DICTATED IN THE

GEOTECHNICAL REPORT



OUTDOOR
STORAGE AREA

104,342 SF
(2.40 ACRES)

1-STORY
MAINTENANCE SHOP/

WAREHOUSE
26,743 SF

F.F.E=12.50 NAVD

 2-STORY OFFICE
10,042 SF

F.F.E=12.50 NAVD

OUTDOOR OPEN AIR
CANOPY STRUCTURE

11,160 SF

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N

C-300

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

NORTH

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:14:55 -05'00'

George
Balaban



LAKE
87,520 SF

(2.01 ACRES)

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N

C-301

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

NORTH

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:15:10 -05'00'

George
Balaban



C
IT

Y 
O

F 
LA

KE
W

O
R

TH
 B

EA
C

H
SE

W
ER

 D
ET

AI
LS

C-302

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

S
A
NITARY SE

W
E
R

U
S

F
 7 5 0

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:15:29 -05'00'

George
Balaban



C
IT

Y 
O

F 
LA

KE
W

O
R

TH
 B

EA
C

H
SE

W
ER

 D
ET

AI
LS

C-303

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:15:46 -05'00'

George
Balaban



C
IT

Y 
O

F 
LA

KE
W

O
R

TH
 B

EA
C

H
W

AT
ER

 D
ET

AI
LS

C-304

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:16:02 -05'00'

George
Balaban



C
IT

Y 
O

F 
LA

KE
W

O
R

TH
 B

EA
C

H
W

AT
ER

 D
ET

AI
LS

C-305

©

L
IC

E
N

S
E

F
LO

R
ID

A

PROFESS
IO

NA
L

 E
NG

INEER

No
74

54
3

ST
AT

E 
O

F

O
FF

IC
E/

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L
FA

C
IL

IT
Y

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

U
M

D
AS

C
H

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 U
SA

LT
D

.

Digitally signed by George Balaban
DN: cn=George Balaban, c=US, o=Kimley-
Horn and Associates Inc.,
ou=A01410D00000170D45169AE0000E7ED,
email=george.balaban@kimley-horn.com
Date: 2020.11.12 19:16:27 -05'00'

George
Balaban



UNIVERSAL
DEVELOPMENT
APPLICATION -

DOKA
2209 7TH AVENUE NORTH

REQUIRED DOCUMENATION • SOUTH-RENDER-ELEVATION.jpg
• WEST-RENDER-ELEVATION.jpg
• Warranty-deed.pdf
• Universal-Development-Application.pdf
• survey.pdf
• Sign-Posting-Agreement-UMDASCH.pdf
• Project-Narrative.pdf
• Owners-consent-Reves-003.pdf
• NORTH-EAST-RENDER-ELEVATION.jpg
• Perspective-rendering-2.jpg
• Perspective-rendering-1.jpg
• EAST-RENDER-ELEVATION.jpg
• DOKA-LAKE-WORTH-BEACH-LANDSCAPE-SET.pdf
• A4-4_NORTH-EAST-ELEVATION.pdf
• Boundary-Survey-Drawing-LG.pdf
• A4-6_SOUTH-RENDER-ELEVATION.pdf
• A4-5_WEST-RENDER-ELEVATION.pdf
• A0-3.pdf
• A0-2.pdf
• A0-1.pdf
• A0-0.pdf
• A4-3.pdf
• A4-2.pdf
• A4-1.pdf
• A4-0.pdf
• A1-1.pdf
• A1-0.pdf
• A0-4.pdf
• 2020.08.19-Doka-Signage.pdf
• 37373730-v1-Doka-Signed-and-Notarized-Affidavit-of-
Completeness-and-Accuracy.PDF
• 2020.09.02-Doka-SS.pdf

HAVE YOU UPLOADED ALL REQUIRED
FILES?

Yes

SITE PLAN • Major

USE • Administrative

PROJECT INFORMATION
PROJECT NAME DOKA

PROJECT ADDRESS 2209 7TH AVENUE NORTH
LAKE WORTH BEACH, Florida 33460
United States

LEGAL DESCRIPTION TRACT 66 AND THE NORTH 210.81 FEET OF TRACT 81, MODEL LAND
CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43
EAST, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN THE
PUBLIC RECORD OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA.

PROPERTY CONTROL NUMBER (PCN) 38-43-44-20-01-066-0010

ZONING - EXISTING I-POC

ZONING - PROPOSED I-POC

1 / 2

https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/SOUTH-RENDER-ELEVATION.jpg
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/WEST-RENDER-ELEVATION.jpg
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/Warranty-deed.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/Universal-Development-Application.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/survey.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/Sign-Posting-Agreement-UMDASCH.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/Project-Narrative.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/Owners-consent-Reves-003.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/NORTH-EAST-RENDER-ELEVATION.jpg
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/Perspective-rendering-2.jpg
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/Perspective-rendering-1.jpg
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/EAST-RENDER-ELEVATION.jpg
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/DOKA-LAKE-WORTH-BEACH-LANDSCAPE-SET.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/A4-4_NORTH-EAST-ELEVATION.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/Boundary-Survey-Drawing-LG.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/A4-6_SOUTH-RENDER-ELEVATION.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/A4-5_WEST-RENDER-ELEVATION.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/A0-3.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/A0-2.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/A0-1.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/A0-0.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/A4-3.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/A4-2.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/A4-1.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/A4-0.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/A1-1.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/A1-0.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/A0-4.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/2020.08.19-Doka-Signage.pdf
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/37373730-v1-Doka-Signed-and-Notarized-Affidavit-of-Completeness-and-Accuracy.PDF
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/37373730-v1-Doka-Signed-and-Notarized-Affidavit-of-Completeness-and-Accuracy.PDF
https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/wp-content/uploads/gravity_forms/30-1f5189d0021c6d1e1bd3068445eaa9a4/2020/09/2020.09.02-Doka-SS.pdf


FUTURE LAND USE - EXISTING I

FUTURE LAND USE - PROPOSED I

PROPOSED USE • Industrial

TOTAL ESTIMATED PROJECT COST $11,000,000.00

DESCRIPTION OF WORK TWO STORY 10,042 SQUARE FOOT SHOWROOM, 26,743 SQUARE
FOOT MAINTENANCE SHOP/WAREHOUSE 11,160 SQUARE FOOT
OUTDOOR OPEN AIR CANOPY STRUCTURE.

CONTACT INFORMATION
PROJECT MANAGER NAME LISA REVES

PROJECT MANAGER COMPANY SAUL EWING ARNSTEIN & LEHR

PROJECT MANAGER EMAIL LISA.REVES@SAUL.COM

PROJECT MANAGER PHONE (561) 650-8465

PROJECT MANAGER ADDRESS 515 N FLAGLER DR
WEST PALM BEACH, Florida 33401
United States

APPLICANT COMPANY UMDASCH REAL ESTATE USA, LTD.

APPLICANT ADDRESS 214 GATES RD
LITTLE FERRY, New Jersey 07643
United States

OWNER COMPANY LW INDUSTRIAL, LLC

OWNER ADDRESS Florida
United States

2 / 2

mailto:LISA.REVES@SAUL.COM


Universal Development Application   

6-19 City of Lake Worth Beach / Department for Community Sustainability / Planning, Zoning, & Historic Preservation Division 
Page 1 of 2 1900 2nd Ave N, Lake Worth Beach, FL 33463 / 561-586-1687 / pzoning@lakeworth.org 

This application is required for ALL applications submitted to the Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation 
Division. If you have questions regarding this application, please make an appointment with planning staff. 

1. Application Type (select all that apply) 

a. Site Plan: □ Minor □ Major □ Planned Development □ Sustainable Bonus 

b. Use: □ Administrative □ Conditional 

c. Proximity Waiver: □ Alcoholic Beverage □ Community Residence □ Gaming Establishment 

□ Adult Use 

d. Approvals: □ Variance □ Mural □ Cert. of Appropriateness □ Adjustment 

e. Amendments: □ Rezoning / Map □ Text 

f. Other: □ Subdivsion/Plat □ Annexation □ Zoning Letter 

 □ ABT Signoff □   
2. Project Information 

a. Project Name:   

b. Project Location / Address:   

c. Legal Description:   

d. Property Control Number (PCN): 38-43-44-  

e. Zoning:  Existing:   Proposed:   

f. Future Land Use: Existing:   Proposed:   

g. Proposed Use: □ Residential; Units   □ Commercial;  S.F. □ Industrial;  S.F. 

h. Total Estimated Project Cost:   

i. Description of Work:   

 

3. Contact Information 

a. Project Manager / Contact Person:   

Company:   

Address:   City:   St:   Zip:   

Phone Number:   E-Mail Address:   

b. Applicant Name (if different from Project Manager):   

Company:   

Address:   City:   St:   Zip:   

Phone Number:   E-Mail Address:   

c. Owner Name:   

Company:   

Address:   City:   St:   Zip:   

Phone Number:   E-Mail Address:   

Economic Investment & Development Electricity Incentives

Doka
2209 7th Avenue North

20-01-066-0010
I-POC I-POC
I I

2 STORY 10,042 SF SHOWROOM, 26,743 SF MAINTENCE SHOP/WAREHOUSE

11,160 SF OUTDOOR OPEN AIR CANOPY STRUCTURE.

Lisa Reves
Saul Ewing Arnstein & Lehr

515 N Flagler Dr., Suite 1400 West Palm Beach FL 33401
561-833-9300 lisa.reves@saul.com

Doka

■



4. Owner's Consent
LW Industrial, LLC
2209 7th Avenue North Lake Worth Beach

("Owner") certifies that it is the owner of the property located at

("Subject Property") and expressly consents to the use of the Subject

Property as described in this application and to all conditions that may be agreed to as a part of the approval of this application,
which may be imposed by the decision making board. Owner hereby authorizes, Lisa A. Reeves, Esq., agent for the Buyer to file
this

applicationª.
nd

repres.e?)t
the

Buyer,_Deka1.J7SA,
Ltd a New Jersey corporation, at any and all meetings and hearings

required for the approval9f1his app
·

ion.
I \.. , ¿,/

Owner's Sigm}ture:
><-' - -------- Date: 8/11/2020

{__ BIii on as Registered Agent, LW lndustnal, LLC.

Name/Title of Signatory:

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF ()lOOA...d
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 'z_ day of a .uf,_rt-- '

20 by 6; I I e" th berkcrn
tJ/Awho is peonally known to me or who produced a

-
!!
iii

(NOTARY SEAL)

•
Arlene D. Everett
NOTARY PUBLIC

:::! STATE OF FLORIDA
Comm# GG138623
Expires 8/28/2021

a:she/)=h. )
(Signature of Notary /

Jlrlf:N À. F -re#
(Name of Notary)

:::i

5. Affidavit of Completeness and Accuracy
Instructions: To be completed by the individual submittinq the application (owner or authorized aqent)

Project Name: Submittal Date:

STATEMENT OF COMPLETENESS AND ACCURACY:

I hereby certify all property owners have full knowledge the property they own is the subject of this application. I hereby certify that
all owners and petitioners have been provided a complete copy of all material, attachments and documents submitted to the City of

Lake Worth relating to this application. I further certify the statements or information made in any paper or plans submitted herewith
are true and correct to the best of my knowledge. I understand this application, related application material and all attachments
become official records of the Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division of Lake Worth, Florida, and will not be returned. I

understand that any knowingly false, inaccurate or incomplete information provided by me will result in the denial, revocation or
administrative withdrawal of this application, request, approval or permit. I further acknowledge that additional information may be

required by Palm Beach County to process this application. I further acknowledge that any plans that I have prepared or had prepared
comply with the Fair Housing Standards. I further consent to the City of Lake Worth to publish, copy or reproduce any copyrighted
documents submitted as a part of this application for any third party. I further agree to all terms and conditions, which may be imposed
as part of the approval of this application.

(Name -type, stamp, or print clearly)

(Name of Firm)

STATE OF

COUNTY OF

(Signature)

(Address, City, State, Zip)

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this

who is personally known to me or who produced a

(NOTARY SEAL)
(Signature of Notary Public)

(Name of Notary)
6-''
Pagc2of2

day of
, 20_, by

as identification. He/she did not take an oath.

Bill
Rectangle

Bill
Typewritten Text
Reves



UMDASCH REAL ESTATE USA, LTD.







 

Lisa A. Reves, Esq. 
Phone: 561.833.9800 

         Lisa.reves@saul.com 
www.saul.com 

 

 

515  N.  F lag le r  Dr ive    Su i te  1400    Wes t  Pa lm Beach ,  FL 33401  
Phone :  (561)  833-9800    Fax :  (561)  655-5551 

D E LA W A R E   F LO R ID A   I L L IN O IS   M A R Y LA N D   M A S S A C H U S E T T S   N E W  J E R S E Y   N E W  Y O R K   P E N N S Y L V A N IA   W A S H IN G T O N ,  D C  

A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP 
 

 

September 22, 2020 

Re: PROJECT NARRATIVE 
      2209 7th Avenue North, Lake Worth Beach, FL 
 
Nature of Use/Business Operations 
Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd., the ownership entity, is developing the site for use by Doka 
USA Ltd., the operating entity.  Doka USA Ltd., is an international leader in developing, 
manufacturing and distributing formwork technology for use in all fields of construction and is 
proposing to locate its newest location within the Boutwell Industrial Park of Commerce at 2209 
7th Avenue North.  The site is zoned I-POC with corresponding Future Land Use of Industrial 
and includes 9.7916 acres of vacant land. This facility will house rental and sales services of 
formwork, construction equipment and safety systems.  No manufacturing will occur at this 
facility. This site will conduct yard operations, maintenance operations, and office operations. 
Yard operations, loads equipment onto trucks for transportation to various jobsites. As the 
equipment returns, maintenance operations inspects and repairs the equipment. While office 
operations consists of various departments including but not limited to, the sales department, 
engineering department, operational and logistics department, and management.  Doka is 
proposing business hours from 7:30 a.m. until 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and if needed 
Saturdays 7:30 a.m. until noon.  This site is not proposed as a retail business so traffic will be 
limited to employees and trucks transporting the formwork to and from jobsites. 
 
Site Characteristics 
Based upon information provided by Nutting Environmental of Florida, Inc., the subject site 
included several bodies of water but by 1973, the bodies of water on the eastern portion of the 
site were no longer visible.  The site is listed in the Solid Waste activity directory (SWF/LF) 
databases, as the “Boutwell Road Trash Dump”.  The Environmental Risk Information System 
(ERIS) report, indicates this site formerly operated as a “trash and yard waste, unpermitted 
dump” which closed in the late 1970’s early 1980’s.  In 2011, the property was cleared and has 
remained undeveloped. 

 
Surrounding Property Information 
The proposed project is harmonious with uses in the surrounding area, which is comprised of 
industrial concrete and metal buildings. The property to the North, of the subject site, is vacant 
land which is zoned I-POC. To the east of the subject site is Marlin Industrial Park (”Park”) 
zoned I-POC and includes three industrial buildings.  The architectural style of these buildings 
are utilitarian and include store front door and window systems with rolling bays doors in 
multiple tenant bays. To the west of the site is the E-4 Canal in unincorporated Palm Beach 
County.  The south side of the site is bordered by both the Marlin Commerce Center and 



September 22, 2020 
Page 2 
 
 

 

Oakwood Apartments.  The apartment complex is zoned MU-W and comprised of nine (9), two 
(2) story multi-family buildings. The apartment buildings have gabled roofs with limited window 
and door openings. The Marlin Commerce Center includes three (3) buildings which house 
Office and Industrial structures within flat roof industrial style architecture.  
 
Compliance with Site Design Qualitative Standards of Section 23.2-31: 
1. Harmonious and efficient organization. The proposed site improvements include a building 

located on the northwest portion of the site  which houses a two (2) story ten thousand forty 
two (10,042) square foot office space located along the south side of 7th Avenue North, a 
26,743 square foot maintenance shop and warehouse, 11,160 square foot canopy shaded area 
and 104,342 square foot outdoor storage area, all are harmoniously and efficiently organized 
for the functional use of the property.   The proposed improvements will not impede the 
normal and orderly development of surrounding property for uses permitted within  the Land 
Development Regulations (“LDR”) 

2. Preservation of Natural Conditions. The subject property is vacant and due to the historical 
use of the property no natural communities remain. 

3. Screening and buffering. Fences, walls, vegetation and lakes are utilized to protect 
neighboring properties from  undesirable views, light, noise, or other adverse on-site effects. 
The 97,264 square foot lake is strategically located along the south portion of the site to 
provide the maximum possible separation from the multi-family community to the south.  

4. Residential privacy is enhanced, not only by the strategic location of the lake but also by the 
Lake Worth Drainage District (“LWDD”) 200 foot right of way for the E-4 Canal along the 
west of the subject site. The LWDD right of way and position of lake provide reasonable, 
visual and acoustical privacy for the dwelling units located adjacent to the site.  

5. Emergency access. Site access is proposed from three locations on 7th Avenue North, all 
include 20 foot roll gates with knox-box access. The proposed structure is arranged in a 
manner which allows emergency vehicles access to all of the building facades from the right 
of way and the ingress/egress access aisles which surround the building. 

6. Access to public ways. The proposed structure has safe and convenient access to the public 
street via the proposed concrete sidewalk within the 7th Avenue North right of way and the 
connecting internal walkways and crosswalks as depicted on the site plan. 

7. Pedestrian circulation. The pedestrian circulation system is insulated as completely as 
reasonably possible from the vehicular circulation system as depicted on the site plan.  
Location of the internal walkways and crosswalks have been located in the safest possible 
manner in relation to the building location and vehicular circulation. 

8. Design of ingress and egress drives.  The site is accessed from the terminus of 7th Avenue 
North via three(3) proposed ingress/egress points.  The access points are arranged to 
minimize negative impacts on public and private ways and on adjacent property. 

9. Coordination of on-site circulation with off-site circulation. Site access and circulation is 
designed so that passenger vehicles parking and circulation will occur from the western 
access point and  truck circulation will occur predominately on the east side of the property. 

10. Design of on-site public right-of-way. The extension of 7th Avenue North is designed for 
maximum efficiency and to provide site access in a manner that is harmonious with existing 
conditions. 

11. Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas.  Off-street parking, loading, and 
vehicular circulation areas are located, designed and screened to minimize the impact of 



September 22, 2020 
Page 3 
 
 

 

glare, noise, and odor on adjacent property. The off-street parking is proposed on the 
western façade of the building and accessible from the west ingress/egress point to the site.  
The majority of truck access and circulation, is separated from passenger vehicle circulation 
and will occur from two acess  points located east of the proposed building.  

12. Refuse and service areas. Refuse and service areas are located, designed and screened to 
minimize the impact of noise, glare and odor on adjacent property and locating it on the west 
property line away from neighboring property owners. 

13. Protection of property values. The elements of the site plan are arranged to minimize any 
potential negative impact on adjoining property and would improve the property values with 
the proposed improvements, fencing, screen walls and landscape improvement proposed for 
the site. 

14. Transitional development. Not applicable. 
15. Consideration of future development. The above standards are met and impacts to existing 

and future development have been mitigated. 
 

Compliance with Community Appearance Criteria Section 23.2-31(l): 
1. The plan for the proposed structure is in conformity with good taste, good design, and in 

general contributes to the image of the City as a place of beauty, spaciousness, harmony, 
taste, fitness, broad vistas and is a high quality home of an international company.   

2. The proposed structure is not, in its exterior design and appearance, of inferior quality such 
as to cause the nature of the local environment or evolving environment to materially 
depreciate in appearance and value. 

3. The proposed structure is in harmony with the proposed developments in the general area, 
with code requirements pertaining to site plan, signage and landscaping, and the 
comprehensive plan for the City, and with the criteria set forth herein. 

4. The proposed structure is in compliance with this section and 23.2-29, as applicable. 
 
 
Best Regards, 
 
Lisa A. Reves 
 
sb 
 
 



 

Lisa A. Reves, Esq. 
Phone: 561.833.9800 

         Lisa.reves@saul.com 
www.saul.com 

 

 

515  N.  F lag le r  Dr ive    Su i te  1400    Wes t  Pa lm Beach ,  FL 33401  
Phone :  (561)  833-9800    Fax :  (561)  655-5551 

D E LA W A R E   F LO R ID A   I L L IN O IS   M A R Y LA N D   M A S S A C H U S E T T S   N E W  J E R S E Y   N E W  Y O R K   P E N N S Y L V A N IA   W A S H IN G T O N ,  D C  

A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP 
 

 

August 31, 2020 

Re: PROJECT NARRATIVE 
      2209 7th Avenue North, Lake Worth Beach, FL 
 
Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd., the ownership entity, is developing the site for use by Doka 
USA Ltd., the operating entity.  Doka USA Ltd., is an international leader in developing, 
manufacturing and distributing formwork technology for use in all fields of construction and is 
proposing to locate its newest location within the Boutwell Industrial Park of Commerce at 2209 
7th Avenue North.  The site is zoned I-POC with corresponding Future Land Use of Industrial 
and includes 9.7916 acres of vacant land.  
 
Site Characteristics 
Based upon information provided by Nutting Environmental of Florida, Inc., the subject site 
included several bodies of water but by 1973, the bodies of water on the eastern portion of the 
site were no longer visible.  The site is listed in the Solid Waste activity directory (SWF/LF) 
databases, as the “Boutwell Road Trash Dump”.  The Environmental Risk Information System 
(ERIS) report, indicates this site formerly operated as a “trash and yard waste, unpermitted 
dump” which closed in the late 1970’s early 1980’s.  In 2011, the property was cleared and has 
remained undeveloped. 

 
Surrounding Property Information 
The proposed project is harmonious with uses in the surrounding area, which is comprised of 
industrial concrete and metal buildings. The property to the North, of the subject site, is vacant 
land which is zoned I-POC. To the east of the subject site is Marlin Industrial Park (”Park”) 
zoned I-POC and includes three industrial buildings.  The architectural style of these buildings 
are utilitarian and include store front door and window systems with rolling bays doors in 
multiple tenant bays. To the west of the site is the E-4 Canal in unincorporated Palm Beach 
County.  The south side of the site is bordered by both the Marlin Commerce Center and 
Oakwood Apartments.  The apartment complex is zoned MU-W and comprised of nine (9), two 
(2) story multi-family buildings. The apartment buildings have gabled roofs with limited window 
and door openings. The Marlin Commerce Center includes three (3) buildings which house 
Office and Industrial structures within flat roof industrial style architecture.  
 
Compliance with Site Design Qualitative Standards of Section 23.2-31: 
1. Harmonious and efficient organization. The proposed site improvements include a building 

located on the northwest portion of the site  which houses a two (2) story ten thousand forty 
two (10,042) square foot office space located along the south side of 7th Avenue North, a 
26,743 square foot maintenance shop and warehouse, 11,160 square foot canopy shaded area 



August 31, 2020 
Page 2 
 
 

and 104,342 square foot outdoor storage area, all are harmoniously and efficiently organized 
for the functional use of the property.   The proposed improvements will not impede the 
normal and orderly development of surrounding property for uses permitted within  the Land 
Development Regulations (“LDR”) 

2. Preservation of Natural Conditions. The subject property is vacant and due to the historical 
use of the property no natural communities remain. 

3. Screening and buffering. Fences, walls, vegetation and lakes are utilized to protect 
neighboring properties from  undesirable views, light, noise, or other adverse on-site effects. 
The 97,264 square foot lake is strategically located along the south portion of the site to 
provide the maximum possible separation from the multi-family community to the south.  

4. Residential privacy is enhanced, not only by the strategic location of the lake but also by the 
Lake Worth Drainage District (“LWDD”) 200 foot right of way for the E-4 Canal along the 
west of the subject site. The LWDD right of way and position of lake provide reasonable, 
visual and acoustical privacy for the dwelling units located adjacent to the site.  

5. Emergency access. Site access is proposed from three locations on 7th Avenue North, all 
include 20 foot roll gates with knox-box access. The proposed structure is arranged in a 
manner which allows emergency vehicles access to all of the building facades from the right 
of way and the ingress/egress access aisles which surround the building. 

6. Access to public ways. The proposed structure has safe and convenient access to the public 
street via the proposed concrete sidewalk within the 7th Avenue North right of way and the 
connecting internal walkways and crosswalks as depicted on the site plan. 

7. Pedestrian circulation. The pedestrian circulation system is insulated as completely as 
reasonably possible from the vehicular circulation system as depicted on the site plan.  
Location of the internal walkways and crosswalks have been located in the safest possible 
manner in relation to the building location and vehicular circulation. 

8. Design of ingress and egress drives.  The site is accessed from the terminus of 7th Avenue 
North via three(3) proposed ingress/egress points.  The access points are arranged to 
minimize negative impacts on public and private ways and on adjacent property. 

9. Coordination of on-site circulation with off-site circulation. Site access and circulation is 
designed so that passenger vehicles parking and circulation will occur from the western 
access point and  truck circulation will occur predominately on the east side of the property. 

10. Design of on-site public right-of-way. The extension of 7th Avenue North is designed for 
maximum efficiency and to provide site access in a manner that is harmonious with existing 
conditions. 

11. Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas.  Off-street parking, loading, and 
vehicular circulation areas are located, designed and screened to minimize the impact of 
glare, noise, and odor on adjacent property. The off-street parking is proposed on the 
western façade of the building and accessible from the west ingress/egress point to the site.  
The majority of truck access and circulation, is separated from passenger vehicle circulation 
and will occur from two acess  points located east of the proposed building.  

12. Refuse and service areas. Refuse and service areas are located, designed and screened to 
minimize the impact of noise, glare and odor on adjacent property and locating it on the west 
property line away from neighboring property owners. 

13. Protection of property values. The elements of the site plan are arranged to minimize any 
potential negative impact on adjoining property and would improve the property values with 



August 31, 2020 
Page 3 
 
 

the proposed improvements, fencing, screen walls and landscape improvement proposed for 
the site. 

14. Transitional development. Not applicable. 
15. Consideration of future development. The above standards are met and impacts to existing 

and future development have been mitigated. 
 

Compliance with Community Appearance Criteria Section 23.2-31(l): 
1. The plan for the proposed structure is in conformity with good taste, good design, and in 

general contributes to the image of the City as a place of beauty, spaciousness, harmony, 
taste, fitness, broad vistas and is a high quality home of an international company.   

2. The proposed structure is not, in its exterior design and appearance, of inferior quality such 
as to cause the nature of the local environment or evolving environment to materially 
depreciate in appearance and value. 

3. The proposed structure is in harmony with the proposed developments in the general area, 
with code requirements pertaining to site plan, signage and landscaping, and the 
comprehensive plan for the City, and with the criteria set forth herein. 

4. The proposed structure is in compliance with this section and 23.2-29, as applicable. 
 
 
Best Regards, 
 
Lisa A. Reves 
 
sb 
 
 







Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program   

6-19 City of Lake Worth Beach / Department for Community Sustainability / Planning, Zoning, & Historic Preservation Division 
Page 1 of 1 1900 2nd Ave N, Lake Worth Beach, FL 33463 / 561-586-1687 / pzoning@lakeworth.org 

 

All development proposals seeking increased height above two stories, or additional FAR, as each may be 
allowed in a zoning district, shall submit this Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program Application. The application 
shall accompany the standard City of Lake Worth Universal Development Application for the development 
proposal. 

Two hard copies and one electronic copy of the following materials are required in order for a Sustainable Bonus 
Incentive Program Application to be deemed complete and sufficient to present to the decision making board. 

The Sustainable Bonus Incentive calculations are based on the gross square footage of the bonus height or 
intensity requested. The additional gross square footage amount is multiplied by $5 per square foot (“Value 
Multiplier”) in order to determine the value of the additional improvements to be provided for the project. 

1. Please indicate whether the development proposal includes bonus height or bonus intensity: 

a. □ Bonus Height 

i. No. of Additional Stories:   (“Bonus Height”) 

ii. Additional Gross Floor Area:   (“Bonus Area”) 

b. □ Bonus Intensity 

i. Additional Floor Area Ratio:   (“Bonus Intensity”) 

ii. Additional Gross Floor Area:   (“Bonus Area”) 

2. Multiply the Bonus Area by the Value Multiplier to determine the value of required improvements. 

a.   square feet × $5 = $  
Bonus Area Value of Required Improvements 

3. Indicate the type and value of the community benefit proposed to qualify for the Bonus Area: 

a. □ On-Site Features and Improvements; Value: $  

b. □ Off-Site Features and Improvements; Value: $  

c. □ Fee In Lieu; Amount: $  

4. Attach to this application a separate sheet with a detailed description of the proposed improvement 

and valuation of the same. 

-Cost for code minimum fencing w/ fabric mesh : 1,300 linear feet of vinyl coated 
chain link fence w fabric mesh  x $25/LF = $32,500. Net Value of improvements 
above required = $97,500.00 Total Value Required 2). Above =                      
$8,347.50     Net total of improvements:                                $89,152.50  

5,565 sf

5,565 sf $8,347.50

130,000



 

 

 

 

November 2020 
 
 

UMDASCH Real Estate USA, LTD 
Office and Industrial Facility 
 
 
Drainage Report 
KHA PN: 143189000 
 

 
 
 
 
Prepared for: 
UMDASCH Real Estate USA, LTD 
2209 7th Ave N 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Kimley-Horn & Associates, Inc. 
8201 Peters Road, Suite 2200 
Plantation, FL 33324 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

Drainage Report  November 2020 
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. Page 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAINAGE REPORT 
 

for 
 

UMDASCH Real Estate USA, LTD  
Office and Industrial Facility 

2209 7th Ave N 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 

 
 
 
 

KHA Project No.: 143189000 
November 2020 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        
George Balaban, P.E. 

Florida Professional Engineer License Number 74543 
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 

8201 Peters Road, Suite 2200 
Plantation, Florida 33324 

(954) 535-5134 
 
 



 

Drainage Report  November 2020 
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. Page 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION ............................................................................................................................. 3 
EXISTING CONDITIONS ............................................................................................................................. 3 
OBJECTIVE ................................................................................................................................................... 3 
REQUIREMENTS .......................................................................................................................................... 3 
FEMA FLOOD ELEVATION........................................................................................................................ 4 
PROPOSED STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM ......................................................................... 4 
STORM ANALYSIS ...................................................................................................................................... 5 
CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS ............................................................................................ 5 
REFERENCES ............................................................................................................................................... 6 
 

APPENDICES 

A. MAPS 
 A-1 – PROJECT LOCATION AERIAL  
 A-2 – SOILS MAP 
 A-3 – FEMA FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP 
 A-4 – SFWMD FLOOD CRITERIA (5-YEAR, 1-DAY RAINFALL) 
 A-5 – SFWMD FLOOD CRITERIA (10-YEAR, 3-DAY RAINFALL) 
 A-6 – SFWMD FLOOD CRITERIA (25-YEAR, 3-DAY RAINFALL) 
 A-7 – SFWMD FLOOD CRITERIA (100-YEAR, 3-DAY RAINFALL) 

 
B. DRAINAGE CALCULATIONS 

 B-1 – PROPOSED AREA BREAKDOWN  
 B-2 – WATER QUALITY AND PRE-TREATMENT CALCULATIONS 
 B-3 – EXFILTRATION TRENCH CALCULATIONS 
 B-4 – SOIL STORAGE CALCULATIONS  
 B-5 – STAGE STORAGE CALCULATIONS 

Cascade Routing Results (3-yr 1day, 10-yr 3day, 25-yr 3day, 100-yr 3day) 
 

C. GEOTECHNICAL REPORT (by Nutting Engineers) 
 
D. PREVIOUSLY APPROVED SFWMD PERMIT FOR SITE 
 
E. CONSERVATION EASEMENT & SFWMD RELEASE OF CONSERVATION EASEMENT 
 
F. SFWMD C-51 BASIN INFORMATION 
  



 

Drainage Report  November 2020 
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. Page 3 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The subject site is located in Section 20, Township 44, Range 43 E within the City of Lake Worth Beach, 
Florida. The project consists of a single lot located at 2209 7th Avenue North in Lake Worth Beach, 
Florida, 33461. The parcel control number is 38-43-44-20-01-066-0010. The project consists of 9.63 net 
acres and proposes the construction of a 26,617SF maintenance shop/warehouse, and a 10,150 SF 2 story 
office. The site is located within the C-51 Basin of the South Florida Water Management District 
(SFWMD) and shall meet or exceed Sub-Basin 33 requirements of 11.2’(NAVD) max 100 year Stage 
with 35 CSM max 10 year Discharge Rate (approximately 0.53 cfs for the 9.63 acres of the project) The 
site is bounded to the north by 7th Avenue North, bounded to the south by Oakwood Apartments, bounded 
to the west by E-4 Canal (Keller Canal), and bounded to the east by industrial buildings (see Appendix A-
1, Project Location Aerial).  
 

EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 
The existing site is heavily vegetated with an existing lake on-site. There is legal positive outfall to the 
Lake Worth Drainage District (LWDD) E-4 (Keller Canal). The site previously obtained a SFWMD 
Permit No. 50-09006-P (Application 080311-7) on May 14, 2009. Previously a conservation easement 
was required on-site (See Appendix E) recorded March 01, 2010. This conservation easement was later 
released on November 14, 2013 (See Appendix E).  

 

OBJECTIVE 
 
The objective of this design is to provide a stormwater management system that will provide adequate 
flood protection for the proposed project and meet the environmental and regulatory requirements set 
forth by the federal, state, county, and local governmental agencies. These agencies include: the Florida 
Department of Transportation (FDOT), City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection (FDEP), Lake Worth Drainage District (LWDD), and South Florida Water Management 
District (SFWMD). 
 

REQUIREMENTS 
 
SFWMD and LWDD have jurisdiction over stormwater quality and quantity criteria. The following 
subsections outline the requirements set forth by these entities. The stormwater system must be designed 
to meet the most stringent of the aforementioned requirements. 
 
Water Quality Criteria – Treatment Required 
 
Per SFWMD design criteria for industrial properties, water quality treatment is required. The water 
quality treatment volume shall be provided for the first inch of runoff from the developed project, or the 
total runoff of 2.5 inches times the percentage impervious, whichever is greater. The required water 
quality of 1.15 ac-ft will be met in the proposed exfiltration trench, which provide 4.12 ac-ft of storage. 
(See Appendix B for detailed calculations). 
 
 



 

Drainage Report  November 2020 
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. Page 4 

Water Quantity Criteria – Design Storm Events 
 
5-Year, 1-Day Rainfall 
The post-development runoff from a storm event with duration of 1-day and 5-year return frequency 
should be completely retained within the proposed stormwater system below the minimum inlet elevation. 
 
10-Year, 3-Day Rainfall 
The post-development runoff from a storm event with duration of 3-day and 25-year return frequency 
regulates the discharge to the canal. 
 
25-Year, 3-Day Rainfall 
The post-development runoff from a storm event with duration of 3-day and 25-year return frequency. 
 
100-Year, 3-Day Rainfall 
The building finish floor elevation must be set at or above the peak stage of a storm event with duration of 
3-day and 100-year return frequency. No discharge is accounted for. 
 
Water Table 
The design water table elevation of 7.00 ft NAVD was obtained from Lake Worth Drainage District 
Canal Elevations Map (see Appendix A-8). 
 

FEMA FLOOD ELEVATION 
 
The project is located in Community Panel Numbers 12099C0777F (Panel 777 of 1200) of the Flood 
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), revised October 5, 2017. According to the National Flood Insurance 
Program the project is within Zone AE (Elevation 11’ NAVD) as well as outside the 100-year flood zone 
in Flood Zone ‘X’ (see Appendix A-3). 
 

PROPOSED STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
 
The proposed stormwater improvements will have the capability to manage the stormwater runoff 
produced by the proposed development through the use of 2,193 LF of exfiltration trench and one (1) 
lakes on-site. The project site will discharge via control structure on the southwest corner of the parcel to 
the E-4 (LWDD) Keller Canal. The control structure will include a rim elevation above the 10year-3-day 
discharge storm and will also include a 6 inch inverted triangle bleeder. 
 

STORM ANALYSIS 
 

The storm analysis consisted of determining the rainfall amounts for the following storm events and 
executing Cascade drainage software to model and determine the stage and runoff of each event. The 
analysis was completed for the following storm events and rainfall depths: 
 

Design Storm Event Rainfall Depth (inches) 
5-Year, 1-Day (Figure A-4) 7.5 
10-Year, 3-Day (Figure A-5) 10.5 
25-Year, 3-Day (Figure A-6) 12.5 
100-Year, 3-Day (Figure A-7) 16.3 
 
 



 

Drainage Report  November 2020 
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. Page 5 

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

The stormwater system satisfies the LWDD and SFWMD retention criteria for the required design storm 
events. The drainage analysis indicates that the proposed stormwater management system should be able 
to protect the site from flooding and prevent off-site discharge for the 1-day: 5-year and 3-day: 10-year 
design storm events (see Appendix B, Drainage Calculations). 
 

 

DESIGN STORM 

POST-DEVELOPMENT 

MAX. STAGE 
ELEVATION  
(FT, NAVD) 

DESIGN ELEMENT 

PROPOSED 
ELEVATION OF 

DESIGN ELEMENT 
(FT, NAVD) 

5-Year, 1-Day 8.07 Lowest Rim Elevation 10.5 

10-Year, 3-Day 8.54 Perimeter Berm 9.0 

25-Year, 3-Day 8.87 - N/A 

100-Year, 3-Day 10.51 Finished Floor Elevation 12.5 

 
STAGE/STORAGE COMPARISON (PREVIOUSLY SFWMD PERMIT VS PROPOSED) 

Stage (ft) Previous SFWMD permit (ft, 
NAVD) 

Proposed stage (ft, NAVD) 

7.0 0 0 
8.5 3.94 6.24 
9.5 6.77 9.51 
10.5 9.76 11.86 
11.5 13.81 15.41 

 
 
 

REFERENCES 

South Florida Water Management District. 2014. Environmental Resource Permit Information Manual 

State of Florida Department of Transportation. 2019. Drainage Manual  

State of Florida Department of Transportation 2019 Drainage Design Guide 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A: MAPS 

 

 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A-1 
 

PROPJECT LOCATION AERIAL 
  



DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:
KHA NO.:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

K:\FTL_Civil\143 Jobs\143051000-Lakeworth Solid Waste\GIS\Maps\A-1 PROJECT LOCAITON AERIAL.mxd

J 600 North Pine Island Road, Suite 450
Plantation, Florida 33324 
(954) 535-5100 Phone
(954) 739-2247 Fax
www.kimley-horn.com

EXHIBIT NUMBER DATE:
DRAWN BY:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

EXHIBIT NUMBER

PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

EXHIBIT NUMBER

PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:
KHA NO.:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:

Ev
ere

tt
CtAu

gu
st

DrCa
rol

ina
Dr

Helyn Rd
Eli

za
be

th
Rd

He
len

a D
r

2nd Ave N

7th Ave N

Boutwe ll Rd

Vassallo Ave

Ly
nn

wo
od

D r

He
len

a D
r

Giuliano Ave

Scanlan Ave

Gr
ee

n S
t

Buckley Ave

French Ave

4th Ave N

23rd Ave S

 Source: Esri,
DigitalGlobe, GeoEye,

PROJECT LOCATION
MAP

Legend
Project Location

143051000

PREPARED FOR:
2209 7th Avenue North

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461

PROJECT FRANKMB
07/2019 

A-1

0 390 780195
Feet

E-4
 (K

elle
r C

an
al)



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A-2 
 

SOILS MAP 
  



DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:
KHA NO.:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

K:\FTL_Civil\143 Jobs\143051000-Lakeworth Solid Waste\GIS\Maps\A-2 SOILS MAP.mxd

J 600 North Pine Island Road, Suite 450
Plantation, Florida 33324 
(954) 535-5100 Phone
(954) 739-2247 Fax
www.kimley-horn.com

EXHIBIT NUMBER DATE:
DRAWN BY:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

EXHIBIT NUMBER

PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

EXHIBIT NUMBER

PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:
KHA NO.:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:

99

47

6

35

35

7

99

24

6

5

24

18

 Source: Esri,
DigitalGlobe, GeoEye,

SOILS MAP

Legend
Project Location

SOIL TYPE
Immokalee Fine Sand
Okeelanta Fine Sand
Quartzipsamments
Udorthents 
Arents-Urban Land Complex
Basinger Fine Sand
Basinger-Urban Land Complex
Water

143051000

PREPARED FOR:
2209 7th Avenue North

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461

PROJECT FRANK MB
07/2019 

A-2

0 220 440110
Feet



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
APPENDIX A-3 

 
FEMA FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP 

  



DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:
KHA NO.:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

K:\FTL_Civil\143 Jobs\143051000-Lakeworth Solid Waste\GIS\Maps\A-3 FEMA FLOOD INSURANCE RATE  MAP.mxd

J 600 North Pine Island Road, Suite 450
Plantation, Florida 33324 
(954) 535-5100 Phone
(954) 739-2247 Fax
www.kimley-horn.com

EXHIBIT NUMBER DATE:
DRAWN BY:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

EXHIBIT NUMBER

PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

EXHIBIT NUMBER

PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:
KHA NO.:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:

Zone AE
Elev. 11

Zone X

Zone X

Zone X

Zone XZone X

Zone X

Zone X

 Source: Esri,
DigitalGlobe, GeoEye,

FEMA FLOOD 
INSURANCE RATE MAP

Legend
Project Location

FEMA Flood Zone
Flood Zone

Zone A/AE/AH/AO
Zone X

143051000

PREPARED FOR:
2209 7th Avenue North

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461

PROJECT FRANKMB
07/2019 

A-3

0 220 440110
Feet

NAVD 88

FEMA Panel #:
12099C0777F



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
APPENDIX A-4 

 
SFWMD FLOOD CRITERIA (5-YEAR, 1-DAY RAINFALL) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:
KHA NO.:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

K:\FTL_Civil\143 Jobs\143051000-Lakeworth Solid Waste\GIS\Maps\A-4 SFWMD FLOOD CRITERIA (5-YEAR, 1-DAY RAINFALL).mxd

J 600 North Pine Island Road, Suite 450
Plantation, Florida 33324 
(954) 535-5100 Phone
(954) 739-2247 Fax
www.kimley-horn.com

EXHIBIT NUMBER DATE:
DRAWN BY:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

EXHIBIT NUMBER

PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

EXHIBIT NUMBER

PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:
KHA NO.:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:

8 - 9

9

4.5

5.5 - 6

7

7 - 8

4.5 - 5

4.5 - 5

5 - 5.5

5 - 5.5

6 - 7

5-YEAR, 1-DAY 
RAINFALL

Legend
Project Location
5 Year 1 Day Rainfall Period

143051000

PREPARED FOR:
2209 7th Avenue North

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461

PROJECT FRANKMB
07/2019 

A-4

0 30,000 60,00015,000
Feet

Project Location



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
APPENDIX A-5 

 
SFWMD FLOOD CRITERIA (10-YEAR, 3-DAY RAINFALL) 

  



DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:
KHA NO.:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

K:\FTL_Civil\143 Jobs\143051000-Lakeworth Solid Waste\GIS\Maps\A-5 SFWMD FLOOD CRITERIA (10-YEAR, 3-DAY RAINFALL).mxd

J 600 North Pine Island Road, Suite 450
Plantation, Florida 33324 
(954) 535-5100 Phone
(954) 739-2247 Fax
www.kimley-horn.com

EXHIBIT NUMBER DATE:
DRAWN BY:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

EXHIBIT NUMBER

PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

EXHIBIT NUMBER

PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:
KHA NO.:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:

12 - 13

13

7 - 8

11

11 - 12

8 - 9

9 - 10

10 - 11

10-YEAR, 3-DAY 
RAINFALL

Legend
Project Location
10 Year 3 Day Rainfall Period 

143051000

PREPARED FOR:
2209 7th Avenue North

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461

PROJECT FRANKMB
07/2019 

A-5

0 30,000 60,00015,000
Feet

Project Location



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A-6 
 

SFWMD FLOOD CRITERIA (25-YEAR, 3-DAY RAINFALL) 
 
  



DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:
KHA NO.:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

K:\FTL_Civil\143 Jobs\143051000-Lakeworth Solid Waste\GIS\Maps\A-6 SFWMD FLOOD CRITERIA (25-YEAR, 3-DAY RAINFALL).mxd

J 600 North Pine Island Road, Suite 450
Plantation, Florida 33324 
(954) 535-5100 Phone
(954) 739-2247 Fax
www.kimley-horn.com

EXHIBIT NUMBER DATE:
DRAWN BY:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

EXHIBIT NUMBER

PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

EXHIBIT NUMBER

PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:
KHA NO.:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:

12 - 13
14 - 15

15 - 16

16 - 17

17

13

8 - 9

9 - 10

10 - 11

10 - 11

11 - 12

12 - 13

25-YEAR, 3-DAY 
RAINFALL

Legend
Project Location
25 Year 3 Day Rainfall Period

143051000

PREPARED FOR:
2209 7th Avenue North

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461

PROJECT FRANKMB
07/2019 

A-6

0 30,000 60,00015,000
Feet

Project Location



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A-7 
 

SFWMD FLOOD CRITERIA (100-YEAR, 3-DAY RAINFALL) 
 

  



DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:
KHA NO.:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

K:\FTL_Civil\143 Jobs\143051000-Lakeworth Solid Waste\GIS\Maps\A-7 SFWMD FLOOD CRITERIA (100-YEAR, 3-DAY RAINFALL).mxd

J 600 North Pine Island Road, Suite 450
Plantation, Florida 33324 
(954) 535-5100 Phone
(954) 739-2247 Fax
www.kimley-horn.com

EXHIBIT NUMBER DATE:
DRAWN BY:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

EXHIBIT NUMBER

PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:

Th
is 

do
cu

me
nt,

 to
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e c
on

ce
pts

 an
d d

es
ign

s p
res

en
ted

 he
rei

n, 
as

 an
 in

str
um

en
t o

f s
erv

ice
, is

 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 fo

r th
e s

pe
cif

ic 
pu

rpo
se

 an
d c

lie
nt 

for
 w

hic
h i

t w
as

 pr
ep

are
d. 

Re
us

e o
f a

nd
 im

pro
pe

r re
lia

nc
e o

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt 

wi
tho

ut 
wr

itte
n a

uth
ori

za
tio

n a
nd

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 by
 Ki

ml
ey

-H
orn

 an
d A

ss
oc

iat
es

, In
c. 

sh
all

 be
 w

ith
ou

t li
ab

ility
 to

 Ki
ml

ey
-H

orn
 an

d A
ss

oc
iat

es
, In

c.

EXHIBIT NUMBER

PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:
KHA NO.:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:
PROJECT NO:

DATE:
DRAWN BY:

16 - 18

18 - 20

20 - 22

22

10 - 12

16

12 - 14

12 - 14

14 - 15

100-YEAR, 3-DAY 
RAINFALL

Legend
Project Location
100 Year 3 Day Rainfall Period

143051000

PREPARED FOR:
2209 7th Avenue North

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461

PROJECT FRANKMB
07/2019 

A-7

0 30,000 60,00015,000
Feet

Project Location



LEGEND

MAINTAINED CANAL ELEVATIONS:

NOTES:

DISCLAIMER:

RN
G 

41
E

RN
G 

42
E

TWP  43S
TWP  44S

TWP 44S
HIATUS

TWP 45S

TWP 45S
TWP 46S

TWP 46 S
TWP 47 S

TWP 47 S
TWP 48 S

RN
G 

42
E

RN
G 

43
E

RN
G 

41
E

RN
G 

42
E

TWP 43S
TWP 44S

TWP 46 S
TWP 47 S

TWP 45S
TWP 46S

TWP 44S
TWP 45S

TWP 47 S
TWP 48 S

SF
W

MD
 C

-1
5 B

AS
IN

AL
LO

W
AB

LE
 D

IS
CH

AR
GE

: 7
0 C

SM

SF
W

MD
 H

IL
LS

BO
RO

 B
AS

IN
AL

LO
W

AB
LE

 D
IS

CH
AR

GE
: 3

5 C
SM

SF
W

MD
 C

-1
6 B

AS
IN

AL
LO

W
AB

LE
 D

IS
CH

AR
GE

: 6
2.6

 C
SM

SF
W

MD
 C

-5
1 B

AS
IN

AL
LO

W
AB

LE
 D

IS
CH

AR
GE

: 3
5 C

SM
 (E

AS
T 

OF
 T

UR
NP

IK
E)

 &
 27

 C
SM

 (W
ES

T 
OF

 T
UR

NP
IK

E)

C-51 BASIN

HI
LL

SB
OR

O
BA

SI
N

RN
G 

42
E

RN
G 

43
E

PALM BEACH COUNTY
BROWARD COUNTY

GRAPHIC SCALE

SITE



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX B: DRAINAGE CALCULATIONS 

 

 
 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B-1 
 

PROPOSED AREA BREAKDOWN 
 

  



EXHIBIT B-1

Future Area Type Square Feet Acres Percentage
Pervious
Lake Bank 25113 0.58 6.0%
Green (excluding lake bank) 56874 1.31 13.6%
TOTAL PERVIOUS 81987 1.88 19.5%

Impervious
Asphalt Pavement/ Sidewalk 217258 4.99 51.8%
Building 32702 0.75 7.8%
TOTAL IMPERVIOUS 249960 5.74 59.6%

Lake 87520 2.01 20.9%
Water surface only

TOTAL SITE AREA 419467 9.63 100.0%

PROPOSED AREA BREAKDOWN
Total

Area Breakdown
Pg. 1 of 1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B-2 
 

WATER QUALITY AND PRE-TREATMENT CALCULATIONS 
 

  



EXHIBIT B-2

MINIMUM WATER QUALITY REQUIRED

1) Compute the first inch of runoff from the developed site:

2) Compute 2.5 times the percentage of imperviousness.
a. Site area for water quality pervious/impervious calculations only:

b. Impervious area for water quality pervious/impervious calculations only:

c. Percentage of imperviousness for water quality:

d. For 2.5 inches times the percentage impervious:

e. Compute volume required for quality detention:

1.15

MINIMUM PRE-TREATMENT REQUIRED

1) Compute volume generated by 1/2" of rainfall:

0.40

ac-ft (15.02 ac-in) of water quality volume is required as a minimum.

ac-ft (4.82 ac-in) of pre-treatment is required as a minimum.

= 1 𝑖𝑛. 𝑥 9.63 𝑎𝑐𝑟𝑒𝑠 𝑥 
1 𝑓𝑡

12 𝑖𝑛.
ൗ = 𝟎. 𝟖𝟎 𝒂𝒄 − 𝒇𝒕

= 𝑇𝑜𝑡𝑎𝑙 𝑃𝑟𝑜𝑗𝑒𝑐𝑡 − (𝑊𝑎𝑡𝑒𝑟 𝑆𝑢𝑟𝑓𝑎𝑐𝑒 + 𝑅𝑜𝑜𝑓)

= 9.63 𝑎𝑐𝑟𝑒𝑠 − 2.01 𝑎𝑐𝑟𝑒𝑠 + 0.75 𝑎𝑐𝑟𝑒𝑠 = 6.87 𝑎𝑐𝑟𝑒𝑠

= 𝑆𝑖𝑡𝑒 𝐴𝑟𝑒𝑎 𝑓𝑜𝑟 𝑊𝑎𝑡𝑒𝑟 𝑄𝑢𝑎𝑙𝑖𝑡𝑦 − 𝑃𝑒𝑟𝑣𝑖𝑜𝑢𝑠

= 6.87 𝑎𝑐𝑟𝑒𝑠 − 1.88 𝑎𝑐𝑟𝑒𝑠 = 4.99 𝑎𝑐𝑟𝑒𝑠

= 𝐼𝑚𝑝𝑒𝑟𝑣𝑖𝑜𝑢𝑠 𝐴𝑟𝑒𝑎 𝑓𝑜𝑟 𝑊𝑎𝑡𝑒𝑟 𝑄𝑢𝑎𝑙𝑖𝑡𝑦 𝑆𝑖𝑡𝑒⁄ 𝐴𝑟𝑒𝑎 𝑓𝑜𝑟 𝑊𝑎𝑡𝑒𝑟 𝑄𝑢𝑎𝑙𝑖𝑡𝑦 𝑥100%

= 4.99 𝑎𝑐𝑟𝑒𝑠
6.87 𝑎𝑐𝑟𝑒𝑠ൗ 𝑥100% = 72.6%

= 2.5 𝑖𝑛. 𝑥 𝑃𝑒𝑟𝑐𝑒𝑛𝑡𝑎𝑔𝑒 𝐼𝑚𝑝𝑒𝑟𝑣𝑖𝑜𝑢𝑠

= 2.5 𝑖𝑛. 𝑥 72.6% = 1.82 𝑖𝑛. 𝑡𝑜 𝑏𝑒 𝑡𝑟𝑒𝑎𝑡𝑒𝑑

= 𝐼𝑛𝑐ℎ𝑒𝑠 𝑡𝑜 𝑏𝑒 𝑇𝑟𝑒𝑎𝑡𝑒𝑑 𝑥 (𝑇𝑜𝑡𝑎𝑙 𝑆𝑖𝑡𝑒 − 𝐿𝑎𝑘𝑒)

= 1.82 𝑖𝑛. 𝑥 9.63 𝑎𝑐𝑟𝑒𝑠 − 2.01  𝑥 
1 𝑓𝑡

12 𝑖𝑛.
ൗ = 𝟏. 𝟏𝟓 𝒂𝒄 − 𝒇𝒕

= 1 𝑖𝑛. 𝑥 𝑆𝑖𝑡𝑒 𝐴𝑟𝑒𝑎 𝑥 
1 𝑓𝑡

12 𝑖𝑛.
ൗ

= 1
2ൗ  𝑖𝑛. 𝑥 9.63 𝑎𝑐𝑟𝑒𝑠 𝑥 

1 𝑓𝑡
12 𝑖𝑛.

ൗ = 𝟎. 𝟒𝟎 𝒂𝒄 − 𝒇𝒕

= 1
2ൗ  𝑖𝑛. 𝑥 𝑆𝑖𝑡𝑒 𝐴𝑟𝑒𝑎 𝑥 

1 𝑓𝑡
12 𝑖𝑛.

ൗ

Required Water Quality
Pg. 1 of 1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B-3 
 

EXFILTRATION TRENCH CALCULATIONS 
 

  



EXHIBIT B-3

Minimum Exfiltration Trench Calculations

Control Elevation (lowest rim elevation) 10.50 NAVD

Water Table: 7.00 NAVD

Top of trench 9.00 NAVD

Bottom of trench 5.00 NAVD

Pipe diameter 18 in.

FS, factor of safety 2.00
%WQ, Water Quality Credit Percentage 50%
V(wq), Volume of Water Quality 13.83 ac-in
V(add), Additional Storage Volume 0 ac-in
K, Hydraulic Conductivity1 0.000704 cfs/ft^2-ft
H2, Distance from Water Table to Control Elevation2 3.50 ft.

Du, unsaturated trench depth 2 ft.

Ds, saturated trench depth 2.00 ft.

W, trench width 8.00 ft.

Credited Volume (Actual): 6.92 ac-in.
Regular/Conservative:
Trench Required 356 LF
Trench Required 723 LF

Length of Trench Required3: 356 LF

1. Refer to Appendix D for Geotechnical Report

2. H2 value is based on lowest discharge inlet connected to the exfiltration trench system

Site Area 9.63 acres
0.5" x Site Area 4.82 ac-in.

Volume Required for Pretreatment 0.401 ac-ft

Required Pretreatment

Exfiltration Trench Parameters

Exfiltration Trench Equation Parameters

Required Exfiltration Trench

Regular

3. The conservative formula is required if the project meets one of the following criteria: 1) If the saturated trench depth 
(Ds) is greater than the non-saturated trench depth (Du), or 2) If the trench width (W) is greater than two (2) times the 
total trench depth.

𝐿 =
𝐹𝑆 %𝑊𝑄 𝑉௪ + 𝑉ௗௗ

𝐾 𝐻ଶ𝑊 + 2𝐻ଶ𝐷௨ − 𝐷௨
ଶ + 2𝐻ଶ𝐷௦ + 1.39𝑥10ିସ 𝑊𝐷௨

(𝑅𝑒𝑔𝑢𝑙𝑎𝑟 𝐹𝑜𝑟𝑚𝑢𝑙𝑎)

Provided Water Quality A
Pg. 3 of 6



EXHIBIT B-3

Provided Water Quality Calculations

Volume Provided in Exfiltration Trench
Proposed Length of Trench 2193 LF
Required Length of Trench 356 LF
Additional Trench Provided 1836.8 LF
Credited Volume Provided by Required Length 1.15 ac-ft
Volume Provided in Additional Trench (no credit applied) 2.972 ac-ft

Volume Provided by Exfiltration Trench: 4.12 ac-ft

Provided Water Quality A
Pg. 4 of 6



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B-4 
 

SOIL STORAGE CALCULATIONS 
 

  



EXHIBIT B-4

Average Elevation of Existing Site: 11.20 NAVD
Average Water Table Elevation: 7.00 NAVD
Average Depth to Water Table: 4.20 ft.
Soil Type: Flatwoods Compacted

Available Storage*: 6.75 in.
Percent Pervious (pervious area/total area): 19.55 %

SOIL STORAGE: 1.32 in. 

SOIL STORAGE (EXISTING CONDITIONS):

𝑆𝑜𝑖𝑙 𝑆𝑡𝑜𝑟𝑎𝑔𝑒 = 𝐶𝑢𝑚𝑢𝑙𝑎𝑡𝑖𝑣𝑒 𝑊𝑎𝑡𝑒𝑟 𝑆𝑡𝑜𝑟𝑎𝑔𝑒 ∗ 𝑃𝑒𝑟𝑐𝑒𝑛𝑡 𝐼𝑚𝑝𝑒𝑟𝑣𝑖𝑜𝑢𝑠

Soil Storage - POST
Pg. 5 of 6



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B-5 
 

STAGE STORAGE CALCULATIONS 
 

  



EXHIBIT B-5

STAGE-STORAGE TABULATION

Area Type Green
Lake 

Vertical
Lake 

Linear Impervious Building
Exfiltration 

Trench Total

Area (ac) 1.31 2.01 0.58 4.99 0.75 4.125 9.63
Low Elev. 11.0 7.0 7.0 10.5 100.00 7.0 -
High Elev. 13.0 12.0 13.0 9.0 -

Stage (ft) Linear Vertical Linear Linear None Exfil Trench
Total 

Storage
NGVD ac-ft ac-ft ac-ft ac-ft ac-ft ac-ft ac-ft
7.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7.50 0.00 1.00 0.01 0.00 0.00 1.03 2.05
8.00 0.00 2.01 0.06 0.00 0.00 2.06 4.13
8.50 0.00 3.01 0.13 0.00 0.00 3.09 6.24
9.00 0.00 4.02 0.23 0.00 0.00 4.12 8.37
9.50 0.00 5.02 0.36 0.00 0.00 4.12 9.51

10.00 0.00 6.03 0.52 0.00 0.00 4.12 10.67
10.50 0.00 7.03 0.71 0.00 0.00 4.12 11.86
11.00 0.00 8.04 0.92 0.25 0.00 4.12 13.33
11.50 0.08 9.04 1.17 1.00 0.00 4.12 15.41
12.00 0.33 10.05 1.44 2.24 0.00 4.12 18.18
12.50 0.73 11.05 1.73 3.99 0.00 4.12 21.63

STAGE-STORAGE CALCULATIONS (POST-CONDITIONS)

Stage-Storage Relationship
Pg. 6 of 6



Cascade 2001 Version 1.0

File: Post 5-Year  Date: November 12, 2020                                     Page 1

Project Name: DOKA Lake Worth Beach
Reviewer:            
Project Number: 143189000
  Period  Begin: Nov 12, 2020;0000 hr  End: Nov 14, 2020;0000 hr  Duration: 48 hr
  Time Step: 0.2 hr,    Iterations: 10

Basin 1: Site

  Method: Santa Barbara Unit Hydrograph
  Rainfall Distribution: SFWMD - 24 hr
  Design Frequency: 5 year
  1 Day Rainfall: 7.5 inches
  Area: 9.63003 acres
  Ground Storage: 1.32 inches
  Time of Concentration: 0.1 hours
  Initial Stage: 7 ft NGVD

       Stage             Storage
     (ft NGVD)          (acre-ft)
     ---------           ---------
        7.00                0.00
        7.50                2.05
        8.00                4.13
        8.50                6.24
        9.00                8.37
        9.50                9.51
       10.00               10.67
       10.50               11.86
       11.00               13.33
       11.50               15.41
       12.00               18.18
       12.50               21.63

Offsite Receiving Body: Offsite1

       Time                Stage
       (hr)              (ft NGVD)
     ---------           ---------
        0.00                7.00
      120.00                7.00

Structure: 1

  From Basin: Site
  To Basin: Offsite1
  Structure Type: Gravity
    Weir: Sharp Crested,  Crest Elev = 10.6 ft NGVD,  Length = 3 ft
    Bleeder: Inv-Tri,  Invert Elev = 7 ft NGVD,  Height = 0.5 ft
      Width = 0.5 ft
      Default Coefs: Weir Coef = 2.5,  Orifice Coef = 0.6
    Pipe: Diameter = 2 ft,  Manning's n = 0.012,  Length = 60 ft
      US Invert Elev = 3 ft NGVD,  DS Invert Elev = 3 ft NGVD,  flap gate

              Cumulative     Instant     Current  Cumulative  Head Water  Tail Water
        Time    Rainfall      Runoff   Discharge   Discharge       Stage       Stage
        (hr)        (in)       (cfs)       (cfs)   (acre-ft)   (ft NGVD)   (ft NGVD)
      ===============================================================================
        0.00        0.00        0.00        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        1.00        0.07        0.00        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        2.00        0.15        0.00        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        3.00        0.24        0.00        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        4.00        0.34        0.09        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        5.00        0.47        0.30        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        6.00        0.62        0.58        0.00        0.00        7.01        7.00
        7.00        0.81        0.92        0.00        0.00        7.03        7.00
        8.00        1.03        1.28        0.00        0.00        7.05        7.00
        9.00        1.28        1.76        0.00        0.00        7.08        7.00
       10.00        1.60        2.38        0.01        0.00        7.12        7.00
       11.00        2.02        3.75        0.02        0.00        7.19        7.00
       12.00        4.92       45.46        0.30        0.01        7.59        7.00

ALL ELEVATIONS IN NAVD



Cascade 2001 Version 1.0

File: Post 5-Year  Date: November 12, 2020                                     Page 2

              Cumulative     Instant     Current  Cumulative  Head Water  Tail Water
        Time    Rainfall      Runoff   Discharge   Discharge       Stage       Stage
        (hr)        (in)       (cfs)       (cfs)   (acre-ft)   (ft NGVD)   (ft NGVD)
      ===============================================================================
       13.00        5.75        5.37        0.43        0.04        7.84        7.00
       14.00        6.14        3.24        0.45        0.08        7.90        7.00
       15.00        6.38        2.12        0.47        0.12        7.94        7.00
       16.00        6.60        2.12        0.48        0.16        7.98        7.00
       17.00        6.74        1.27        0.49        0.20        7.99        7.00
       18.00        6.87        1.27        0.49        0.24        8.01        7.00
       19.00        7.01        1.28        0.50        0.28        8.02        7.00
       20.00        7.14        1.28        0.51        0.32        8.04        7.00
       21.00        7.23        0.85        0.51        0.36        8.05        7.00
       22.00        7.32        0.85        0.51        0.41        8.05        7.00
       23.00        7.41        0.85        0.51        0.45        8.06        7.00
       24.00        7.50        0.85        0.52        0.49        8.07        7.00
       25.00        7.50        0.00        0.51        0.53        8.06        7.00
       26.00        7.50        0.00        0.51        0.58        8.05        7.00
       27.00        7.50        0.00        0.51        0.62        8.04        7.00
       28.00        7.50        0.00        0.50        0.66        8.03        7.00
       29.00        7.50        0.00        0.50        0.70        8.02        7.00
       30.00        7.50        0.00        0.49        0.74        8.01        7.00
       31.00        7.50        0.00        0.49        0.78        8.00        7.00
       32.00        7.50        0.00        0.49        0.82        7.99        7.00
       33.00        7.50        0.00        0.48        0.86        7.98        7.00
       34.00        7.50        0.00        0.48        0.90        7.97        7.00
       35.00        7.50        0.00        0.48        0.94        7.96        7.00
       36.00        7.50        0.00        0.47        0.98        7.95        7.00
       37.00        7.50        0.00        0.47        1.02        7.94        7.00
       38.00        7.50        0.00        0.47        1.06        7.93        7.00
       39.00        7.50        0.00        0.46        1.10        7.92        7.00
       40.00        7.50        0.00        0.46        1.13        7.92        7.00
       41.00        7.50        0.00        0.45        1.17        7.91        7.00
       42.00        7.50        0.00        0.45        1.21        7.90        7.00
       43.00        7.50        0.00        0.45        1.25        7.89        7.00
       44.00        7.50        0.00        0.44        1.28        7.88        7.00
       45.00        7.50        0.00        0.44        1.32        7.87        7.00
       46.00        7.50        0.00        0.44        1.36        7.86        7.00
       47.00        7.50        0.00        0.43        1.39        7.85        7.00
       48.00        7.50        0.00        0.43        1.43        7.84        7.00

STRUCTURE MAXIMUM AND MINIMUM DISCHARGES
=======================================================
  Struc   Max (cfs)   Time (hr)   Min (cfs)   Time (hr)
=======================================================
      1        0.52       24.00        0.00        0.00

BASIN MAXIMUM AND MINIMUM STAGES
===============================================================
          Basin    Max (ft)   Time (hr)    Min (ft)   Time (hr)
===============================================================
           Site        8.07       24.00        7.00        0.00

BASIN WATER BUDGETS (all units in acre-ft)
=================================================================================
                     Total  Structure  Structure    Initial      Final
          Basin     Runoff     Inflow    Outflow    Storage    Storage   Residual
=================================================================================
           Site       4.91       0.00       1.42       0.00       3.49       0.00



Cascade 2001 Version 1.0

File: Post 10-Year 3-Day  Date: November 12, 2020                              Page 1

Project Name: DOKA Lake Worth Beach
Reviewer:            
Project Number: 143189000
  Period  Begin: Nov 12, 2020;0000 hr  End: Nov 16, 2020;0000 hr  Duration: 96 hr
  Time Step: 0.2 hr,    Iterations: 10

Basin 1: Site

  Method: Santa Barbara Unit Hydrograph
  Rainfall Distribution: SFWMD - 3day
  Design Frequency: 10 year
  3 Day Rainfall: 10.5 inches
  Area: 9.63003 acres
  Ground Storage: 1.32 inches
  Time of Concentration: 0.1 hours
  Initial Stage: 7 ft NGVD

       Stage             Storage
     (ft NGVD)          (acre-ft)
     ---------           ---------
        7.00                0.00
        7.50                2.05
        8.00                4.13
        8.50                6.24
        9.00                8.37
        9.50                9.51
       10.00               10.67
       10.50               11.86
       11.00               13.33
       11.50               15.41
       12.00               18.18
       12.50               21.63

Offsite Receiving Body: Offsite1

       Time                Stage
       (hr)              (ft NGVD)
     ---------           ---------
        0.00                7.00
      120.00                7.00

Structure: 1

  From Basin: Site
  To Basin: Offsite1
  Structure Type: Gravity
    Weir: Sharp Crested,  Crest Elev = 10.6 ft NGVD,  Length = 3 ft
    Bleeder: Inv-Tri,  Invert Elev = 7 ft NGVD,  Height = 0.5 ft
      Width = 0.5 ft
      Default Coefs: Weir Coef = 2.5,  Orifice Coef = 0.6
    Pipe: Diameter = 2 ft,  Manning's n = 0.012,  Length = 60 ft
      US Invert Elev = 3 ft NGVD,  DS Invert Elev = 3 ft NGVD,  flap gate

              Cumulative     Instant     Current  Cumulative  Head Water  Tail Water
        Time    Rainfall      Runoff   Discharge   Discharge       Stage       Stage
        (hr)        (in)       (cfs)       (cfs)   (acre-ft)   (ft NGVD)   (ft NGVD)
      ===============================================================================
        0.00        0.00        0.00        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        1.00        0.05        0.00        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        2.00        0.09        0.00        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        3.00        0.14        0.00        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        4.00        0.19        0.00        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        5.00        0.24        0.00        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        6.00        0.28        0.01        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        7.00        0.33        0.04        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        8.00        0.38        0.07        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        9.00        0.42        0.09        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
       10.00        0.47        0.11        0.00        0.00        7.01        7.00
       11.00        0.52        0.13        0.00        0.00        7.01        7.00
       12.00        0.56        0.15        0.00        0.00        7.01        7.00

ALL ELEVATIONS IN NAVD



Cascade 2001 Version 1.0

File: Post 10-Year 3-Day  Date: November 12, 2020                              Page 2

              Cumulative     Instant     Current  Cumulative  Head Water  Tail Water
        Time    Rainfall      Runoff   Discharge   Discharge       Stage       Stage
        (hr)        (in)       (cfs)       (cfs)   (acre-ft)   (ft NGVD)   (ft NGVD)
      ===============================================================================
       13.00        0.61        0.17        0.00        0.00        7.01        7.00
       14.00        0.66        0.18        0.00        0.00        7.02        7.00
       15.00        0.71        0.20        0.00        0.00        7.02        7.00
       16.00        0.75        0.21        0.00        0.00        7.03        7.00
       17.00        0.80        0.22        0.00        0.00        7.03        7.00
       18.00        0.85        0.24        0.00        0.00        7.03        7.00
       19.00        0.89        0.25        0.00        0.00        7.04        7.00
       20.00        0.94        0.26        0.00        0.00        7.04        7.00
       21.00        0.99        0.26        0.00        0.00        7.05        7.00
       22.00        1.03        0.27        0.00        0.00        7.05        7.00
       23.00        1.08        0.28        0.00        0.00        7.06        7.00
       24.00        1.13        0.29        0.00        0.00        7.07        7.00
       25.00        1.20        0.44        0.00        0.00        7.07        7.00
       26.00        1.27        0.45        0.00        0.00        7.08        7.00
       27.00        1.33        0.46        0.00        0.00        7.09        7.00
       28.00        1.40        0.47        0.00        0.00        7.10        7.00
       29.00        1.47        0.48        0.01        0.00        7.11        7.00
       30.00        1.54        0.49        0.01        0.00        7.12        7.00
       31.00        1.61        0.50        0.01        0.00        7.13        7.00
       32.00        1.68        0.51        0.01        0.00        7.14        7.00
       33.00        1.75        0.52        0.01        0.00        7.15        7.00
       34.00        1.81        0.52        0.01        0.01        7.16        7.00
       35.00        1.88        0.53        0.02        0.01        7.17        7.00
       36.00        1.95        0.54        0.02        0.01        7.18        7.00
       37.00        2.02        0.54        0.02        0.01        7.19        7.00
       38.00        2.09        0.55        0.02        0.01        7.20        7.00
       39.00        2.16        0.55        0.03        0.01        7.21        7.00
       40.00        2.23        0.56        0.03        0.02        7.22        7.00
       41.00        2.29        0.56        0.03        0.02        7.23        7.00
       42.00        2.36        0.57        0.04        0.02        7.25        7.00
       43.00        2.43        0.57        0.04        0.02        7.26        7.00
       44.00        2.50        0.57        0.05        0.03        7.27        7.00
       45.00        2.57        0.58        0.05        0.03        7.28        7.00
       46.00        2.64        0.58        0.06        0.04        7.29        7.00
       47.00        2.71        0.58        0.06        0.04        7.30        7.00
       48.00        2.77        0.59        0.07        0.05        7.31        7.00
       49.00        2.85        0.66        0.07        0.05        7.32        7.00
       50.00        2.93        0.67        0.08        0.06        7.33        7.00
       51.00        3.02        0.81        0.09        0.07        7.35        7.00
       52.00        3.12        0.94        0.10        0.07        7.36        7.00
       53.00        3.25        1.22        0.11        0.08        7.38        7.00
       54.00        3.42        1.50        0.13        0.09        7.41        7.00
       55.00        3.61        1.79        0.16        0.11        7.44        7.00
       56.00        3.83        2.08        0.19        0.12        7.48        7.00
       57.00        4.09        2.52        0.26        0.14        7.52        7.00
       58.00        4.42        3.10        0.29        0.16        7.57        7.00
       59.00        4.85        4.54        0.33        0.19        7.64        7.00
       60.00        7.84       48.80        0.52        0.22        8.07        7.00
       61.00        8.70        5.65        0.60        0.27        8.33        7.00
       62.00        9.09        3.40        0.62        0.32        8.40        7.00
       63.00        9.34        2.22        0.63        0.37        8.44        7.00
       64.00        9.57        2.22        0.64        0.43        8.47        7.00
       65.00        9.71        1.33        0.64        0.48        8.48        7.00
       66.00        9.85        1.33        0.65        0.53        8.50        7.00
       67.00        9.99        1.33        0.65        0.59        8.51        7.00
       68.00       10.13        1.33        0.66        0.64        8.52        7.00
       69.00       10.22        0.89        0.66        0.69        8.53        7.00
       70.00       10.31        0.89        0.66        0.75        8.53        7.00
       71.00       10.41        0.89        0.66        0.80        8.54        7.00
       72.00       10.50        0.89        0.66        0.86        8.54        7.00
       73.00       10.50        0.00        0.66        0.91        8.53        7.00
       74.00       10.50        0.00        0.65        0.97        8.52        7.00
       75.00       10.50        0.00        0.65        1.02        8.50        7.00
       76.00       10.50        0.00        0.65        1.07        8.49        7.00
       77.00       10.50        0.00        0.64        1.13        8.48        7.00
       78.00       10.50        0.00        0.64        1.18        8.47        7.00
       79.00       10.50        0.00        0.64        1.23        8.45        7.00
       80.00       10.50        0.00        0.63        1.29        8.44        7.00
       81.00       10.50        0.00        0.63        1.34        8.43        7.00



Cascade 2001 Version 1.0

File: Post 10-Year 3-Day  Date: November 12, 2020                              Page 3

              Cumulative     Instant     Current  Cumulative  Head Water  Tail Water
        Time    Rainfall      Runoff   Discharge   Discharge       Stage       Stage
        (hr)        (in)       (cfs)       (cfs)   (acre-ft)   (ft NGVD)   (ft NGVD)
      ===============================================================================
       82.00       10.50        0.00        0.63        1.39        8.42        7.00
       83.00       10.50        0.00        0.62        1.44        8.40        7.00
       84.00       10.50        0.00        0.62        1.49        8.39        7.00
       85.00       10.50        0.00        0.62        1.54        8.38        7.00
       86.00       10.50        0.00        0.61        1.59        8.37        7.00
       87.00       10.50        0.00        0.61        1.64        8.36        7.00
       88.00       10.50        0.00        0.60        1.69        8.34        7.00
       89.00       10.50        0.00        0.60        1.74        8.33        7.00
       90.00       10.50        0.00        0.60        1.79        8.32        7.00
       91.00       10.50        0.00        0.59        1.84        8.31        7.00
       92.00       10.50        0.00        0.59        1.89        8.30        7.00
       93.00       10.50        0.00        0.59        1.94        8.29        7.00
       94.00       10.50        0.00        0.58        1.99        8.27        7.00
       95.00       10.50        0.00        0.58        2.04        8.26        7.00
       96.00       10.50        0.00        0.58        2.08        8.25        7.00

STRUCTURE MAXIMUM AND MINIMUM DISCHARGES
=======================================================
  Struc   Max (cfs)   Time (hr)   Min (cfs)   Time (hr)
=======================================================
      1        0.66       72.00        0.00        0.00

BASIN MAXIMUM AND MINIMUM STAGES
===============================================================
          Basin    Max (ft)   Time (hr)    Min (ft)   Time (hr)
===============================================================
           Site        8.54       72.00        7.00        0.00

BASIN WATER BUDGETS (all units in acre-ft)
=================================================================================
                     Total  Structure  Structure    Initial      Final
          Basin     Runoff     Inflow    Outflow    Storage    Storage   Residual
=================================================================================
           Site       7.27       0.00       2.08       0.00       5.19       0.00



Cascade 2001 Version 1.0

File: Post 25-Year 3-Day  Date: November 12, 2020                              Page 1

Project Name: DOKA Lake Worth Beach
Reviewer:            
Project Number: 143189000
  Period  Begin: Nov 12, 2020;0000 hr  End: Nov 16, 2020;0000 hr  Duration: 96 hr
  Time Step: 0.2 hr,    Iterations: 10

Basin 1: Site

  Method: Santa Barbara Unit Hydrograph
  Rainfall Distribution: SFWMD - 3day
  Design Frequency: 25 year
  3 Day Rainfall: 12.5 inches
  Area: 9.63003 acres
  Ground Storage: 1.32 inches
  Time of Concentration: 0.1 hours
  Initial Stage: 7 ft NGVD

       Stage             Storage
     (ft NGVD)          (acre-ft)
     ---------           ---------
        7.00                0.00
        7.50                2.05
        8.00                4.13
        8.50                6.24
        9.00                8.37
        9.50                9.51
       10.00               10.67
       10.50               11.86
       11.00               13.33
       11.50               15.41
       12.00               18.18
       12.50               21.63

Offsite Receiving Body: Offsite1

       Time                Stage
       (hr)              (ft NGVD)
     ---------           ---------
        0.00                7.00
      120.00                7.00

Structure: 1

  From Basin: Site
  To Basin: Offsite1
  Structure Type: Gravity
    Weir: Sharp Crested,  Crest Elev = 10.6 ft NGVD,  Length = 3 ft
    Bleeder: Inv-Tri,  Invert Elev = 7 ft NGVD,  Height = 0.5 ft
      Width = 0.5 ft
      Default Coefs: Weir Coef = 2.5,  Orifice Coef = 0.6
    Pipe: Diameter = 2 ft,  Manning's n = 0.012,  Length = 60 ft
      US Invert Elev = 3 ft NGVD,  DS Invert Elev = 3 ft NGVD,  flap gate

              Cumulative     Instant     Current  Cumulative  Head Water  Tail Water
        Time    Rainfall      Runoff   Discharge   Discharge       Stage       Stage
        (hr)        (in)       (cfs)       (cfs)   (acre-ft)   (ft NGVD)   (ft NGVD)
      ===============================================================================
        0.00        0.00        0.00        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        1.00        0.06        0.00        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        2.00        0.11        0.00        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        3.00        0.17        0.00        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        4.00        0.22        0.00        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        5.00        0.28        0.01        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        6.00        0.34        0.05        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        7.00        0.39        0.09        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        8.00        0.45        0.12        0.00        0.00        7.00        7.00
        9.00        0.50        0.15        0.00        0.00        7.01        7.00
       10.00        0.56        0.18        0.00        0.00        7.01        7.00
       11.00        0.62        0.20        0.00        0.00        7.01        7.00
       12.00        0.67        0.22        0.00        0.00        7.02        7.00

ALL ELEVATIONS IN NAVD



Cascade 2001 Version 1.0

File: Post 25-Year 3-Day  Date: November 12, 2020                              Page 2

              Cumulative     Instant     Current  Cumulative  Head Water  Tail Water
        Time    Rainfall      Runoff   Discharge   Discharge       Stage       Stage
        (hr)        (in)       (cfs)       (cfs)   (acre-ft)   (ft NGVD)   (ft NGVD)
      ===============================================================================
       13.00        0.73        0.24        0.00        0.00        7.02        7.00
       14.00        0.78        0.26        0.00        0.00        7.03        7.00
       15.00        0.84        0.28        0.00        0.00        7.03        7.00
       16.00        0.90        0.29        0.00        0.00        7.04        7.00
       17.00        0.95        0.31        0.00        0.00        7.05        7.00
       18.00        1.01        0.32        0.00        0.00        7.05        7.00
       19.00        1.06        0.33        0.00        0.00        7.06        7.00
       20.00        1.12        0.34        0.00        0.00        7.06        7.00
       21.00        1.18        0.35        0.00        0.00        7.07        7.00
       22.00        1.23        0.36        0.00        0.00        7.08        7.00
       23.00        1.29        0.37        0.00        0.00        7.09        7.00
       24.00        1.34        0.38        0.00        0.00        7.09        7.00
       25.00        1.42        0.57        0.00        0.00        7.10        7.00
       26.00        1.51        0.58        0.01        0.00        7.12        7.00
       27.00        1.59        0.59        0.01        0.00        7.13        7.00
       28.00        1.67        0.61        0.01        0.00        7.14        7.00
       29.00        1.75        0.62        0.01        0.00        7.15        7.00
       30.00        1.83        0.63        0.01        0.00        7.16        7.00
       31.00        1.91        0.63        0.02        0.01        7.18        7.00
       32.00        2.00        0.64        0.02        0.01        7.19        7.00
       33.00        2.08        0.65        0.02        0.01        7.20        7.00
       34.00        2.16        0.66        0.03        0.01        7.21        7.00
       35.00        2.24        0.66        0.03        0.01        7.23        7.00
       36.00        2.32        0.67        0.04        0.02        7.24        7.00
       37.00        2.40        0.68        0.04        0.02        7.25        7.00
       38.00        2.49        0.68        0.05        0.02        7.27        7.00
       39.00        2.57        0.69        0.05        0.03        7.28        7.00
       40.00        2.65        0.69        0.06        0.03        7.29        7.00
       41.00        2.73        0.70        0.06        0.04        7.30        7.00
       42.00        2.81        0.70        0.07        0.04        7.32        7.00
       43.00        2.89        0.70        0.08        0.05        7.33        7.00
       44.00        2.98        0.71        0.09        0.06        7.34        7.00
       45.00        3.06        0.71        0.09        0.06        7.35        7.00
       46.00        3.14        0.71        0.10        0.07        7.37        7.00
       47.00        3.22        0.72        0.11        0.08        7.38        7.00
       48.00        3.30        0.72        0.12        0.09        7.39        7.00
       49.00        3.39        0.81        0.13        0.10        7.40        7.00
       50.00        3.49        0.82        0.14        0.11        7.42        7.00
       51.00        3.60        0.98        0.16        0.12        7.43        7.00
       52.00        3.72        1.15        0.17        0.14        7.45        7.00
       53.00        3.87        1.49        0.20        0.15        7.48        7.00
       54.00        4.07        1.83        0.25        0.17        7.51        7.00
       55.00        4.30        2.18        0.27        0.19        7.54        7.00
       56.00        4.56        2.53        0.30        0.22        7.58        7.00
       57.00        4.87        3.05        0.33        0.24        7.63        7.00
       58.00        5.26        3.75        0.36        0.27        7.70        7.00
       59.00        5.78        5.48        0.40        0.30        7.78        7.00
       60.00        9.34       58.51        0.59        0.34        8.30        7.00
       61.00       10.36        6.76        0.68        0.40        8.61        7.00
       62.00       10.83        4.07        0.70        0.45        8.69        7.00
       63.00       11.12        2.65        0.71        0.51        8.73        7.00
       64.00       11.40        2.65        0.72        0.57        8.77        7.00
       65.00       11.56        1.59        0.73        0.63        8.79        7.00
       66.00       11.73        1.59        0.73        0.69        8.81        7.00
       67.00       11.89        1.59        0.73        0.75        8.82        7.00
       68.00       12.06        1.59        0.74        0.81        8.84        7.00
       69.00       12.17        1.06        0.74        0.87        8.85        7.00
       70.00       12.28        1.06        0.74        0.94        8.85        7.00
       71.00       12.39        1.06        0.74        1.00        8.86        7.00
       72.00       12.50        1.06        0.74        1.06        8.87        7.00
       73.00       12.50        0.00        0.74        1.12        8.85        7.00
       74.00       12.50        0.00        0.74        1.18        8.84        7.00
       75.00       12.50        0.00        0.73        1.24        8.82        7.00
       76.00       12.50        0.00        0.73        1.30        8.81        7.00
       77.00       12.50        0.00        0.73        1.36        8.80        7.00
       78.00       12.50        0.00        0.72        1.42        8.78        7.00
       79.00       12.50        0.00        0.72        1.48        8.77        7.00
       80.00       12.50        0.00        0.72        1.54        8.75        7.00
       81.00       12.50        0.00        0.71        1.60        8.74        7.00



Cascade 2001 Version 1.0

File: Post 25-Year 3-Day  Date: November 12, 2020                              Page 3

              Cumulative     Instant     Current  Cumulative  Head Water  Tail Water
        Time    Rainfall      Runoff   Discharge   Discharge       Stage       Stage
        (hr)        (in)       (cfs)       (cfs)   (acre-ft)   (ft NGVD)   (ft NGVD)
      ===============================================================================
       82.00       12.50        0.00        0.71        1.66        8.73        7.00
       83.00       12.50        0.00        0.71        1.72        8.71        7.00
       84.00       12.50        0.00        0.70        1.78        8.70        7.00
       85.00       12.50        0.00        0.70        1.83        8.69        7.00
       86.00       12.50        0.00        0.70        1.89        8.67        7.00
       87.00       12.50        0.00        0.69        1.95        8.66        7.00
       88.00       12.50        0.00        0.69        2.01        8.65        7.00
       89.00       12.50        0.00        0.69        2.06        8.63        7.00
       90.00       12.50        0.00        0.68        2.12        8.62        7.00
       91.00       12.50        0.00        0.68        2.18        8.61        7.00
       92.00       12.50        0.00        0.67        2.23        8.59        7.00
       93.00       12.50        0.00        0.67        2.29        8.58        7.00
       94.00       12.50        0.00        0.67        2.34        8.57        7.00
       95.00       12.50        0.00        0.66        2.40        8.55        7.00
       96.00       12.50        0.00        0.66        2.45        8.54        7.00

STRUCTURE MAXIMUM AND MINIMUM DISCHARGES
=======================================================
  Struc   Max (cfs)   Time (hr)   Min (cfs)   Time (hr)
=======================================================
      1        0.74       72.00        0.00        0.00

BASIN MAXIMUM AND MINIMUM STAGES
===============================================================
          Basin    Max (ft)   Time (hr)    Min (ft)   Time (hr)
===============================================================
           Site        8.87       72.00        7.00        0.00

BASIN WATER BUDGETS (all units in acre-ft)
=================================================================================
                     Total  Structure  Structure    Initial      Final
          Basin     Runoff     Inflow    Outflow    Storage    Storage   Residual
=================================================================================
           Site       8.86       0.00       2.45       0.00       6.41       0.00



Cascade 2001 Version 1.0

File: Post 100-Year 3-Day  Date: November 12, 2020                             Page 1

Project Name: DOKA Lake Worth Beach
Reviewer:           
Project Number: 143189000
  Period  Begin: Nov 12, 2020;0000 hr  End: Nov 16, 2020;0000 hr  Duration: 96 hr
  Time Step: 0.2 hr,    Iterations: 10

Basin 1: Site

  Method: Santa Barbara Unit Hydrograph
  Rainfall Distribution: SFWMD - 3day
  Design Frequency: 100 year
  3 Day Rainfall: 16.3 inches
  Area: 9.63 acres
  Ground Storage: 1.32 inches
  Time of Concentration: 0.1 hours
  Initial Stage: 7 ft NGVD

       Stage             Storage
     (ft NGVD)          (acre-ft)
     ---------           ---------
        7.00                0.00
        7.50                2.05
        8.00                4.13
        8.50                6.24
        9.00                8.37
        9.50                9.51
       10.00               10.67
       10.50               11.86
       11.00               13.33
       11.50               15.41
       12.00               18.18
       12.50               21.63

Offsite Receiving Body: Offsite1

       Time                Stage
       (hr)              (ft NGVD)
     ---------           ---------
        0.00                7.00
      120.00                7.00

STRUCTURE MAXIMUM AND MINIMUM DISCHARGES
=======================================================
  Struc   Max (cfs)   Time (hr)   Min (cfs)   Time (hr)
=======================================================

BASIN MAXIMUM AND MINIMUM STAGES
===============================================================
          Basin    Max (ft)   Time (hr)    Min (ft)   Time (hr)
===============================================================
           Site       10.51       73.00        7.00        0.00

BASIN WATER BUDGETS (all units in acre-ft)
=================================================================================
                     Total  Structure  Structure    Initial      Final
          Basin     Runoff     Inflow    Outflow    Storage    Storage   Residual
=================================================================================
           Site      11.89       0.00       0.00       0.00      11.89       0.00

ALL ELEVATIONS IN NAVD



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX C: GEOTECHNICAL REPORT 

 

 
 

 

  





































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX D: PREVIOUSLY APPROVED SFWMD PERMIT FOR SITE 

 

 
 

 

 

  

























 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX E: CONSERVATION EASEMENT & SFWMD RELEASE OF 
CONSERVATION EASEMENT  

 

 
 

 

 

  































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX F: SFWMD C-51 BASIN INFORMATION 

 

 
 

 

 











Boutwell Industrial Park

7th Avenue North

23rd Ave

Marlin
Industrial

Park

Marlin
Commerce
Center

Oakwood
Apartments

 SUBJECT 
PROPERTYEnglewood

Manor









7TH AVENUE NORTH VIEWING NE - ADJACENT BOUTWELL INDUSTRIAL PARK















BEFORE THE STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

IN RE: Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd.
Umdasch Real Estate Green Reuse Site aka Former Boutwell Road Trash 
Dump
2209 7th Avenue North, Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33461
Greater Lake Worth Park of Commerce Brownfield Area
Brownfield Area ID: BF500901000
Brownfield Site ID: BF500901001
FDEP Site/Facility ID: 94292 / ERIC_15315
OGC Tracking Number: 20-1471

BROWNFIELD SITE REHABILITATION AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO §376.80(5), 
Florida Statutes (F.S.)

WHEREAS, the Brownfields Redevelopment Act was enacted to reduce public 
health and environmental hazards on existing commercial and industrial sites by offering 
incentives to encourage responsible persons to voluntarily develop and implement cleanup 
plans; and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Environmental Protection (“Department”) is the 
administrative agency of the State of Florida having the power and duty to protect Florida’s 
environment and to administer and enforce the provisions of Chapters 403 and 376, F.S., 
and the rules promulgated thereunder, Chapters 62-777 and 62-780, Florida Administrative 
Code (F.A.C.), as amended; and

WHEREAS, the Department has jurisdiction over the matters addressed in this 
Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreement (“BSRA”); and 

WHEREAS, the Department has the authority, pursuant to §376.81, F.S., to 
establish by rule, criteria for determining the rehabilitation program tasks that comprise a 
site rehabilitation program and the level at which a rehabilitation program task and a site 
rehabilitation program may be deemed complete;  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 
hereinafter contained, it is agreed as follows: 

This BSRA is entered into between the Department and Umdasch Real Estate USA, 
Ltd., hereinafter the Person Responsible For Brownfield Site Rehabilitation (“PRFBSR”) 
(collectively referred to as the “parties”), for the rehabilitation of a brownfield site within a 
designated brownfield area pursuant to §376.80(5), F.S. The Department and the 
PRFBSR agree to the following: 

{00041570.DOCX. 1 }
For FDEP use:7/23/2020 Revised Model BSRA 

Page 1 of 1



Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. 
Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreement 
Brownfield Site ID # BF500901001 
 

{00041570.DOCX. 1 } Page 2 of 14 
For FDEP use: 07/23/2020 Revised Model BSRA  
 

 
1. DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

 
The Department is the agency of the State of Florida with authority and power to 
enforce the provisions of Chapters 376 and 403, F.S. 

 
2. PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR BROWNFIELD SITE REHABILITATION 
 

Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. is the PRFBSR as defined in §376.79(15), F.S., for 
the real property described in the map and legal description in Attachment A (the 
“Brownfield Site”), incorporated herein, that has been designated by the City of Lake 
Worth Beach in Resolution Number 03-2009, approved on March 3, 2009, as a 
brownfield area as defined in §376.79(5), F.S.  Attachment A is a composite exhibit 
that includes: (a) the legal description and map of the Brownfield Site; and (b) the city 
resolution(s) with all attachments including the map of the designated brownfield 
area.  The brownfield site consists of 9.79 acres.  
 

3. PRFBSR’S DUTIES 
 

The PRFBSR agrees: 
 

(a) to conduct “site rehabilitation” of any “contaminated site(s)” as defined in 
§376.79, F.S., whose source originates on the real property described in 
Attachment A as the Brownfield site.   If such contaminated site(s) extend(s) 
beyond the boundary of the Brownfield site, then PRFBSR agrees to conduct 
site rehabilitation to address the entire contaminated site; 

 
(b) to conduct site rehabilitation and submit technical reports and rehabilitation 

plans in a timely manner according to the attached brownfield site 
rehabilitation schedule agreed upon by the parties, Attachment B 
incorporated herein; 

 
(c) to conduct site rehabilitation activities under the observation of professional 

engineers or professional geologists, as applicable, who are registered in 
accordance with the requirements of Chapters 471 or 492, F.S., respectively.  
Submittals provided by the PRFBSR must be signed and sealed by a 
professional engineer registered under Chapter 471, F.S., or by a professional 
geologist registered under Chapter 492, F.S., as applicable, certifying that the 
submittal and associated work comply with the laws and rules of the 
Department and those governing the profession.  Upon completion of the 
approved remedial action, a professional engineer registered under Chapter 
471, F.S., or a professional geologist registered under Chapter 492, F.S., as 
applicable, must certify that the corrective action was, to the best of his or her 
knowledge, completed in substantial conformance with the plans and 
specifications approved by the Department; 

 



Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. 
Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreement 
Brownfield Site ID # BF500901001 
 

{00041570.DOCX. 1 } Page 3 of 14 
For FDEP use: 07/23/2020 Revised Model BSRA  
 

(d) to conduct site rehabilitation in accordance with Chapter 62-160, F.A.C., as 
the same may be amended from time to time; 

 
(e) to obtain any local, state or federal approvals or permits required for the site 

rehabilitation work and to conduct the necessary site rehabilitation consistent 
with local, state, and federal laws, rules and ordinances.  All site rehabilitation 
shall be consistent with the cleanup criteria in §376.81, F.S., the requirements 
of Chapters 62-780, F.A.C., Contaminated Site Cleanup Criteria, and 62-777, 
F.A.C., Contaminant Cleanup Target Levels; 

 
(f) to allow access by the Department during the entire site rehabilitation process, 

as evidenced by the attached documentation, Attachment C, incorporated 
herein, establishing that such site access has been secured by agreement with 
the real property owner.  Upon the transfer of any real property interest in 
any portion of the Brownfield Site before site rehabilitation is complete, the 
PRFBSR shall notify the Department within 15 days from the date that such 
an interest is effective.  With notice the PRFBSR shall provide a copy of an 
access agreement in substantially the same form as that in Attachment C with 
any successor in interest to the real property owner of the Brownfield Site or 
with any party with a real property interest in the Brownfield Site after the 
effective date of this agreement, granting such access to the Department; and 

 
(g) to consider appropriate pollution prevention measures and to implement those 

that the PRFBSR determines are reasonable and cost-effective, taking into 
account the ultimate use or uses of the real property described in Attachment 
A. Local pollution prevention programs as well as state pollution prevention 
programs are available to assist in determining pollution reduction measures.  
The Department recommends that the PRFBSR contact the Department’s 
Waste Reduction and Registration Program or Hazardous Waste Program and 
Permitting at the following websites: https://floridadep.gov/waste/waste-
reduction and https://floridadep.gov/waste/permitting-compliance-
assistance/content/hazardous-waste-management-main-page for 
recommendations on waste minimization and waste management and for 
assistance with pollution prevention measures.  Such measures may include 
improved inventory or production controls and procedures for preventing loss, 
spills, and leaks of hazardous waste and materials, and include the goals for 
the reduction of releases of toxic materials.   

 
4. CERTIFICATION 
 

The PRFBSR, in accordance with the provisions of § 376.80(5), F.S., certifies that it 
has consulted with the local government with jurisdiction over the brownfield area 
about the proposed redevelopment of the brownfield site, that the local government 
is in agreement with or approves the proposed redevelopment, and that the proposed 
redevelopment complies with applicable laws and requirements for such 



Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. 
Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreement 
Brownfield Site ID # BF500901001 
 

{00041570.DOCX. 1 } Page 4 of 14 
For FDEP use: 07/23/2020 Revised Model BSRA  
 

redevelopment.  Documentation that supports this certification is provided as 
Attachment D, incorporated herein. 

 
5. SITE CONTRACTOR 
 

The PRFBSR must ensure that the contractor who is performing the majority of the 
site rehabilitation program tasks pursuant to this BSRA or supervising the 
performance of such tasks by licensed subcontractors in accordance with the 
provisions of § 489.113(9), F.S., has provided certification to the Department that the 
contractor meets the requirements listed below.  If the identity of the contractor is 
known at the time of the execution of this BSRA, a Brownfields Redevelopment 
Program Contractor Certification Form (CCF) shall be submitted as Attachment E to 
this BSRA, and incorporated herein.  If the contractor has not yet been determined, 
the PRFBSR shall ensure that the CCF is submitted to the District Brownfield 
Coordinator and approved by the Department before the contractor begins 
performing any site rehabilitation tasks at the site.   
 
The PRFBSR must submit to the Department documentation as Attachment F,  
incorporated herein, which shows a National Environmental Laboratory Accreditation 
Program (“NELAP”)-recognized authority has accredited the laboratory(s) that will 
perform the analyses required by this agreement.   
 
Any contractor that performs site rehabilitation tasks at a contaminated site originating 
on the real property as described in Attachment A shall provide documentation in 
accordance with the provisions of the paragraph above and with Attachments E and 
F, if applicable, showing that any contractor that performs site rehabilitation tasks: 

 
(a) meets all certification and license requirements imposed by law; and 

 
(b) performs, or has laboratory analyses performed, pursuant to NELAP 

certification requirements and performs, or has field sampling work 
performed, in accordance with the Standard Operating Procedures 
provided in Chapter 62-160, F.A.C., as amended, if applicable to 
performance of site rehabilitation tasks. 

 
6. CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE 

 
During the entire site rehabilitation process, the PRFBSR agrees to ensure that the 
contractor continues to comply with the requirements of Paragraph 5 of this BSRA 
pursuant to the requirements of §376.80(6), F.S. 

  



Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. 
Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreement 
Brownfield Site ID # BF500901001 
 

{00041570.DOCX. 1 } Page 5 of 14 
For FDEP use: 07/23/2020 Revised Model BSRA  
 

7. VOLUNTARY CLEANUP TAX CREDIT PROGRAM 
 

Not all activities that are approved or performed in association with a BSRA are 
eligible for the state's Voluntary Cleanup Tax Credit (VCTC).  In accordance with § 
376.30781, F.S., only the costs of voluntary cleanup activity incurred and paid by the 
applicant that are integral to site rehabilitation or for solid waste removal are eligible 
for the VCTC.  "Site rehabilitation" as defined in §376.79(19), F.S., means the 
assessment of site contamination and the remediation activities that reduce the 
levels of contaminants at a site through accepted treatment methods to meet the 
cleanup target levels established for that site.  “Solid waste removal” as defined in 
§376.30781(3), F.S., means removal of solid waste from the land surface or 
excavation of solid waste from below the land surface and removal of the solid waste 
from the brownfield site. 
 
Contamination assessment or remediation paid for by the State of Florida for a 
discharge that is eligible for a state-funded cleanup under the Drycleaning Solvent 
Cleanup Program (DSCP) or one of the Petroleum Restoration Program’s (PRP) 
eligibility programs, may not be used to calculate a tax credit.  Likewise, expenses 
incurred that are statutorily-required to participate in the DSCP (i.e., deductibles) or 
one of the PRP eligibility programs (i.e., deductibles, review fees, limited 
contamination assessment reports, and co-payments), are not eligible for the state's 
VCTC.  Nothing contained herein is intended to limit the VCTC otherwise available 
to the PRFBSR under applicable law.  
 
General information about the VCTC Program is available at 
https://floridadep.gov/waste/waste-cleanup/content/voluntary-cleanup-tax-credit 
For specific questions regarding the VCTC Program, please contact the 
Department’s Waste Cleanup Program at (850) 245-8958. 

  
8. ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

The PRFBSR shall establish an advisory committee pursuant to the requirements of 
§376.80(4), F.S., for the purpose of improving public participation and receiving public 
comments on rehabilitation and redevelopment of the brownfield area, future land 
use, local employment opportunities, community safety, and environmental justice.  
The advisory committee should include residents within or adjacent to the brownfield 
area, businesses operating within the brownfield area, and others deemed 
appropriate. However, if an appropriate local advisory committee already exists, this 
committee may be used for requesting public participation and for the purposes of 
complying with this paragraph.  

The PRFBSR shall provide the advisory committee a copy of the final proposed draft 
BSRA, including attachments, and a copy of the executed BSRA.  When the PRFBSR 
submits a site assessment report or the technical document containing the proposed 
course of action following site assessment to the Department or the local pollution 
control program for review, the PRFBSR shall hold a meeting or attend a regularly 



Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. 
Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreement 
Brownfield Site ID # BF500901001 
 

{00041570.DOCX. 1 } Page 6 of 14 
For FDEP use: 07/23/2020 Revised Model BSRA  
 

scheduled meeting to inform the advisory committee of the findings and 
recommendations in the site assessment report or the technical document containing 
the proposed course of action following site assessment.  

The names, addresses, contact information and applicable affiliation for each 
advisory committee member is included as Attachment G, incorporated herein. 

 
9. INDEMNIFICATION 
 

The PRFBSR shall save and hold harmless and indemnify the Department against 
any and all liability, claims, judgments or costs of whatsoever kind and nature for 
injury to, or death of any person or persons and for the loss or damage to any property 
resulting from the use, service, operation or performance of work under the terms of 
this BSRA and from the negligent acts or omissions of the PRFBSR or its employees, 
agents, contractors, subcontractors, or other representatives, to the extent allowed 
by law. 
 

 
10. LIABILITY PROTECTION 

The liability protection provided under §376.82, F.S., shall become effective upon 
execution of this BSRA and shall remain effective, provided the PRFBSR complies 
with the terms of this BSRA.  

11. TERMINATION  

Pursuant to §376.80(8), F.S., if the PRFBSR fails to comply with this BSRA, the 
Department shall notify the PRFBSR and allow 90 days for the PRFBSR to return to 
compliance with the provision at issue or to negotiate a modification to the BSRA with 
the Department for good cause shown.  If an imminent hazard exists, the 90-day 
grace period shall not apply.  If the project is not returned to compliance with this 
BSRA and a modification cannot be negotiated, the Department may terminate this 
BSRA.  

The PRFBSR may terminate this BSRA at any time upon written notice to the 
Department. 

Termination of this BSRA by either party will revoke the immunity provision of 
§376.82, F.S.  

12. IMMINENT HAZARD 
 

Nothing herein shall be construed to limit the authority of the Department to undertake 
any action in response to, or to recover the costs of responding to, conditions at or 
from the real property described in Attachment A that require the Department to take 
action to abate an imminent hazard to the public health, welfare or the environment. 



Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. 
Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreement 
Brownfield Site ID # BF500901001 
 

{00041570.DOCX. 1 } Page 7 of 14 
For FDEP use: 07/23/2020 Revised Model BSRA  
 

13. RELEASE OF LIABILITY 
 

Upon successful completion of this BSRA as evidenced by the issuance of a Site 
Rehabilitation Completion Order (SRCO) for each contaminated site originating from 
the real property described in Attachment A, the PRFBSR and his or her successors 
and assigns, shall be relieved from further liability for site rehabilitation as described 
in paragraph 3.a. of this BSRA to the Department and third parties and of liability in 
contribution to any other party who has or may incur cleanup liability for the 
contaminated site(s).   
 
This release of liability is subject to the reopener provisions of §376.82(3), F.S. 

 
14. GOVERNING LAW  
 

This BSRA has been delivered in the State of Florida and shall be construed in 
accordance with the laws of Florida and any applicable local regulations.  Wherever 
possible, each provision of this BSRA shall be interpreted in such manner as to be 
effective and valid under applicable law.  If any provision of this BSRA shall be 
prohibited or invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be ineffective to the 
extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such 
provision or the remaining provisions of this BSRA.  Any action hereon or in 
connection herewith shall be brought in Palm Beach County, Florida. 

 
15. SUBMITTALS 
 

The PRFBSR shall submit one hard (paper) copy or one electronic (digital) copy of 
any certifications or documentation required in Paragraph 5 (“Site Contractor”) 
above, and all data, reports, responses, addenda, or modifications to reports and 
plans required by this BSRA to: 
 

Chris Burroughs, P.G. 
Southeast District Brownfields Coordinator 

3301 Gun Club Road, MSC 7210-1 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33406 

(561) 681-6651 
Chris.Burroughs@floridadep.gov 

 
The Department encourages the submittal of documents for review in an electronic 
format rather than the submittal of paper copies.  All electronic copies of documents 
shall be in the format listed in Attachment H, incorporated herein.  Time frames for 
the Department’s review of technical reports and plans and submittal of documents 
by the PRFBSR shall be governed by the schedule in Attachment B.  After final 
Department approval of each report or plan, an electronic copy shall be submitted to 
the Department within 30 days.  The electronic copy of the report shall be submitted 
in the format listed in Attachment H. 
 



Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. 
Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreement 
Brownfield Site ID # BF500901001 
 

{00041570.DOCX. 1 } Page 8 of 14 
For FDEP use: 07/23/2020 Revised Model BSRA  
 

16. DOCUMENT REVIEW 
 

During the site rehabilitation process, if the Department fails to complete the review 
of a technical document within the time frame specified in this BSRA, with the 
exceptions of “no further action proposals,” “monitoring only proposals,” and 
feasibility studies, which must be approved prior to implementation, the PRFBSR may 
proceed to the next site rehabilitation task.  However, the PRFBSR does so at its own 
risk and may be required by the Department to complete additional work on a 
previous task. 

 
17. ASSIGNMENT 

 
The PRFBSR shall not assign any rights or responsibilities under this BSRA to any 
other party without the written consent of the Department and the local government 
with jurisdiction over the real property described in Attachment A.  However, the 
Department shall not withhold its consent to such an assignment if: (a) the proposed 
assignee meets all of the eligibility criteria under §376.82, F.S.; (b) the proposed 
assignee has agreed, in writing, to assume all obligations of the PRFBSR under the 
terms of this BSRA; and (c) the assignment of PRFBSR obligations under any 
agreement with the local government with jurisdiction over the real property has been 
approved, in writing, by the local government. 

 
18. WAIVER 
 

By entering into this BSRA, the PRFBSR waives its right to challenge the contents of 
this BSRA in an administrative hearing afforded by §120.569 and §120.57, F.S., or 
an appeal afforded by the terms of §120.68, F.S.  This BSRA does not deny the 
PRFBSR a right to challenge the Department’s actions taken pursuant to this BSRA.  
No delay or failure to exercise any right, power or remedy accruing to either party 
upon breach or default by either party under this BSRA, shall impair any such right, 
power or remedy of either party; nor shall such delay or failure be construed as a 
waiver of any such breach or default, or any similar breach or default thereafter. 

 
19. EFFECTIVE DATE AND ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING 
 

This BSRA (Order) is final and effective on the date of execution unless a timely 
petition for an administrative hearing is filed under §§120.569 and 120.57, F.S., within 
21 days after the date of receipt of notice of agency action. Upon the timely filing of 
such petition, this BSRA will not be effective until further order of the Department.  
The liability protection for the PRFBSR pursuant to §376.82(2), F.S., becomes 
effective upon execution of the BSRA.  The procedures for petitioning a hearing are 
set forth below.  
 
Please be advised that mediation of this decision pursuant to §120.573, F.S., is not 
available. 
 



Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. 
Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreement 
Brownfield Site ID # BF500901001 
 

{00041570.DOCX. 1 } Page 9 of 14 
For FDEP use: 07/23/2020 Revised Model BSRA  
 

How to Request an Extension of Time to File a Petition for Hearing: 
 

For good cause shown, pursuant to Rule 62-110.106(4), F.A.C., the 
Department may grant a request for an extension of time to file a petition for 
hearing.  Such a request shall be filed with (received by) the Agency Clerk of 
the Department in the Office of the General Counsel at 3900 Commonwealth 
Boulevard, Mail Station 35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000, within 21 days 
of receipt of this BSRA.  Petitioner shall mail a copy of the request to the 
PRFBSR at the time of filing.  Timely filing a request for an extension of time 
tolls the time period within which a petition for administrative hearing must be 
made. 
 

How to File a Petition for Administrative Hearing: 
 

A person whose substantial interests are affected by this BSRA may petition 
for an administrative proceeding (hearing) under §§120.569 and 120.57, F.S.  
The petition must contain the information set forth below and must be filed with 
(received by) the Agency Clerk of the Department in the Office of the General 
Counsel at 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station 35, Tallahassee, 
Florida 32399-3000, within 21 days of receipt of this BSRA.  Petitioner shall 
mail a copy of the petition to the PRFBSR at the time of filing.  Failure to file a 
petition within this time period shall constitute a waiver of any right to request 
an administrative proceeding under Chapter 120, F.S. 
 
Pursuant to §120.569(2), F.S., and Rule 28-106.201, F.A.C., a petition for 
administrative hearing shall contain the following information: 

 
1. The name, address, any e-mail address, and telephone number of each 
petitioner; the name, address, and telephone number of the petitioner’s 
representative, if any; the PRFBSR’s name and address; the Department’s 
Brownfield Area and Brownfield Site Identification Numbers; and the name 
and address of the Brownfield Site; the name and address of each agency 
affected; 

 
2. A statement of when and how each petitioner received notice of the 
Department’s action or proposed action; 

 
3. An explanation of how each petitioner’s substantial interests will be 
affected by the Department’s action or proposed action; 

 
4. A statement of the disputed issues of material fact, or a statement that 
there are no disputed facts; 

 
5. A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific 
facts the petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the 
Department’s action or proposed action;  



Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. 
Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreement 
Brownfield Site ID # BF500901001 
 

{00041570.DOCX. 1 } Page 10 of 14 
For FDEP use: 07/23/2020 Revised Model BSRA  
 

 
6. A statement of the specific rules or statutes the petitioner contends 
require reversal or modification of the Department’s action or proposed 
action, including an explanation of how the alleged facts relate to the 
specific rules or statutes; and 

 
7. A statement of the relief sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the 
action petitioner wishes the Department to take with respect to the 
Department’s action or proposed action. 

 
Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final 
agency action, the filing of a petition means that the Department’s final action 
may be different from the position taken by it in this BSRA.  Persons whose 
substantial interests will be affected by any such final decision of the 
Department have the right to petition to become a party to the proceeding, in 
accordance with the requirements set forth above. 

 
20. JUDICIAL REVIEW 
 

Except for the PRFBSR, any party has the right to seek judicial review of this BSRA 
under §120.68, F.S., by filing a notice of appeal under Rule 9.110 of the Florida Rules 
of Appellate Procedure with the Agency Clerk of the Department in the Office of the 
General Counsel at 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station 35, Tallahassee, 
Florida 32399-3000, and by filing a copy of the notice of appeal accompanied by the 
applicable filing fees with the appropriate District Court of Appeal.  The notice of 
appeal must be filed within 30 days after this BSRA is filed with the clerk of the 
Department (see below). 

 
21. CONTACTS FOR GENERAL AND LEGAL QUESTIONS 
 

Any questions about the content of this BSRA, the Department’s review of the 
BSRA, or technical questions should be directed to the Department’s District 
Brownfields Coordinator referenced in Paragraph 15 of this BSRA or to the 
PRFBSR’s representative at: 
 

Michael R. Goldstein, Esq. 
The Goldstein Environmental Law Firm, P.A. 

2100 Ponce de Leon Boulevard, Suite 710 
Coral Gables, Florida 33134 

(305) 777-1682 
MGoldstein@goldsteinenvlaw.com 

 
Questions regarding legal issues should be referred to the Department’s Brownfields 
Program Attorney in the Office of General Counsel at (850) 245-2242.  Contact with 
any of the above does not constitute a petition for administrative hearing or request 
for an extension of time to file a petition for administrative hearing. 



Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. 
Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreement 
Brownfield Site ID # BF500901001 
 

{00041570.DOCX. 1 } Page 11 of 14 
For FDEP use: 07/23/2020 Revised Model BSRA  
 

 
22. ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT 
 

This BSRA represents the entire agreement of the parties.  Any alterations, variations, 
changes, modifications or waivers of provisions of this BSRA shall only be valid when 
they have been reduced to writing, duly signed by each of the parties hereto, and 
attached to the original of this BSRA, unless otherwise provided herein. 

 
REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. 
Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreement 
Brownfield Site ID # BF500901001 
 

{00041570.DOCX. 1 } Page 12 of 14 
For FDEP use: 07/23/2020 Revised Model BSRA  
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties has made and executed this Brownfield 
Site Rehabilitation Agreement on the date set forth for each signature of each representative 
below: Jason Andreotta, Director, Southeast District, State of Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection, and Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd., the Person Responsible for 
Brownfield Site Rehabilitation, signing by and through Michael Barrese, its Secretary, duly 
authorized to execute same. 
 
 
       STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
       ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
 
 
 
       By:  ____________________________ 
                               Jason Andreotta 
              Director, Southeast District  
 
       Date:  ___________________________ 

    
      Approved as to form and legality: 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Ronni Moore, Brownfields Program Attorney 
 

 
FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on this date, 
pursuant to §120.52 Florida Statutes, with the designated 

       Department Clerk, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged. 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Clerk (or Deputy Clerk) 
 

 Date: ___________________________  
       

 
 

SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON NEXT PAGE 
  

Ronda Moore Digitally signed by Ronda Moore 
Date: 2020.12.21 13:57:52 -05'00'

12-28-2020

12-28-2020



Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd.
Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreement
Brownfield Site ID # BF500901001

{00041570.DOCX. 1 } Page 13 of 14
For FDEP use: 07/23/2020 Revised Model BSRA 

PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR
BROWNFIELD SITE REHABILITATION 

By: Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd.,
a New Jersey corporation

By: ______________________________
Michael Barrese
Secretary

Date: _______________________________

Address: 214 Gates Road
Little Ferry, New Jersey 07643

Phone: (201) 853-0594

cc: Kelly Crain, FDEP Brownfields Program Manager
Justin Cross, FDEP Government Analyst II, Brownfields Program
Megan Johnson, FDEP Environmental Consultant, Brownfields Program
Ronni Moore, FDEP Brownfields Program Attorney
Chris Burroughs, P.G., FDEP Southeast District Brownfields Coordinator

 

_______________________________________
Michael Barrese
S t

December 21, 2020



Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. 
Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreement 
Brownfield Site ID # BF500901001 
 

{00041570.DOCX. 1 } Page 14 of 14 
For FDEP use: 07/23/2020 Revised Model BSRA  
 

List of Attachments 
 

Attachment A  Local Government Resolution for the Brownfield Area and Map and 
Legal Description of the Brownfield Site 

 
Attachment B Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Schedule  
 
Attachment C Site Access Agreement  
 
Attachment D Certification of Redevelopment Agreement 
 
Attachment E Contractor Certification Form  
 
Attachment F  Quality Assurance Certificate 
 
Attachment G Advisory Committee Members  
 
Attachment H Format for Submittal of Technical Documents 
 

 



 

{00011878.DOCX. 1 }  

Attachment A  









F
ile

n
a

m
e

: 
\\

la
n

g
a

n
.c

o
m

\d
a
ta

\F
T

L
\d

a
ta

7
\3

3
0

0
7

0
7

0
1

\P
ro

je
c
t 

D
a

ta
\C

A
D

\0
1

\S
h

e
e

tF
ile

s
\F

G
0

1
-3

3
0

0
7

0
7

0
1

-B
I1

0
1

-0
1

0
1

.d
w

g
  

D
a

te
: 

9
/2

5
/2

0
2

0
  

T
im

e
: 

1
3

:2
8
  

U
s
e

r:
 a

ja
in

  
S

ty
le

 T
a

b
le

: 
L

a
n

g
a
n

.s
tb

  
L

a
y
o

u
t:

 A
N

S
IB

-B
L

© 2020 Langan



Legal Description 

Tract 66 and the north 210.81 feet of Tract 81, “Model Land Co. Subdivision of Section 20, Township 44 
South, Range 43 East”, according to the map or plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 5, Page 79, of the 
Public Records of Palm Beach County, Florida.  



 

{00011878.DOCX. 1 }  

Attachment B  



 

 
 

For FDEP use:  07/23/2020 Revised Model BSRA  
 

Attachment B 
Table I 

Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Schedule 
 
 

Type of Report or Activity PRFBSR Action or Submittal  
Time Frames 

Department Review or 
Comment Time frames 

Notice of Interim Source Removal 
Action or Emergency Response 
Action situations. 

Within 24 hours of initiation of the action. No comment required. 

Interim Source Removal Proposal 
 

When seeking approval before 
implementation of an alternative product 
recovery method, groundwater recovery, soil 
treatment or disposal technique (see Rule 
62-780.525, F.A.C.) 

Within 30 days of receipt. 

Interim Source Removal Plan When seeking approval before 
implementation of an alternative product 
recovery method, groundwater recovery, soil 
treatment or disposal technique (62-780.525, 
F.A.C.) 

Within 30 days of receipt. 

Interim Source Removal Status 
Report 

Within 60 days of completion of source 
removal activities and every 60 days 
thereafter or when the field activity is 
terminated, whichever occurs first. 

No comment required. 

Interim Source Removal Report Within 60 days of completion of interim 
source removal activities. 

Within 60 days of receipt. 

Site Rehabilitation Plan (SRP) or 
Combined Document; (Optional 
submittal) 
(See Rule 62-780.450, F.A.C.) 

Optional: SRP submitted within 270 days of 
executing BSRA.  May include multiple tasks. 

Within 60 days of receipt. 

Site Assessment Report (SAR) SAR submitted within 270 days of executing 
BSRA. 

Within 60 days of receipt. 

Risk Assessment Report (RAR) Optional: (within 60 days of SAR approval.) Within 90 days of receipt. 
No Further Action (NFA) Proposal When the site meets the criteria for NFA (See 

Rule 62-780.680, F.A.C.). 
Within 60 days of receipt. 

Well Survey and Sampling Results 
pursuant to paragraph 
62-780.600(3)(h), F.A.C. 

Within 60 days of discovery of contamination 
beyond the property boundaries 

Within 60 days of receipt. 

Natural Attenuation with Monitoring 
(NAM) Plan 

When the site meets the criteria for Natural 
Attenuation with Monitoring (See Rule 
62-780.690, F.A.C.). 

Within 60 days of receipt. 

Natural Attenuation with Monitoring 
(NAM) Report 

Within 60 days of sample collection. No comment required. 

Remedial Action Plan (RAP) Within 90 days of approval of a SRP, SAR or 
RAR. 

Within 60 days of receipt. 

As-Built Drawings  Within 120 days of initiating operation of the 
active remediation system. 

No comment required. 

Initiate Operation of Active 
Remedial Action 

Within 120 days of RAP approval. No comment required. 

Proposals submitted pursuant to 
subsection 62-780.700(14), F.A.C. 

Optional during active remediation  Within 60 days of receipt 

Remedial Action Status Report 
(Monthly or quarterly status reports 
may be required for submittal - - 
depending on site conditions and 
Advisory Committee.) 

Within 60 days of the anniversary date of 
initiating operation of active remediation 
system. 

No comment required. 

Post Active Remediation Monitoring 
(PARM) Plan  

When the site meets the criteria for NFA (see 
Rule 62-780.680) or Leveling-Off [see Rule 
62-780.700(18)] 

Within 60 days of receipt. 



 

 
 

For FDEP use:  07/23/2020 Revised Model BSRA  
 

Type of Report or Activity PRFBSR Action or Submittal  
Time Frames 

Department Review or 
Comment Time frames 

Post Active Remediation Monitoring 
(PARM) Report 

Within 60 days of sample collection. No comment required. 

Leveling Off Determination Within 60 days of sample collection. Within 60 days of receipt. 
Post Active Remediation Monitoring 
(PARM) Plan resampling proposal 
(Rule 62-780.750(4)(e), F.A.C. 

Within 60 days of sample collection. Within 60 days of receipt. 

Site Rehabilitation Completion 
Report (SRCR) 

Within 60 days of the final sampling event.  If 
SRCR not approved then submit 
modifications, etc., within 60 days of 
Department’s response. 

Within 60 days of receipt.  If the 
brownfield site meets the 
requirements of Chapter 62-780, 
F.A.C., for the issuance of an 
SRCO, then an SRCO will be 
issued.  

Pilot Study Work Plan When seeking approval before 
implementation of a Pilot Study pursuant to 
Rule 62-780.700(2), F.A.C. 

Within 60 days of receipt. 

Notices for Field Activities except 
for Start of Interim Source Removal 
or Emergency Response Action 
situations. 

Within seven (7) days but not less than 24 
hours prior notice to the Department to 
perform field activity. 

No comment required. 

Submittal to the Department of 
addenda, responses, or 
modification to plans or reports, 
pursuant to Chapter 62-780, F.A.C. 

Within 60 days of receipt of the Department’s 
response. 

Within the same time frame for 
review of the original submittal. 

Submittal of Form and Actual 
Notice required in subsection 
62-780.220(2), F.A.C. 

See text of rule for “Initial Notice of 
Contamination Beyond Property Boundaries” 
in subsection 62-780.220(2), F.A.C. 

No comment required. 

Submittal of Actual and 
Constructive Notice required in 
subsection 62-780.220(3), F.A.C. 

See text of rule for “Subsequent Notice of 
Contamination Beyond Source Property 
Boundaries for Establishment of a Temporary 
Point of Compliance (TPOC)” in subsection 
62-780.220(3), F.A.C. 

No comment required. 

Submittal of  Notice required in 
subsection 62-780.220(7), F.A.C. 

See text of rule for requirement that PRFBSR 
provide notice of Department’s intent to 
approve site closure using institutional 
controls, institutional and engineering 
controls, or alternative cleanup target levels. 

No comment required. 



 

{00011878.DOCX. 1 }  

Attachment C  





{00040698.DOCX. 1 } 

For FDEP use:  07/23/2020 Revised Model BSRA 

Site Access Agreement
Brownfield Site ID #: BF500901001 

Page 2 of 2

Accepted by the Department by the following authorized 
agent:

___________________________________ ____________________________________
Signature of Department representative    Signature of Witness

Print Name: ________________________         Print Name: __________________________

__________________________________
Title of Department representative

___________________________________ ____________________________________
Date Date 

Jason Andreotta Vanessa Osobrne

District Director

12-28-2020 12-28-2020



{00011878.DOCX. 1 } 

Attachment D 



DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 
Planning Zoning Historic Preservation Division 

1900 2ND Avenue North 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 

561-586-1687 

October 5, 2020 

Mr. Chris Burroughs, P.G. 
Brownfields Coordinator, FDEP Southeast District 
3301 Gun Club Road, MSC 7210-1 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33406 

Re: Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreement for Property Located at 2209 7th Avenue N., Lake Worth 
Beach, Florida 33461 (the “Subject Property”); Located in Greater Lake Worth Park of Commerce
Brownfield Area, BF500901000 

Dear Mr. Burroughs: 

The City of Lake Worth Beach (the “City”) has been advised by Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. (“Umdasch”), that it intends
to enter into a Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreement with the Florida Department of Environmental Protection for 
rehabilitation and redevelopment of the Subject Property. The Subject Property is located in the Greater Lake Worth Park 
of Commerce Area, which the City designated as a brownfield area through Resolution Number 03-2009, approved on 
March 3, 2009. 

Representatives for Umdasch have further advised the City that it intends to redevelop the Subject Property for uses that 
include the storage, repair and rental of construction equipment. The Subject Property is currently zoned I-POC with a 
future land use designation of Industrial and is located in an area of the City with harmonious uses. In concept, the City is 
supportive of this redevelopment; nevertheless, Umdasch will be required to continue working with the City to obtain all 
of the necessary and applicable land use, design, and construction approvals, permits, and licenses. 

As of this week, representatives from DOKA have submitted a major site plan and conditional use application to the city 
for review and processing. It is anticipated that the application will go before the City’s Planning & Zoning Board in
December for entitlement approvals. 

If you have questions or require additional information, please contact William Waters, Director, at 
wwaters@lakeworthbeachfl.gov (561-586-1634) or Erin Fitzhugh Sita, Assistant Director at esita@lakeworthbeachfl.gov 
(561-586-1617). 

Sincerely, 

William Waters, AIA, NCARB, LEED AP BD+C, ID 
DCS Director 

cc: Umdasch Real Estate USA, Ltd. 

Digitally signed by 
William Waters 
Date: 2020.10.05 
13:43:17 -04'00'



{00011878.DOCX. 1 } 

Attachment E 



Langan Engineering and Environmental Services, Inc. September 17, 2020

110 E Broward Blvd., Suite 1500, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301

Manivannan Nagaiah, P.E.

(954) 320-1212 (954) 320-2101

BF500901001



{00011878.DOCX. 1 } 

Attachment F 



C
on

tin
ue

d 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
is

 c
on

tin
ge

nt
 u

po
n 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 o

n-
go

in
g 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

N
EL

A
C

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

nd
 F

A
C

 R
ul

e 
64

E-
1

re
gu

la
tio

ns
.  

Sp
ec

ifi
c 

m
et

ho
ds

 a
nd

 a
na

ly
te

s 
ce

rt
ifi

ed
 a

re
 c

ite
d 

on
 th

e 
La

bo
ra

to
ry

 S
co

pe
 o

f A
cc

re
di

ta
tio

n 
fo

r t
hi

s 
la

bo
ra

to
ry

 a
nd

ar
e 

on
 fi

le
 a

t t
he

 B
ur

ea
u 

of
 P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
 L

ab
or

at
or

ie
s,

 P
. O

. B
ox

 2
10

, J
ac

ks
on

vi
lle

, F
lo

rid
a 

32
23

1.
  C

lie
nt

s 
an

d 
cu

st
om

er
s 

ar
e

ur
ge

d 
to

 v
er

ify
 w

ith
 th

is
 a

ge
nc

y 
th

e 
la

bo
ra

to
ry

's
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

st
at

us
 in

 F
lo

rid
a 

fo
r p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 m
et

ho
ds

 a
nd

 a
na

ly
te

s.

D
R

IN
K

IN
G

 W
A

TE
R

 - 
G

R
O

U
P 

I U
N

R
EG

U
LA

TE
D

 C
O

N
TA

M
IN

A
N

TS
, D

R
IN

K
IN

G
 W

A
TE

R
 - 

G
R

O
U

P 
II 

U
N

R
EG

U
LA

TE
D

 C
O

N
TA

M
IN

A
N

TS
, D

R
IN

K
IN

G
W

A
TE

R
 - 

O
TH

ER
 R

EG
U

LA
TE

D
 C

O
N

TA
M

IN
A

N
TS

, D
R

IN
K

IN
G

 W
A

TE
R

 - 
G

R
O

U
P 

III
 U

N
R

EG
U

LA
TE

D
 C

O
N

TA
M

IN
A

N
TS

, D
R

IN
K

IN
G

 W
A

TE
R

 -
M

IC
R

O
B

IO
LO

G
Y,

 D
R

IN
K

IN
G

 W
A

TE
R

 - 
PR

IM
A

R
Y 

IN
O

R
G

A
N

IC
 C

O
N

TA
M

IN
A

N
TS

, D
R

IN
K

IN
G

 W
A

TE
R

 - 
SE

C
O

N
D

A
R

Y 
IN

O
R

G
A

N
IC

 C
O

N
TA

M
IN

A
N

TS
,

D
R

IN
K

IN
G

 W
A

TE
R

 - 
R

A
D

IO
C

H
EM

IS
TR

Y,
 D

R
IN

K
IN

G
 W

A
TE

R
 - 

SY
N

TH
ET

IC
 O

R
G

A
N

IC
 C

O
N

TA
M

IN
A

N
TS

, N
O

N
-P

O
TA

B
LE

 W
A

TE
R

 - 
EX

TR
A

C
TA

B
LE

O
R

G
A

N
IC

S,
 N

O
N

-P
O

TA
B

LE
 W

A
TE

R
 - 

G
EN

ER
A

L 
C

H
EM

IS
TR

Y,
 N

O
N

-P
O

TA
B

LE
 W

A
TE

R
 - 

M
ET

A
LS

, N
O

N
-P

O
TA

B
LE

 W
A

TE
R

 - 
M

IC
R

O
B

IO
LO

G
Y,

N
O

N
-P

O
TA

B
LE

 W
A

TE
R

 - 
PE

ST
IC

ID
ES

-H
ER

B
IC

ID
ES

-P
C

B
'S

, N
O

N
-P

O
TA

B
LE

 W
A

TE
R

 - 
VO

LA
TI

LE
 O

R
G

A
N

IC
S,

 S
O

LI
D

 A
N

D
 C

H
EM

IC
A

L 
M

A
TE

R
IA

LS
 -

EX
TR

A
C

TA
B

LE
 O

R
G

A
N

IC
S,

 S
O

LI
D

 A
N

D
 C

H
EM

IC
A

L 
M

A
TE

R
IA

LS
 - 

G
EN

ER
A

L 
C

H
EM

IS
TR

Y,
 S

O
LI

D
 A

N
D

 C
H

EM
IC

A
L 

M
A

TE
R

IA
LS

 - 
M

ET
A

LS
, S

O
LI

D
 A

N
D

C
H

EM
IC

A
L 

M
A

TE
R

IA
LS

 - 
M

IC
R

O
B

IO
LO

G
Y,

 S
O

LI
D

 A
N

D
 C

H
EM

IC
A

L 
M

A
TE

R
IA

LS
 - 

PE
ST

IC
ID

ES
-H

ER
B

IC
ID

ES
-P

C
B

'S
, S

O
LI

D
 A

N
D

 C
H

EM
IC

A
L

M
A

TE
R

IA
LS

 - 
VO

LA
TI

LE
 O

R
G

A
N

IC
S,

 B
IO

LO
G

IC
A

L 
TI

SS
U

E 
- M

ET
A

LS

Th
is

 is
 to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

E8
30

79

PA
C

E 
A

N
A

LY
TI

C
A

L 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

, L
LC

 - 
O

R
M

O
N

D
 B

EA
C

H
 F

L
8 

EA
ST

 T
O

W
ER

 C
IR

C
LE

 
O

R
M

O
N

D
 B

EA
C

H
, F

L 
 3

21
74

ha
s 

co
m

pl
ie

d 
w

ith
 F

lo
rid

a 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
C

od
e 

64
E-

1,
fo

r t
he

 e
xa

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l s
am

pl
es

 in
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ca
te

go
rie

s

Pa
tty

 A
. L

ew
an

do
w

sk
i, 

M
B

A
, M

T(
A

SC
P)

 C
hi

ef
 B

ur
ea

u 
of

 P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 L
ab

or
at

or
ie

s
D

H
 F

or
m

 1
69

7,
 7

/0
4

N
O

N
-T

R
A

N
SF

ER
A

B
LE

   
E8

30
79

-7
9-

07
/0

1/
20

20
Su

pe
rs

ed
es

 a
ll 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 is

su
ed

 c
er

tif
ic

at
es

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

D
at

e 
Is

su
ed

:  
Ju

ly
 0

1,
 2

02
0 

   
 E

xp
ira

tio
n 

D
at

e:
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

02
1

St
at

e 
of

 F
lo

rid
a

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
, B

ur
ea

u 
of

 P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 L
ab

or
at

or
ie

s



{00011878.DOCX. 1 } 

Attachment G



{00039786.DOCX. 1 } 

Advisory Committee Members

Ellen Smith
Waste Management Inc. of Florida 

Representative of Business Operating in the Brownfield Area
2700 North West 48th Street 

Coconut Creek, FL 33073 
(561) 312-0000

Gary Hines
Business Development Board of Palm Beach County 

Local Government Official
310 Evernia street

West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(561) 835-1008

William Waters, AIA, NCARB, LEED AP BD+C, ID, SEED 
Community Sustainability Director, City of Lake Worth Beach

1900 Second Avenue North 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 

(561) 586-1634
wwaters@lakeworthbeachfl.gov



{00011878.DOCX. 1 } 

Attachment H 



 

{00027407.DOCX. 1 }  
 

For FDEP use:  9/28/2018 Revised Model BSRA – Please modify accordingly.  

ATTACHMENT H - - FORMAT FOR SUBMITTAL OF TECHNICAL DOCUMENTS 
 
1. One hard copy or one electronic copy of each report or proposal and final reports 

shall be submitted to the Department or to the delegated local program. 
 

2. Where an electronic format exists of the records it shall be used to transmit the data, 
file, report, document, map, plans, picture, record, or any other object that may be 
available in an electronic format.  Electronic records shall be kept in industry standard 
non-proprietary formats: TIFF, GIF, JPEG, PDF, or in Microsoft Word, Microsoft 
Excel, and Microsoft Access not older than one (1) release behind the current. 
 

3. Data requested shall be transmitted using available media such as E-mail, Compact 
Disc (CD), or File Transfer via an FTP site.  Additional formats may be considered at 
the time of the request. 
 

4. After final approval of each report, an electronic copy and one hard copy shall be 
submitted within 30 days.   
 

5. The media shall include a file directory and specify the “naming convention”. 
(a) Final reports (any text files) must be in one of the approved formats. 
(b) Site maps and surveys shall be in TIFF, JPEG or “.pdf” format. 
(c) Site-specific GIS data tables shall be in Excel or text (tab delimited) format. 
(d) The cover of the media shall include the Site Name, Designated Brownfield 

Area, Date and Type of Report(s). 
(e) The left inside cover of the media should list all the files located on the media.  


	Top
	A.	DOKA Appeal Continuation
	Appeal Staff Report
	DOKA Development Order (DO)
	PZB - January 6. 2021 minutes
	Basis for Appeal of Project PZB 20-01400035
	Staff PowerPoint
	Applicant - Doka Presentation 1.6.21
	PZB Staff Report 20-01400035
	PZB Staff Report Attachment Site Plan Package
	PZB Staff Report Supplemental Supporting Documents

	Bottom

